
Board of Directors 
San Simeon Community Services District 

 
  

 

                                               
 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
PACKET 

 

Tuesday, November 9, 2021 
Meeting Start Time 5:00 pm  

 
Virtual Board Meeting via Zoom Webinar 

Webinar Code: 873 0781 0050 
 
  

 
                                                                                             Prepared by: 

 

 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 1 of 373



SSCSD Board Agenda November 9, 2021      Page 1 of 3 

AGENDA 
SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
Tuesday, November 9, 2021 

5:00 pm 

Pursuant to San Simeon CSD Resolution 21-434 and in compliance with AB 361 this 
meeting shall occur as a virtual teleconference using the Zoom app. 

Internet Meeting Location – Via ZOOM 

Join Zoom for Regular Board Session:  
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87307810050 

Or One tap mobile:  
    US: +16699009128, 87307810050# 

Or Telephone: 
    Dial (for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location): 

  US: +1 669 900 9128 

Webinar ID: 873 0781 0050 

NOTE:  On the day of the meeting, the virtual meeting room will be open beginning at 4:30 PM. If you 
are unable to access the meeting please contact Cortney Murguia at (805) 927-4778 prior to the 5:00 
PM meeting start time and staff can assist you in accessing the meeting. Should you have any 
questions related to the information on this agenda or if you wish to submit public comment in the 
written format you can email Cortney Murguia at admin@sansimeoncsd.org.  Members of the public 
can also contact the District office at (805) 927-4778 or (805) 400-7399 with any questions or 
concerns related to this agenda or accessing the meeting. 

1. REGULAR SESSION: 5:00 PM - https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87307810050
A. Roll Call

2. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA:
Public Comment - Any member of the public may address the Board relating to any matter
within the Board’s jurisdiction, provided the matter is not on the Board’s agenda.
Presentations are limited to three (3) minutes or less with additional time at the discretion of
the Chair. Your comments should be directed to the Board as a whole and not directed to
individual Board members. The Brown Act restricts the Board from taking formal action on
matters not published on the agenda.

3. SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS AND REPORTS:
A. STAFF REPORTS:

i. Sheriff’s Report – Report for October.
ii. CHP Report – Report for October.
iii. Superintendent’s Report – Summary of October activities.

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 2 of 373

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87307810050
mailto:admin@sansimeoncsd.org
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87307810050


SSCSD Board Agenda November 9, 2021      Page 2 of 3 

iv. General Manager’s Report – Summary of October Activities.
v. District Financial Summary – Summary of October Financials.
vi. District Counsel’s Report – Summary of October Activities.
vii. Board Member Report – Summary of October Activities.

B. AD-HOC COMMITTEE REPORTS:
i. Status Update – Disbursements Journal Review Committee.
ii. Status Update – Policy & Procedures Committee.
iii. Status Update – Update on District Ordinance 107 Parking on District

Streets and draft Ordinance 122 Parking on District Streets.
iv. Status Update – Budget Committee.
v. Status Update – Water Committee.

Public Comment – This public comment period provides an opportunity for members of the public to 
address the Board on matters discussed during Agenda Item #3 Special Presentations and Reports. 
If a member of the public wishes to speak at this time, Public Comment is limited to three (3) minutes. 

4. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS:
Public Comment – This public comment period provides an opportunity for members of the 
public to address the Board on matters discussed during Agenda Item #4 Consent Agenda 
Items. If a member of the public wishes to speak at this time, Public Comment is limited to 
three (3) minutes.

A. REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF MINUTES FOR THE REGULAR MEETING ON OCTOBER 12, 2021.

B. REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF DISBURSEMENTS JOURNAL.

C. ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION 21-435 TO CONTINUE VIRTUAL MEETINGS PURSUANT TO THE 
PROVISIONS OF AB 361.

D. ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION 21-436 TO ALLOW THE DISTRICT RENTAL OF A SAFE DEPOSIT BOX.

5. PUBLIC HEARING:
Public Comment – Public comment will be allowed for each individual public hearing item. 
Members of the public wishing to speak on public hearing items may do so when recognized 
by the Presiding Officer. If a member of the public wishes to speak at this time, Public 
Comment is limited to three (3) minutes per person for each public hearing item.

A. INTRODUCTION OF ORDINANCE NO. 123 OF THE SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT TO 
ADOPT MANDATORY SOLID WASTE, ORGANIC WASTE, AND RECYCLING MATERIALS RULES AND 
REGULATIONS AND MAKING A DETERMINATION OF EXEMPTION UNDER CEQA.

6. BUSINESS ACTION ITEMS:
Public Comment – Public comment will be allowed for each individual business item. 
Members of the public wishing to speak on business items may do so when recognized by 
the

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 3 of 373



 
 

SSCSD Board Agenda November 9, 2021      Page 3 of 3 
 

Presiding Officer. If a member of the public wishes to speak at this time, Public Comment is 
limited to three (3) minutes per person for each business item. 

 
A. CONSIDERATION OF CANDIDATES TO REPLACE THE BOARD OF DIRECTOR VACANCY 

CREATED BY THE RESIGNATION OF WILLIAM MAURER AND BOARD APPOINTMENT OF 
THE NEW DIRECTOR.  
 

B. APPROVAL OF A PROPOSAL FROM AKEL ENGINEERING GROUP, INC. FOR THE URBAN 
WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN NOT TO EXCEED THE AMOUNT OF $25,090.00.  

 
C. APPROVAL OF A PROPOSAL FROM STILLWATER SCIENCES FOR THE INFLOW STREAM 

MANAGEMENT PLAN TASKS 1 THROUGH 5 NOT TO EXCEED THE AMOUNT OF                             
$ 84,900.00. 

 
D. APPROVAL OF A PROPOSAL FROM COOPERATIVE STRATEGIES FOR REDISTRICTING 

SERVICES NOT TO EXCEED THE AMOUNT OF $25,090.00.  
 

E. CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL OF THE DRAFT POLICY ON CREDITS TO CUSTOMERS 
UTILITY BILLS. 

 
F. AUTHORIZE THE CHAIRPERSON TO (1) EXECUTE THE MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT 

(“MOA”) BY AND BETWEEN THE MEMBER JURISDICTIONS OF THE SAN LUIS OBISPO 
COUNTY INTEGRATED WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY (“IWMA”); (2) EXECUTE 
AMENDMENT ONE TO THE MOA; AND (3) EXECUTE A LETTER OF DESIGNATION WITH THE 
IWMA REGARDING SENATE BILL 1383 COMPLIANCE.  

 
G. DIRECTION TO STAFF TO SEND A LETTER OF INTENT NOTIFYING THE COUNTY OF SAN 

LUIS OBISPO THAT THE CSD INTENDS TO ASSUME SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY.  
 

H. APPROVAL OF LIMITED TERM ENCROACHMENT EASEMENT AND AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
HEARST HOLDINGS, LLC AND THE SAN SIMEON CSD.  

 
7. BOARD/STAFF GENERAL DISCUSSIONS AND PROPOSED AGENDA ITEMS – Requests 

from Board members to Staff to receive feedback, prepare information, and/or place an item 
on a future agenda(s). 

 
8. ADJOURNMENT –  

All staff reports or other written documentation, including any supplemental material distributed 
to a majority of the Board within 72 hours of a regular meeting, relating to each item of 
business on the agenda are available for public inspection during regular business hours in the 
District office, 111 Pico Avenue, San Simeon. If requested, this agenda shall be made 
available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with a disability, as required by the 
Americans with Disabilities Act. To make a request for a disability-related modification or 
accommodation, contact the District Administrator at 805-927-4778 as soon as possible and at 
least 48 hours prior to the meeting date. This agenda was prepared and posted pursuant to 
Government Code Section 54954.2.  

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 4 of 373



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

3. A. ii. SUPERINTENDENT REPORT 
Jerry Copeland 

   Facilities Update for October 2021 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 5 of 373



                                                                                    SUPERINTENDENTS REPORT  PG 1 
 

  

SUPERINTENDENT'S REPORT  

Item 3.A.ii       Prepared by: Jerry Copeland 

 
 

1. Wastewater Treatment Plant 
• All sampling, testing and reporting at the Wastewater Treatment Plant was 

performed as required by the Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB). 
• The monthly report was submitted to the State Water Resources Control Board 

(SWRCB). 
• Routine cleaning of the Aerobic Digester was performed. 
• Five loads of sludge were hauled away in part to facilitate the above-mentioned 

cleaning. 
 
 
 
 

2. Water Treatment and Distribution System 
• All routine sampling, testing and reporting was performed as required by the 

SWRCB, Division of Drinking Water (DDW). 
• The monthly report was submitted to the SWRCB, DDW.  
• Monthly water meter reading was performed. 

 
 
 
 

3. District and Equipment Maintenance 
• Staff continues with all the scheduled preventive maintenance for equipment at 

the facilities.  

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 6 of 373



 MONTHLY DATA REPORT

Date Day

Wastewater 
Influent Daily 

Flow

Wastewater 
Effluent Daily 

Flow

 Well 1 
Total Daily 
Produced

Well 2   
Total Daily 
Produced

Total Daily 
Water 

Produced

R.O. Daily 
Influent 

Flow

R.O. Daily 
Effluent 

Flow
R.O. Daily 
Brine Flow

Distribution 
Chloride

Recycled 
Water 

Distributed

Water 
Level Well 

1

Water 
Level Well 

2
Rainfall in 

Inches State Flows
10/01/21 Friday 57,519 62,180 28,798 0 28,798 0 0 0 - - - 0 13.2 13.1 0.00 1,524
10/02/21 Saturday 58,116 61,360 66,497 0 66,497 0 0 0 - - - 0 13.1 12.9 0.00 1,618
10/03/21 Sunday 70,446 72,330 77,418 0 77,418 0 0 0 - - - 0 13.1 12.9 0.00 2,976
10/04/21 Monday 56,854 58,390 67,769 0 67,769 0 0 0 - - - 0 13.2 13.1 0.00 2,761
10/05/21 Tuesday 55,635 55,060 58,643 0 58,643 0 0 0 - - - 0 13.3 13.1 0.00 1,502
10/06/21 Wednesday 38,999 40,040 1,646 70,312 71,958 0 0 0 53 67 - 0 13.2 13.0 0.00 1,952
10/07/21 Thursday 49,974 53,560 2,169 43,309 45,478 0 0 0 - - <30 0 13.3 13.1 0.00 1,900
10/08/21 Friday 51,604 60,320 60,289 11,744 72,032 0 0 0 - - - 0 13.3 13.1 0.00 759
10/09/21 Saturday 78,269 77,280 2,244 71,658 73,902 0 0 0 - - - 0 13.4 13.1 0.00 1,526
10/10/21 Sunday 56,986 64,320 81,457 0 81,457 0 0 0 - - - 0 13.3 13.1 0.00 2,333
10/11/21 Monday 51,324 53,510 51,687 17,653 69,340 0 0 0 - - - 0 13.3 13.3 0.00 1,133
10/12/21 Tuesday 58,091 53,960 14,736 60,513 75,249 0 0 0 - - - 0 13.3 13.1 0.00 1,066
10/13/21 Wednesday 48,177 52,170 50,415 0 50,415 0 0 0 53 78 <30 0 13.3 13.0 0.00 1,501
10/14/21 Thursday 47,247 53,260 6,208 67,170 73,379 0 0 0 - - - 0 13.3 13.0 0.00 1,187
10/15/21 Friday 61,519 61,480 64,552 21,019 85,571 0 0 0 - - - 0 13.3 13.0 0.00 2,046
10/16/21 Saturday 77,343 77,830 0 81,158 81,158 0 0 0 - - - 0 13.3 13.2 0.00 1,094
10/17/21 Sunday 58,590 59,730 50,864 8,228 59,092 0 0 0 - - - 0 13.5 13.3 0.00 1,182
10/18/21 Monday 41,142 58,870 0 57,746 57,746 0 0 0 - - - 0 13.3 13.1 0.00 3,253
10/19/21 Tuesday 76,799 71,670 61,860 0 61,860 0 0 0 - - - 0 13.4 13.2 0.00 2,025
10/20/21 Wednesday 44,157 46,930 0 54,604 54,604 0 0 0 62 78 <30 0 13.4 13.2 0.00 1,816
10/21/21 Thursday 45,692 49,890 69,115 0 69,115 0 0 0 - - - 0 13.5 13.2 0.00 1,224
10/22/21 Friday 56,582 56,850 55,726 0 55,726 0 0 0 - - - 0 13.5 13.3 0.00 2,417
10/23/21 Saturday 59,590 61,550 12,342 61,635 73,977 0 0 0 - - - 0 13.5 13.3 0.00 1,299
10/24/21 Sunday 63,916 73,520 53,108 598 53,706 0 0 0 - - - 0 13.4 13.4 0.00 2,658
10/25/21 Monday 73,503 71,920 40,093 47,498 87,591 0 0 0 78 143 37 0 13.3 13.2 1.56 6,638
10/26/21 Tuesday 46,957 51,820 4,413 14,287 18,700 0 0 0 78 123 30 0 11.0 10.6 0.08 761
10/27/21 Wednesday 56,518 59,050 62,533 823 63,356 0 0 0 78 88 32 0 10.5 10.0 0.00 2,282
10/28/21 Thursday 38,896 45,340 673 51,537 52,210 4,615 3,036 1,579 88 88 <30 0 10.5 10.3 0.00 1,123
10/29/21 Friday 36,327 40,200 48,470 1,720 50,191 0 0 0 81 69 32 0 10.5 10.5 0.00 1,462
10/30/21 Saturday 37,968 46,710 0 59,990 59,990 0 0 0 - - - 0 10.6 10.3 0.00 1,063
10/31/21 Sunday 48,870 50,120 58,942 0 58,942 0 0 0 - - - 0 10.7 10.4 0.00 2,985
TOTALS 1,703,610 1,801,220 1,152,668 803,202 1,955,870 4,615 3,036 1,579 0 1.64 59,066
Average 54,955 58,104 37,183 25,910 63,093 149 98 51 71 92 33 0 12.8 12.6 0.05 1,905
Minimum 36,327 40,040 0 0 18,700 0 0 0 53 67 30 0 10.5 10.0 0.00 759
Maximum 78,269 77,830 81,457 81,158 87,591 4,615 3,036 1,579 88 143 37 0 13.5 13.4 1.56 6,638

Page 2

San Simeon Community Services District                         Superintendent's Report                                                       October 2021

Chloride Wells  
1        2

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 7 of 373



DATA SUMMARY SHEET

2021
Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21 Oct-21 Nov-21 Dec-21 Total for 2021

Wastewater Influent 2,399,103 1,705,622 1,820,175 1,763,875 1,619,717 1,901,547 2,158,434 1,943,680 1,675,426 1,703,610 18,691,189
Wastewater Final Effluent (Month Cycle) 2,546,130 1,747,000 1,874,290 1,827,000 1,826,280 2,057,550 2,281,620 1,997,150 1,837,180 1,801,220 19,795,420
Adjusted Wastewater Influent (- State Flow) 2,148,485 1,645,420 1,765,245 1,705,967 1,552,211 1,825,611 2,078,540 1,854,274 1,603,573 1,644,544 17,823,870
Water Produced (month cycle) 1,851,150 1,682,402 1,907,250 2,114,147 2,080,786 2,385,297 2,699,083 2,171,145 2,100,384 1,955,870 20,947,516
Sewer Influent/Water Produced Ratio 1.30 1.05 0.95 0.83 0.78 0.80 0.80 0.90 0.80 0.87 N/A
Adusted Sewer/Water Produced Ratio 1.16 0.95 0.93 0.81 0.75 0.77 0.77 0.85 0.76 0.84 N/A
Well 1 Water Production 90,358 3,590 101,952 972,774 1,010,847 1,793,480 2,693,847 2,169,948 2,098,963 1,152,668 12,088,428
Well 2 Water Production 1,760,792 1,678,811 1,805,298 1,141,373 1,069,939 591,818 5,236 1,197 1,421 803,202 8,859,088
Total Well Production 1,851,150 1,682,402 1,907,250 2,114,147 2,080,786 2,385,297 2,699,083 2,171,145 2,100,384 1,955,870 20,947,516
Water Well 1 Avg Depth to Water 10.6 9.9 9.8 10.1 10.2 10.6 11.5 12.3 12.8 12.8 N/A
Water Well 2 Avg Depth to Water 10.4 9.6 9.5 9.8 9.9 10.3 11.1 12.0 12.6 12.6 N/A
Average Depth to Water of Both Wells 10.5 9.7 9.7 10.0 10.1 10.5 11.3 12.1 12.7 12.7 N/A
Change in Average Depth to Water from 2020 +0.2 -0.4 -0.3 0.0 -0.2 +0.3 +1.4 +1.7 +1.4 +0.6 N/A
Average Chloride mg/L at the Wells 352 169 77 41 31 30 30 30 30 63 N/A
State Wastewater Treated 250,618 60,202 125,914 57,908 67,506 75,936 79,894 89,406 71,853 59,066 938,303
State % of Total WW Flow 10% 4% 7% 3% 4% 4% 4% 5% 4% 4% N/A
Recycled Water Sold (Gallons) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Biosolids Removal (Gallons) 0 4,500 0 4,500 9,000 4,500 9,000 4,500 4,500 22,500 63,000
WW Permit Limitation Exceeded 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
RW Permit Limitation Exceeded 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Constituent Exceeded None None None None None None None None None None N/A
Sample Limit N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Sample Result    N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

2020
Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Total for 2020

Wastewater Influent 2,215,755 1,971,958 1,944,913 1,583,618 1,850,716 2,266,319 2,341,110 2,516,424 1,858,385 1,825,386 1,542,483 1,305,557 23,222,624
Wastewater Final Effluent (Month Cycle) 2,168,690 1,922,920 1,846,450 1,555,350 1,707,500 2,045,070 2,304,980 2,397,730 1,907,070 1,915,400 1,661,370 1,431,330 22,863,860
Adjusted Wastewater Influent( - State Flow) * 1,958,507 1,780,122 1,818,999 1,500,460 1,748,006 2,201,429 2,262,301 2,440,274 1,798,005 1,763,948 1,490,514 1,257,657 22,020,222
Water Produced (month cycle) 1,843,670 1,872,693 1,514,688 1,215,724 1,962,303 2,261,129 2,673,502 2,726,684 2,321,568 2,242,803 1,894,160 1,785,252 24,314,177
Sewer Influent/Water Produced Ratio 1.20 1.05 1.28 1.31 0.94 1.00 0.88 0.92 0.80 0.81 0.81 0.73 N/A
Adusted Sewer/Water Ratio 0.94 0.95 1.20 1.24 0.89 0.91 0.85 0.90 0.78 0.79 0.79 0.71 N/A
Average Depth of Both Wells 10.3 10.1 10.0 10.0 10.4 10.2 9.9 10.4 11.3 12.2 12.8 12.5 N/A
Change in Average Depth to Water from 2019 +1.0 +1.1 +0.7 -0.2 +0.2 +0.1 +0.1 +0.1 +0.6 +0.5 +0.6 +1.1 N/A
Average Chloride mg/L at the Wells 32 32 32 - - - - - - <30 <30 55 N/A
State Wastewater Treated 257,248 191,836 125,914 83,158 102,710 64,890 78,809 76,150 60,380 61,438 51,969 47,900 1,202,402
State % of Total WW Flow 12% 10% 6% 5% 6% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 4% N/A
Recycled Water Sold (Gallons) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Biosolids Removal (Gallons) 4,500 9,000 9,000 0 4,500 4,500 9,000 0 4,500 4,500 4,500 4,500 58,500
WW Permit Limitation Exceeded 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 N/A
RW Permit Limitation Exceeded 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 N/A
Constituent Exceeded None None None None None None None None None None None None N/A
Sample Limit N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Sample Result    N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Page 3

San Simeon Community Services District                                                    Superintendent's Report                                                                  October 2021

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 8 of 373



Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec
Well Average Depth 2017 8.1 8.0 10.0 10.0 9.9 9.7 10.1 10.4 10.5 11.0 11.8 11.8
Well Average Depth 2018 10.8 10.3 9.7 10.3 10.4 10.1 10.4 11.0 11.9 12.4 12.8 9.9
Well Average Depth 2019 9.3 9.0 9.3 10.2 10.2 10.3 10.0 10.3 10.7 11.7 12.2 10.4
Well Average Depth 2020 10.3 10.1 10.0 10.0 10.4 10.2 9.9 10.4 11.3 11.7 12.2 12.4
Well Average Depth 2021 10.5 9.7 9.7 10.0 10.1 10.5 11.3 12.1 12.7 12.7

page 4

San Simeon Community Services District              Superintendent's Report               October 2021

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

10.0

11.0

12.0

13.0

14.0

Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

Well Average Depth 2017

Well Average Depth 2018

Well Average Depth 2019

Well Average Depth 2020

Well Average Depth 2021

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 9 of 373



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3. A. iii GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
Charles Grace 

Update for October 2021 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 10 of 373



1 

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

Item 3.A.iii  
GES Staff Activity – Report on staff activities for the month of October 2021.  Regular 
activities performed by staff include:  

Processing of utility payments, customer service duties, answering phone calls, mailing 
of the regular monthly utility bills. Prepared and distributed the agenda and Board 
packet for a regular Board meeting.  

GES Staff also attended to the following items: 

● Responded to fourteen (14) public records requests.
______________________________________________________________________ 
Update on District Grants: 

OPC Grant – No update. 
LCP Grant – No update. 
Prop 1 Grant – No update. 

Update on District Projects:  

Update on CHRP – The contract with Dudek has been finalized a CHRP kick off 
meeting will be scheduled.  

Rate Study/Finance Items – RCAC in coordination with CRWA and RDN is performing 
the rate study. 

Hearst Encroachment – This item is part of the Business Action items. 

Water Tank Project Update – No update. 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 11 of 373



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3. SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS AND REPORTS: 
A.vii. Board Member Report 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 12 of 373



NCAC 
I will start with the most recent update first with a brief explanation  

As you may have already heard yes, the CSD in 2016 due to an emergency drought situation built their 
RO unit on what we now know is a minute fraction of Hearst property, BUT, let me clearly state a couple 
of important points: past District Counsel had done a search prior to construction and assured the CSD 
that we DID own the property, in addition, neither Hearst, the Trust, or the County knew it was Hearst 
property and it was built to code only after receiving a County Land Use Permit.  It did not come to light 
until a resident got their knickers in a knot, as they say in England, because their request for their own 
personal ADA parking space on a CSD right of way was denied--angry off they trotted to the county to 
pull maps ref. the R of W. That is when the headaches and legal bills became a nightmare for the mobile 
home park and the CSD. Not to mention Hearst and the County.  Property ownership as I am sure all of 
you know, requires 3 important items, the copy of the deed (or prior deeds), a copy of the title report 
issued to the prior owner and a copy of the most recent survey of the property. These are invaluable 
tools.  The CSD had only a topographical survey, provided by the complainant—but that type of map is 
not a boundary survey.  So, the CSD had no choice but to spend the money and once and for all know for 
sure the owner.  Now everyone that didn’t know, which was apparently everyone, does.  

The east corner of the RO building, installed within the misplaced historical fence line, is 12.81 feet on to 
Hearst holding, and an electrical panel would protrude 4 or 5 feet. The size of the ranch is 83,000 acres. 

MBS, IMPO a 5 star company completed a survey that included a Title Search and I spent the first 4 
hours with them learning about how they use Bluetooth and GPS and a metal detector to search for 
monuments. One of those being in 1917 a 21 inch girth Blue Gum aka eucalyptus.  It now has a girth of 
72 inches. I was very impressed and Michael Stanton gave a great presentation and explained, results 
and possible solutions, at our Board meeting.   

_____________________________________________________________________________________
______________________ 

A proposal was approved and a contract will soon be signed with Dudek to move forward on the CHRP, 
Coastal Hazard Response Plan—which simply put is to find a location inland for a new WWTP.  Not an 
easy feat on 1 square acre of land which is surrounded by Hearst and State Park properties and the 
Ocean. 

_____________________________________________________________________________________
______________________ 

The CSD pipe bridge, painting is slated to begin shortly. Staff will be sending pics to the Dept of fish and 
wild life as a minimal amount of non-native branches will need to be trimmed.  They are dead 
myoporum, and intrusive so no issue is anticipated.  

_____________________________________________________________________________________
______________________ 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 13 of 373



We have also put to rest, hopefully, that a few citizens that were insisting we should be paid as 
independent contractors are incorrect according to the IRS that states by law we are statutory 
employees. A detailed explanation was provided at the meeting and is on line. 

On September 14, 2021 the District received confirmation that the Technical Assistance request for a 
Rate Study had been approved and assigned to the RCAC. Staff effort saved the community 
approximately $30,000 - $45,000.00 for the cost of a rate study. 

_____________________________________________________________________________________
______________________ 

The CSD has responded, so far this month to 10 CPRA requests, The 2021 total from two folks is now at 
94 and grows approximately daily. 

_____________________________________________________________________________________
______________________ 

The Board, recently received a charming letter from a school counselor commending us on our web site 
and how during at-home learning it had assisted her with her education programs.  One of her students 
had compiled a list of Water Cycle Glossary of terms, which we added to the site.  It made us feel good 
as Courtney Murguia, Mary Margaret McGuire and I worked hard on it. 

Lastly Staff is always willing to give tours of the WTP and all that is required is an appointment and 
sturdy shoes.  At that time we will show you our outfall water, which looks as clear as drinking water.  
Our output solids are 0.1mg/L (liter) or less and State requirement is no greater than 3.0mg/L. 

_____________________________________________________________________________________
_______________ 

Rationale of switching to the webinar version of Zoom for the District Board meetings.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 14 of 373



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3. B. i. v. AD-HOC COMMITTEE REPORTS 
List of committee members 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 15 of 373



 ADHOC COMMITTEE REPORTS 

List of Committee Members: 

i. Status Update– Disbursements Journal Review Committee members: 
Vacancy and Vice-Chairperson Giacoletti.

ii. Status Update – Policy & Procedures Committee members:
Chairperson Kellas and Director Carson.

iii. Status Update – Parking on District Streets Committee members:
Director de la Rosa and Vice-Chairperson Giacoletti.

iv. Status Update – Budget Committee members:
Michael Hanchett, Miguel Sandoval, Luz Hernandez, Vacancy (Committee 
Chairperson)

v. Status Update – Water Committee members:
John Russell, Leroy Price, Michael Hanchett, Director Daniel de la Rosa

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 16 of 373



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

3. A. iv. DISTRICT FINANCIALS 
Cortney Murguia 
October 31, 2021 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 17 of 373



September Billing Revenue 87,072.91$        
October Billing Revenue 88,709.37$        

Past Due (60+ days) 10,320.32$        

ENDING BANK BALANCES

PACIFIC PREMIER BANK:
Money Market Account Closing Balance September 30, 2021 1,014,437.78$   
Transfer from General Checking October 14, 2021 50,000.00$        
Interest for October 26.59$               
Money Market Account Closing Balance October 31, 2021 1,064,464.37$   

Reserve Fund (250,000.00)       
Wait-list Deposits      (80,098.60)         
Customer Deposits    (8,400.00)           
Available Funds 725,965.77$      

General Checking Account October 31, 2021 126,389.70$      

LAIF Closing Balance September 30, 2021 561.30$             
 
Interest Money Market Account 2019 22,529.11$        
Interest Money Market Account 2020 12,206.44$        
Interest Money Market Account 2021 1,051.54$          

October 31, 2021

SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

        3.A.iv FINANCIAL SUMMARY

October 31, 2021
Billing

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 18 of 373



Oct 31, 21

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
1010 ꞏ Petty cash 150.00
1015 ꞏ Pac Prem Ckg-6603 125,906.05
1017 ꞏ Pacific Premier-Money Market 1,064,464.37
1050 ꞏ LAIF - non-restricted cash 560.96

Total Checking/Savings 1,191,081.38

Other Current Assets
1200 ꞏ Accounts receivable 122,847.98
1220 ꞏ A/R - Hearst Castle 11,995.72
1300 ꞏ Prepaid insurance expense 7,862.27

Total Other Current Assets 142,705.97

Total Current Assets 1,333,787.35

Fixed Assets
1400 ꞏ Fixed assets

1420 ꞏ Building and structures 279,580.67
1500 ꞏ Equipment 12,689.93
1560 ꞏ Pipe bridge 29,497.00
1580 ꞏ Sewer plant 869,352.16
1600 ꞏ Water system 235,615.43
1620 ꞏ WWTP expansion 299,565.92
1630 ꞏ Tertiary Project 568,063.00
1640 ꞏ Wellhead  Rehab Project 448,253.95
1650 ꞏ Walkway access projects 26,791.00
1660 ꞏ RO Unit 948,021.38
1680 ꞏ Generator 18,291.00

Total 1400 ꞏ Fixed assets 3,735,721.44

1450 ꞏ Construction in Progress
1670 ꞏ Reservoir / Water Tanks 287,693.56

Total 1450 ꞏ Construction in Progress 287,693.56

1690 ꞏ Accumulated depreciation (1,570,301.18)

Total Fixed Assets 2,453,113.82

TOTAL ASSETS 3,786,901.17

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Other Current Liabilities

2500 ꞏ Customer security deposits 8,500.00
2510 ꞏ Connect hookup wait list 80,098.60

Total Other Current Liabilities 88,598.60

Total Current Liabilities 88,598.60

Long Term Liabilities
2520 ꞏ USDA Loan Principal Bal 434,352.02

Total Long Term Liabilities 434,352.02

Total Liabilities 522,950.62

Equity
3200 ꞏ Fund balance (118,856.46)
3201 ꞏ Net Investment in Capital Asset 2,065,680.00
3204 ꞏ Board Assigned for Water CIP 155,505.10
3205 ꞏ Board Assigned for WW CIP 155,784.69

SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
Balance Sheet

As of October 31, 2021

Page 1
November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 19 of 373



Oct 31, 21

3206 ꞏ Board Assigned for General CIP 43,295.03
3207 ꞏ BOD committed for Oper Reserves 250,000.00
3209 ꞏ Waitlist and Security Deposits 88,798.60
3210 ꞏ Unrestricted-Undesignatd Equity 598,548.56
Net Income 25,195.03

Total Equity 3,263,950.55

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 3,786,901.17

SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
Balance Sheet

As of October 31, 2021

Page 2
November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 20 of 373



Jul-21 Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan-21 Feb Mar Apr. May June Totals
State Billing $6,340.85 $6,340.85
Property Tax $115.78 $1,381.14 $10.01 $5,809.34 $7,316.27
Water $49,269.78 $36,018.10 $36,656.78 $37,820.36 $159,765.02
Sewer $55,516.22 $40,331.83 $40,336.81 $42,047.97 $178,232.83
Service $7,910.24 $7,834.18 $7,977.48 $8,080.85 $31,802.75
Recycled Water $0.00
Late Fees $2,349.85 $3,168.75 $2,222.38 $3,159.93 $10,900.91
Grant Funds $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Total $115,161.87 $88,734.00 $93,544.31 $96,918.45 $394,358.63
Water Sold Cu Ft 357524 261467 253458 262346 1134795
Water Sold Acre ft 8.21 6.00 5.82 6.02 26.05

Jul-21 Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan-21 Feb Mar Apr. May June Totals
Revenue $115,161.87 $88,734.00 $93,544.31 $96,918.45
Expenses $95,803.89 $75,209.49 $80,233.53 $84,995.77
Balance $19,357.98 $13,524.51 $13,310.78 $11,922.68

DISTRICT REVENUE FY 2021/2022

REVENUE VS EXPENSES

$7,000.00

$27,000.00

$47,000.00

$67,000.00

$87,000.00

$107,000.00

$127,000.00

Jul‐21 Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan‐21 Feb Mar Apr. May June

State Billing Property Tax Water Sewer Service Recycled Water Late Fees Grant Funds Total

$0.00 $20,000.00 $40,000.00 $60,000.00 $80,000.00 $100,000.00 $120,000.00 $140,000.00

Jul‐21
Sep
Nov

Jan‐21

Mar
May

Totals

Expenses

Revenue

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 21 of 373



SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES
HISTORICAL FISCAL REVIEWFY 2018/2019

Month Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Fiscal Total
State Billing $26,723.91 $20,971.00 $19,858.71 $19,390.52 $86,944.14
Property Tax $1,288.59 $169.19 $7,205.82 $8,542.19 $33,187.58 $1,319.32 $4,888.55 $2,227.01 $22,928.34 $3,062.24 $1,057.02 $85,875.85
Water $41,336.59 $45,279.14 $41,178.74 $34,050.67 $30,760.16 $24,353.21 $29,009.60 $27,745.06 $24,146.67 $35,445.24 $29,158.01 $38,455.33 $400,918.42
Sewer $47,258.33 $53,156.35 $47,379.43 $39,628.31 $35,491.84 $28,149.21 $34,169.78 $32,181.86 $27,850.19 $41,666.62 $33,854.74 $44,856.07 $465,642.73
Service $7,111.73 $7,113.60 $7,113.60 $7,113.60 $7,079.40 $7,079.40 $7,147.80 $7,079.40 $7,079.40 $7,079.40 $7,045.20 $7,079.40 $85,121.93
Late Fees $461.43 $201.49 $290.08 $168.71 $600.53 $135.60 $178.43 $146.51 $126.87 $177.46 $111.54 $272.66 $2,871.31
Grant Funds $11,367.00 $18,753.05
Revenue $97,456.67 $105,750.58 $122,854.95 $88,167.11 $82,474.12 $113,876.00 $71,824.93 $72,041.38 $81,288.85 $107,297.06 $73,231.73 $111,111.00 $1,127,374.38
Expense $81,495.91 $74,250.58 $102,279.81 $104,990.12 $111,554.79 $92,037.25 $94,850.91 $94,625.06 $71,744.58 $105,016.25 $89,244.32 $98,066.81 $1,120,156.39
Balance $15,960.76 $31,500.00 $20,575.14 ($16,823.01) ($29,080.67) $21,838.75 ($23,025.98) ($22,583.68) $9,544.27 $2,280.81 ($16,012.59) $13,044.19 $7,217.99
Water Sold Cu Ft 334631 367360 332914 275609 243491 195107 236456 227602 197397 288979 236030 311046 3,246,622
Water Sold Acre f 7.68 8.43 7.64 6.33 5.59 4.48 5.43 5.23 4.53 6.63 5.42 7.14 74.53

FY 2019/2020
Month Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Fiscal Total
State Billing $25,528.71 $22,455.35 $15,776.54 $7,016.19 $70,776.79
Property Tax $1,218.61 $2,752.21 $3,126.48 $5,305.64 $6,019.52 $23,503.23 $13,612.60 $5,282.91 $2,659.00 $15,436.18 $9,385.45 $916.22 $89,218.05
Water $41,718.97 $39,623.52 $40,324.01 $43,808.36 $32,208.00 $23,432.56 $33,732.14 $34,067.23 $24,268.55 $17,909.86 $28,582.31 $36,460.31 $396,135.82
Sewer $48,137.21 $45,503.27 $45,161.69 $48,244.57 $34,916.02 $26,527.95 $39,321.56 $39,368.21 $27,637.52 $19,243.28 $29,934.22 $37,683.06 $441,678.56
Service $7,113.60 $7,045.20 $7,079.40 $7,451.10 $7,489.26 $7,344.54 $7,525.44 $7,453.08 $7,489.26 $7,489.26 $7,489.26 $7,453.08 $88,422.48
Recycled Water $0.00
Late Fees $1,957.04 $2,399.24 $1,407.87 $468.45 $316.84 $1,136.41 $237.28 $307.96 $2,793.44 $5,540.71 $4,647.78 $3,802.45 $25,015.47
Grant Funds $8,750.00 $167,376.61 $1,485.90 $8,369.50 $185,982.01
Revenue $100,145.43 $97,323.44 $122,628.16 $105,278.12 $80,949.64 $104,400.04 $94,429.02 $86,479.39 $80,624.31 $65,619.29 $80,039.02 $93,331.31 $1,111,247.17
Expense $90,205.84 $67,705.50 $94,401.58 $97,595.50 $87,822.01 $86,173.97 $85,716.44 $75,643.11 $62,582.54 $73,942.83 $90,232.61 $79,762.52 $991,784.45
Balance $9,939.59 $29,617.94 $28,226.58 $7,682.62 ($6,872.37) $18,226.07 $8,712.58 $10,836.28 $18,041.77 ($8,323.54) ($10,193.59) $13,568.79 $119,462.72
Water Sold Cu Ft 336845 319458 323518 329822 242893 179311 260006 261505 185972 137196 217871 274085 3,068,482
Water Sold Acre f 7.73 7.33 7.43 7.57 5.58 4.12 5.97 6.00 4.27 3.15 5.00 6.29 70.44

FY 2020/2021
Month Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Fiscal Total
State Billing $4,898.26 $4,898.26 $9,978.14 $5,654.87 $25,429.53
Property Tax $2,336.92 $751.11 $11.88 $6,945.71 $5,461.44 $26,458.17 $12,827.64 $1,063.98 $5,505.65 $8,582.80 $15,086.53 $2,262.87 $87,294.70
Water $40,209.97 $54,512.44 $41,179.63 $40,129.44 $30,132.26 $30,099.00 $31,207.86 $28,567.08 $27,866.11 $39,907.47 $31,637.78 $39,875.45 $435,324.49
Sewer $45,546.00 $60,488.59 $45,320.14 $44,227.62 $32,486.93 $31,269.68 $29,285.81 $31,276.88 $30,546.56 $44,784.48 $34,717.31 $44,261.59 $474,211.59
Service $7,830.48 $7,834.18 $7,910.24 $7,872.17 $8,062.36 $7,948.27 $7,910.24 $7,910.24 $7,834.18 $7,796.15 $7,910.24 $7,872.21 $94,690.96
Recycled Water $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Late Fees $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Grant Funds $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Revenue $95,923.37 $123,586.32 $99,320.15 $99,174.94 $76,142.99 $100,673.38 $81,231.55 $68,818.18 $81,730.64 $101,070.90 $89,351.86 $99,926.99 $1,116,951.27
Expense $87,144.37 $81,902.63 $114,623.38 $160,041.02 $98,357.85 $137,804.21 $111,151.88 $106,602.36 $84,771.53 $71,795.69 $91,754.68 $72,434.79 $1,218,384.39
Balance $8,779.00 $41,683.69 ($15,303.23) ($60,866.08) ($22,214.86) ($37,130.83) ($29,920.33) ($37,784.18) ($3,040.89) $29,275.21 ($2,372.82) $27,492.20 ($101,403.12)
Water Sold Cu Ft 292033 387244 297886 291236 218802 217498 215864 209660 203888 291683 230285 288809 3,144,888
Water Sold Acre f 6.70 8.89 6.84 6.69 5.02 4.99 4.96 4.81 4.68 6.70 5.29 6.63 72.20

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 22 of 373



 
 
 
 
 

 
4.  CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Review and approval of Minutes for the Regular 
Meeting on September 12, 2021. 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 23 of 373



 

 
 

SSCSD Board Meeting Minutes October 12, 2021      Page 1 of 7 
 

MEETING MINUTES 
SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
Tuesday, October 12, 2021 

5:00 pm 
 

Pursuant to San Simeon CSD Resolution 21-433 and incompliance with AB 361 this meeting occurred 
as a virtual teleconference using the Zoom app. 

 
Internet Meeting Location – Via ZOOM 

 
1. REGULAR SESSION: 5:11 PM -  

A.  Chairperson Kellas – Present  
 Vice-Chairperson Giacoletti – Present 

 Director Carson – Present   
 Director de la Rosa – Present 
 
B. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA: 
Public Comment –  
(1:47) Karina Tiwana commented that when she logged into the meeting, Zoom asked for a meeting ID 
code. She further stated that perhaps many members of the public did not understand this process 
making it difficult for them to login.  
(2:34) Julie Tacker commented about members of the public being able to participate in Board 
meetings. Stating that the process resulted in members of the public being disenfranchised and 
resulting in a Brown Act violation. She also commented that there were items missing from the meeting 
agenda. She asked the Board to add the MBS Survey matter to the meeting agenda along with the 
FPPC findings related to Charlie Grace.  
(7:04) Henry Krzciuk commented that the meeting agenda was confusing and that there only needed to 
be one meeting link. He spoke about the land survey, the Hearst Encroachment items, and the grant 
related to the water tank project asking the Board to recover funds from the contractors involved in 
these transactions.  
*(10:14) Michael Cruz commented that an on the record opinion could be obtained from Jeffrey Minnery 
as to whether the Board meeting should proceed.  
(11:10) Albert Barretto commented about the Zoom process stating if the District did not have an IT 
person that he [sic] was ok with there being issues with the meetings from time to time. He also 
commented about the street parking being a public nuisance issue.    
(12:40) Michael Donahue commented that the Board meeting needed to be rescheduled. He 
commented that the Hearst Encroachment had cost the community and that the Board needed to take 
the necessary steps to recover the losses.  
 
*(14:24) Chairperson Kellas asked for Jeffrey Minnery to please provide an opinion about the agenda 
noticing and any possible Brown Act violations. Jeffrey Minnery responded that the meeting had been 
properly agendize.   

 
C. SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS AND REPORTS: (16:02) 
A. STAFF REPORTS:  
i. Sheriff’s Report – No report was given.   
ii.  CHP Report – No report was given.  

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 24 of 373



 

 
 

SSCSD Board Meeting Minutes October 12, 2021      Page 2 of 7 
 

iii. Superintendent’s Report – (16:40) Jerry Copeland provided a summary of September 
activities.  

iv. General Manager’s Report – (17:56) Charlie Grace provided a Summary of September 
activities. Michael Stanton from MBS Survey was present at the meeting and answered Board 
members questions. (23:00) There was discussion with the Board members and Michael 
Stanton.   

v. District Financial Summary – (30:47) Charlie Grace provided a summary of the September 
financials.  

vi. District Counsel’s Report – (32:04) Jeffrey Minnery provided a summary of September 
activities.    

vii. Board Member Report – (32:30) During the General Manager’s report Charlie Grace provided 
information related to an article on Internal Revenue (IRS) findings about Director 
Compensation.  

 
A. AD-HOC COMMITTEE REPORTS:  
i. Status Update Disbursements Journal Review Committee – (33:05) No update was provided.  
ii. Status Update Policy & Procedures Committee – (33:45) Chairperson Kellas provided an 

update.  
iii. Status Update parking on District Streets – (34:08) Director de la Rosa provided an update. He 

discussed a recent Ordinance that the County had approved in Los Osos, Cayucos, and 
Cambria.  

iv. Status Update Budget Committee & Water Committee– (37:55) No update was provided.  
 
(38:35) Director Carson complemented Director de la Rosa for his work on the parking matter.  

 
Public Comment – Special Presentations and Reports 

 (40:05) Karina Tiwana commented.  
 (43:20) Julie Tacker commented.  
 (46:44) Henry Krzciuk commented.  
 (49:58) Michael Hanchett commented.  
 

D. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS: 
A. Review and approval of Minutes for the Regular Meeting on September 9, 2021.   

 
B. Review and approval of Minutes for the Special Meeting on September 30, 2021.  

 
C. Review and approval of Disbursements Journal.  

(52:24) Vice-Chairperson Giacoletti commented on the payment to Jeff Oliveira and the bills to 
legal counsel.  

 
D. Approval of a transfer of funds in the amount of $50,000 from the General checking 

account to the Money Market Account.  
 

E. Review of authorization of powers to the Board under Resolution 21-433.  
(54:00) Chairperson Kellas provided a summary of Resolution 21-433. Jeffrey Minnery clarified 
that the resolution was a re-ratification of the existing resolution that the Board had approved. 
Cortney Murguia read (in part) the resolution header included the updated dates.  

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 25 of 373



 

 
 

SSCSD Board Meeting Minutes October 12, 2021      Page 3 of 7 
 

 
Public Comment –  
(57:25) Julie Tacker commented. 
(1:00:44) Henry Krzciuk commented. 
(1:08:00) Karina Tiwana commented. 

 
(1:10:20) A motion was made to approve consent agenda with the date for Item B being September 30, 
2021 and Item E the resolution number being 21-434.   Cortney Murguia asked for clarification on the 
motion. Chairperson Kellas clarified the motion as approval of Items A-E.  
 
Motion: Chairperson Kellas 
2nd: Director Carson 
Vote: 4/0 
Absent: 0    

Roll Call: Kellas: Yes      Giacoletti: Yes     Carson: Yes       de la Rosa: Yes        
 

 
E. BUSINESS ACTION ITEMS: (1:12:00) 

 
A. REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF DRAFT SOLID WASTE RULES AND 

REGULATIONS. (1:12:55) 
 
Charlie Grace introduced the item.  
 
Public Comment –  
(1:16:10) Henry Krzciuk commented.  
(1:18:26) Julie Tacker commented.  
 
(1:21:16) A motion was made to approve the draft solid waste rules and regulations and to 
move forward with the IWMA portion.  

 
Motion: Chairperson Kellas 
2nd: Director Carson 
Vote: 4/0 
Absent: 0    

Roll Call: Kellas: Yes      Giacoletti: Yes     Carson: Yes       de la Rosa: Yes        
 

B. AUTHORIZATION FOR HARBOR OFFSHORE, INC. TO PROVIDE INSPECTION OF 
THE OCEAN OUTFALL NOT TO EXCEED THE AMOUNT OF $13,000.00. (1:23:10) 
 
Chairperson Kellas recused herself and asked that Vice-Chairperson Giacoletti take 
over.  
 
(1:24:00) Charlie Grace introduced the item.  
 
Public Comment –  
(1:25:20) Julie Tacker commented.  
(1:27:30) Michael Hanchett commented.  
 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 26 of 373



 

 
 

SSCSD Board Meeting Minutes October 12, 2021      Page 4 of 7 
 

(1:28:28) A motion was made to authorize Harbor Offshore, Inc to provide inspection of the 
ocean outfall not to exceed the amount of $13,000.00. 

 
Motion: Vice-Chairperson Giacoletti  
2nd: Director de la Rosa 
Vote: 3/0 
Recused: Kellas  
   
Roll Call:  Giacoletti: Yes        Carson: Yes       de la Rosa: Yes        

 
C. DIRECTION TO STAFF REGARDING CUSTOMER’S REQUESTS FOR CREDIT ON 

UTLITY BILLS. (1:29:30) 
 
Charlie Grace introduced the item.  
 
(1:32:05) Director Carson and Charlie Grace discussed the billing process and 
potential ideas for credits to customers accounts.  
 
Public Comment –  
(1:38:10) Joyce Orefice commented.  
(1:39:58) Karina Tiwana commented.  
 
(1:40:15) Chairperson Kellas read a letter from Jerry McLaughlin.  

 
(1:41:50) Direction was provided to staff to review the policies that have been 
submitted from other CSD’s so the Board may come to the conclusion as to which one 
the Board wants to initiate.  
 
(1:42:20) Vice-Chairperson Giacoletti asked Joyce Orefice to provide clarification 
about if the property was occupied when the high-water bill occurred.  
 
(1:44:50) Director de la Rosa asked Joyce Orefice if she had a lock on her outside 
faucet.  
 
(1:46:30) Parrish Todd commented.  
(1:48:28) Joyce Orefice commented.  
 
(1:49:35) A motion was made to have staff review all the current practices provided in 
the Board packet and return with a draft policy at the November Board meeting.  

 
Motion: Chairperson Kellas 
2nd: Vice-Chairperson de la Rosa 
Vote: 4/0 
Absent: 0    

Roll Call: Kellas: Yes      Giacoletti: Yes     Carson: Yes       de la Rosa: Yes        
 

D. CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL OF CONTRACT AMENDMENT FOR 
MANAGEMENT SERVICES FOR GRACE ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES. (1:50:28) 
 
Jeffrey Minnery introduced the item.  
 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 27 of 373



 

 
 

SSCSD Board Meeting Minutes October 12, 2021      Page 5 of 7 
 

(1:50:55) Cortney Murguia stated that Charlie Grace had left the Board meeting.  
 
(1:53:52) Director Carson stated that he supported Charlie Grace and the work that he 
done in the community. He asked for clarification about the oath of office process and 
asked if the contract revisions protected the community.  
 
(1:57:18) Vice-Chairperson Giacoletti asked about the inflating of the GES as a single 
entity. Jeffrey Minnery clarified that the contract revisions were an attempt to appoint 
Charlie Grace as the General Manager.  
 
(1:58:45) Director de la Rosa asked about Charlie Grace, Inc acting as a General 
Manager. Jeffrey Minnery replied that Charlie Grace would be acting as the General 
Manager as the sole manager of the LLC.  
 
(1:59:29) Chairperson Kellas commented that Charlie Grace had done an excellent job 
running the WWTP and maintaining the infrastructure.  
 
Public Comment –  
(2:00:40) Henry Krzciuk commented. (He was accidently muted for 5 seconds)  
(2:04:45) Julie Tacker commented.  
(2:08:12) Michael Cruz commented.  
(2:09:43) Michael Donahue commented.  
(2:10:45) Michael Hanchett commented.  
 
(2:12:27) A motion was made to approve Item 5D consideration of approval of the 
contract amendment for management services for Grace Environmental Services.  
 
Motion: Chairperson Kellas 
2nd: Director Carson  
Vote: 4/0 
Absent: 0    

Roll Call: Kellas: Yes      Giacoletti: Yes     Carson: Yes       de la Rosa: Yes       
  

E. AUTHORIZATION FOR DUDEK ENGINEERING TO COMPLETE THE COASTAL 
HAZARD RESPONSE PLAN (CHRP) PROPOSAL NOT TO EXCEED THE AMOUNT 
OF $110,000.00. (2:13:28) 
 
(2:13:50) Chairperson Kellas recused herself.  
 
(2:14:03) Vice-Chairperson Giacoletti asked for Charlie Grace to present this item. 
Cortney Murguia stated that Charlie Grace had not retuned to the meeting. Jeff 
Oliveira introduced the item.  
 
(2:18:24) Jeff Oliveira clarified that the amount should be $110,000.00 not 
$100,000.00.  
 
(2:19:25) Jeff Oliveira clarified the grant process and funding process related to the 
Coastal Hazard Response Plan (CHRP).  

 
Public Comment –  
(2:21:42) Julie Tacker commented.  

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 28 of 373



 

 
 

SSCSD Board Meeting Minutes October 12, 2021      Page 6 of 7 
 

(2:25:26) Henry Krzciuk commented.  
(2:28:55) Michael Hanchett commented.  

 
(2:30:20) Director de la Rosa commented that based on the size of the community any 
relocation would end up being close to someone’s home.   
 
(2:31:23) Director Carson stated that modern sewer plants do not smell and with 
newer technology people often do not know where the plants are located.  
 
(2:32:17) A motion was made to authorize Dudek Engineering to complete the 
proposal not to exceed the amount of $110,000.00.   
 
Motion: Vice-Chairperson Giacoletti 
2nd: Director Carson  
Vote: 3/0 
Recused: Kellas    

Roll Call: Giacoletti: Yes     Carson: Yes       de la Rosa: Yes      
 
(2:34:16) Jeffrey Minnery spoke regarding item 5D asking if the Board had any objections on 
coordinating with Chairperson Kellas to provide a response to the District Attorney’s letter. A 
consensus was reached by three (3) Board members. (Giacoletti, Carson, de la Rosa)  

 
F. DISCUSSION ON PROCEDURE TO FILL THE VACANCY ON THE SAN SIMEON 

COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT CREATED BY THE RESIGNATION OF 
DIRCTOR WILLIAM MAURER; DIRECTION TO STAFF TO POST NOTICE OF 
VACANCY PURSUANT TO GOV’T CODE 1780; SCHEDULE MEETING AT WHICH 
CANDIDATES WILL BE CONSIDERED AND THE APPOINTMENT MADE. (2:34:47) 
 
Chairperson Kellas introduced the item.  
 
Public Comment – None 
 
(2:36:10) A motion was made to direct staff to go follow the appointment process to fill the 
vacant director position and post the appropriate notices.  

 
Motion: Chairperson Kellas 
2nd: Director Carson  
Vote: 4/0 
Absent: 0    

Roll Call: Kellas: Yes      Giacoletti: Yes     Carson: Yes       de la Rosa: Yes       
 

F. CLOSED SESSION: - (2:37:20) 
Public Comment – 
(2:38:10) Henry Krzciuk commented.  

 
A. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL—EXISTING LITIGATION 

(Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)) 
Name of case: Robert Hather v. San Simeon Community Services District 

 
****RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION**** 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 29 of 373



 

 
 

SSCSD Board Meeting Minutes October 12, 2021      Page 7 of 7 
 

Report on Closed Session (20 minutes) 
Director present: Kellas, Giacoletti, and de la Rosa (quorum) 

Director Carson recused himself 
 

G. BOARD/STAFF GENERAL DISCUSSIONS AND PROPOSED AGENDA ITEMS –None 
 

H. ADJOURNMENT – @ 8:20 PM 
 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 30 of 373



 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

4.  CONSENT AGENDA 
B.     Approval of the disbursements journal 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 31 of 373



 SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
 Disbursements Journal

 November 2021

Type Date Num Name Memo Paid Amount

Paycheck 11/09/2021 2305 GWEN KELLAS Board Service  October 2 through November 1, 2021. -92.35

Paycheck 11/09/2021 2306 MARY P GIACOLETTI Board Service  October 2 through November 1, 2021. -92.35

Paycheck 11/09/2021 2307 WILLIAM J CARSON Board Service  October 2 through November 1, 2021. -92.35

Bill Pmt -Check 11/09/2021 2308
Adamski Moroski Madden 
Cumberland & Green Hather Lawsuit.  Inv 55589 dated 10/29/21. -5,898.73

Bill Pmt -Check 11/09/2021 2319
Adamski Moroski Madden 
Cumberland & Green General legal fees through 09/30/21.  Inv 55588 dated 10/29/21. -7,076.00

Bill Pmt -Check 11/09/2021 2309
California Special Districts 
Assoc (CSDA) 2022 Membership dues, ID 255. Issue date: 10/1/21. -3,150.00

Bill Pmt -Check 11/09/2021 2320
California Special Districts 
Assoc (CSDA) 2022 Membership dues, ID 255. Issue date: 10/1/21. -4.00

Bill Pmt -Check 11/09/2021 2310
Kathleen Fry Bookkeeping 
Services Bookkeeping services October 2021.  Inv CSD-2021-10 dated 10/31/21. -1,320.00

Bill Pmt -Check 11/09/2021 2311 Lori Mather Video Services Video services for regular board meeting held on 11/9/2021.  Invoice 11/9/21. -300.00

Bill Pmt -Check 11/09/2021 2312 MBS Land Surveys
Boundary survey, set property monuments, title and deed research, prep map M&R 
and calcs.  Inv 21-321 dated 10/12/21. -5,037.00

Bill Pmt -Check 11/09/2021 2313 McClatchy Company LLC
Public notice of BOD vacancy in 10/21/21 issue of Tribune. 
Order #154313 dated 10/21/21. -50.00

Bill Pmt -Check 11/09/2021 2314 Moss, Levy & Hartzheim, LLP Audit to Date for FYE 6/30/2021.  Inv 29065 dated 9/30/2021. -3,000.00

Bill Pmt -Check 11/09/2021 2315 New Times Public notice of BOD vacancy.  Inv 332086 dated 10/14/21. -54.00

Bill Pmt -Check 11/09/2021 2316 Rogelio Salas
Trim Pico hedge in unimproved right of way on 9/8/21.  
Inv 11286 dated 9/30/21. -450.00

Bill Pmt -Check 11/09/2021 2317
Simply Clear Marketing & 
Media

Monthly Website Service and Mgt fee service period  Nov 21 - Dec 20, 2021.  
Inv 40092 dated 10/18/21. -400.00

Bill Pmt -Check 11/09/2021 2318 Grace Environmental Services Operations Management November 2021. Inv 1491 dated 11/1/21. -56,231.95

Check 11/25/2021 Elec Pymt CalPERS Fiscal Svcs Div Retiree Health monthly premium. -351.72

Check 11/25/2021 Elec Pymt CalPers Fiscal Svcs Divn Monthly Unfunded Accrued Liability payment. Cust. ID # 7226734344. -1,349.42

Liability Check 11/25/2021 Elec Pymt
United States Treasury (US 
Treasury) Payroll tax payment for paychecks dated 11/9/21 -45.90

TOTAL (84,995.77)$     

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 32 of 373



 
 
 
 

 
 

 

4.  CONSENT AGENDA 
C.     Adoption of Resolution 21-435 to continue Virtual Meetings 

Pursuant to the provisions of AB 361. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 33 of 373



 

  

CONSENT AGENDA ITEM STAFF REPORT  

Item 4.C. Adoption of Resolution 21-435 to Continue Virtual Meetings 
Pursuant to the provisions of AB 361. Resolution 21-435.  
 
Summary 
 
At a Special Meeting on September 30, 2021, the Board approved District Resolution 
21-433 to continue virtual meetings of the Board of Directors and District committees 
pursuant to AB 361. AB 361 requires periodic review of the determination for a 
legislative body to continue to meet via teleconference, and if a state of emergency 
remains active, then no later than 30 days after meeting via teleconference , the body 
must make a subsequent finding that it “has reconsidered the circumstances of the state 
of emergency” and determined that in-person meetings continue to pose a risk to public 
health. During the October 12, 2021, meeting, the Board approved Resolution 21-434 
which extended the “state of emergency” for an additional 30 days. Resolution 21-435 
extends the “state of emergency” for an additional 30 days to allow continued virtual 
meetings.  
 
Possible Options:  
 

1) The Board may direct the meetings be held in person.  
2) The Board may direct that the meetings remain being held via 

teleconference.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Enc: Resolution 21-435 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 34 of 373



RESOLUTION NO. 21-435 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SAN SIMEON 
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT PROCLAIMING A LOCAL EMERGENCY 

PERSISTS, RE-RATIFYING THE PROCLAMATION OF A STATE OF EMERGENCY 
BY THE GOVENOR ISSUED ON MARCH 4, 2020, AND AUTHORIZING REMOTE 
TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS OF THE LEGISLATIVE BODIES OF THE SAN 

SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT FOR THE PERIOD OF NOVEMBER 9, 
2021 TO DECEMBER 9, 2021, PURSUANT TO BROWN ACT PROVISIONS 

 
Recitals 

  
 WHEREAS, the San Simeon Community Services District ("District") is committed to 
preserving and nurturing public access and participation in meetings of the Board of Directors; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, all meetings of the District’s legislative bodies are open and public, as 
required by the Ralph M. Brown Act (Gov. Code, §§ 54950 – 54963), so that any member of the 
public may attend, participate, and watch the District’s legislative bodies conduct their business; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Brown Act, Government Code section 54953(e), makes provision for 
remote teleconferencing participation in meetings by members of a legislative body, without 
compliance with the requirements of Government Code section 54953(b)(3), subject to the 
existence of certain conditions; and 
 
 WHEREAS, a required condition is that a state of emergency is declared by the Governor 
pursuant to Government Code section 8625, proclaiming the existence of conditions of disaster or 
of extreme peril to the safety of persons and property within the state caused by conditions as 
described in Government Code section 8558; and 

 
WHEREAS, a proclamation is made when there is an actual incident, threat of disaster, or 

extreme peril to the safety of persons and property within the jurisdictions that are within the 
District’s boundaries, caused by natural, technological or human-caused disasters; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is further required that state or local officials have imposed or recommended 
measures to promote social distancing, or, the legislative body meeting in person would present 
imminent risks to the health and safety of attendees; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors previously adopted a Resolution, Number 21-433 on 

October 12, 2021, finding that the requisite conditions exist for the legislative bodies of the District 
to conduct remote teleconference meetings without compliance with paragraph (3) of subdivision 
(b) of section 54953; and 

 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 35 of 373



WHEREAS, as a condition of extending the use of the provisions found in section 
54953(e), the Board of Directors must reconsider the circumstances of the state of emergency that 
exists in the District, and the Board of Directors has done so; and 
 

WHEREAS, emergency conditions persist in the District, specifically, the State of 
Emergency declared by Governor Newsom on March 4, 2020, due to COVID-19, and the 
Proclamation of Local Emergency declared by the County of San Luis Obispo on March 13, 2020; 
and 

WHEREAS, on September 1, 2021, the San Luis Obispo County Health Officer issued 
Order Number 6 requiring face coverings in all public indoor settings attributable to the rise in 
SARS-CoV-2 Delta Variant; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors does hereby find that the rise in SARS-CoV-2 Delta 

Variant has caused, and will continue to cause, conditions of peril to the safety of persons within 
the District that are likely to be beyond the control of services, personnel, equipment, and facilities 
of the District, and desires to affirm a local emergency exists and re-ratify the proclamation of 
state of emergency by the Governor of the State of California and the San Luis Obispo County 
Health Officer’s Order Number 6; and 

 
WHEREAS, as a consequence of the local emergency persisting, the Board of Directors 

does hereby find that the legislative bodies of the District shall continue to conduct their meetings 
without compliance with paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) of Government Code section 54953, as 
authorized by subdivision (e) of section 54953, and that such legislative bodies shall continue to 
comply with the requirements to provide the public with access to the meetings as prescribed in 
paragraph (2) of subdivision (e) of section 54953; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors will ensure that the public has access to meetings and 

the opportunity to participate in meetings in the interest of transparency and as required by AB 
361. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the San 
Simeon Community Services District, as follows: 
 

1. Recitals. The Recitals set forth above are true and correct and are incorporated 
into this Resolution by this reference. 
 

2. Affirmation that Local Emergency Persists. The Board of Directors hereby 
considers the conditions of the state of emergency in the District and proclaims 
that a local emergency persists throughout the District, and COVID-19 has 
caused, and will continue to cause, conditions of peril to the safety of persons 
within the District that are likely to be beyond the control of services, personnel, 
equipment, and facilities of the District. 

 
3. Re-ratification of Governor’s Proclamation of a State of Emergency. The Board 

hereby ratifies the Governor of the State of California’s Proclamation of State of 
Emergency, effective as of its issuance date of March 4, 2020. 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 36 of 373



 
4. Remote Teleconference Meetings. The General Manager and Staff of the District 

are hereby authorized and directed to take all actions necessary to carry out the 
intent and purpose of this Resolution including, continuing to conduct open and 
public meetings in accordance with Government Code section 54953(e) and other 
applicable provisions of the Brown Act. 
 

5. Effective Date of Resolution. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon 
its adoption and shall be effective until the earlier of (i) December 9, 2021, or 
such time the Board of Directors adopts a subsequent resolution in accordance 
with Government Code section 54953(e)(3) to extend the time during which the 
legislative bodies of the District may continue to teleconference without 
compliance with paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) of section 54953. 

 
 ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the San Simeon Community Services District 
on November 9, 2021, by the following roll call votes: 
 
AYES: 
NOES:  
ABSENT: 
ABSTAINED:  

 
      _______________________________ 
      President, Board of Directors of the  

San Simeon Community Services District 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
General Manager of the 
San Simeon Community Services District 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
 

________________________________ 
Jeffrey A. Minnery, District Counsel 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 37 of 373



4. CONSENT AGENDA
D. Adoption of Resolution 21-436 to allow the District

rental of a safe deposit box. 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 38 of 373



 

  

CONSENT AGENDA ITEM STAFF REPORT  

Item 4.D. Adoption of Resolution 21-436 to allow the District rental of 
a safe deposit box.  
 
Summary 
 
Current language in the policy and procedures manual requires that the hard drive of 
the computer located at the District office be backed up and stored in a safe deposit 
box. The language reads: 
 
8.04 Storage. The official minutes of the regular and special meetings of the Board shall 
be saved on the District computer in accordance with the Records Retention Policy.  
(Please see Resolution 19-407.) This computer shall be backed up onto a hard drive that 
is stored in a safe deposit box that is located at an offsite location. Approved minutes of 
the Board of Directors’ meetings shall be public records open to inspection by the public. 
The Secretary shall make copies available to any person who has made a request in 
compliance with the California Public Records Request Act.  

Past practice was that GES paid for a safe deposit box at the local Pacific Premiere 
Banking Institute where the hard drive was being stored. Recent changes in the banking 
regulations requires that the signers on a safe deposit box have an account at the bank 
where the box is located. GES no longer meets the bank’s requirements to rent the safe 
deposit box.  
 
Possible Options: 
 

1) The Board may approve the resolution.  
2) The Board may direct GES staff to work with the ad-hoc committee and update 

the existing language in the Policy and Procedures Manual.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Enc:  Resolution 21-436 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 39 of 373



 

RES 21-436                 Page 1  
 

RESOLUTION NO. 21-436 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SAN SIMEON  
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT AUTHORIZING SIGNATURES FOR THE 

RENTAL OF A SAFE DEPSOIT BOX ON BEHALF OF THE SAN SIMEON 
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT AT PACIFIC PREMIERE BANK 

 
WHEREAS, the San Simeon Community Services District’s (“District”) priorities as to its 
investments are, in the following order, preservation of principal, liquidity of principal and return 
on investment; and 
 
WHEREAS, the rental of a safe deposit box is consistent with these priorities. 
 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the San Simeon Community 
Services District as follows: 
 
Section 1:  The following persons are authorized to sign on behalf of the District for rental of a 
safe deposit box:  
 

• Charles Grace  
• Cortney Murguia  

 
 
Section 2:  This authorization shall remain in force and effect until revoked by written notice to 
Pacific Premiere Bank of the action taken by the Board of Directors of the District.   
 
Section 3:  Pacific Premiere Bank is authorized and directed to honor and recognize such actual 
or purported signatures by Charles Grace and Cortney Murguia, provided they resemble the 
signatures duly certified and filed with the Pacific Premiere Bank. 

Passed and adopted this 9th day of November 2021, on a motion made by _________________   
and seconded by ___________________________ , and on the following roll call vote to wit: 

Chairperson Kellas:          Director de la Rosa:    
Director Carson:          Director Giacoletti: 

    
The foregoing Resolution is hereby adopted this 9th day of November 2021.  
            
      ___________________________________ 

       President, Board of Directors of the  
San Simeon Community Services District 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
 

________________________________ 
Jeffrey A. Minnery, District Counsel 

    

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 40 of 373



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

5. A. Business Items 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 41 of 373



PUBLIC HEARING ITEM STAFF REPORT 

ITEM 5.A. INTRODUCTION OF ORDINANCE NO. 123 OF THE SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES
DISTRICT TO ADOPT MANDATORY SOLID WASTE, ORGANIC WASTE, AND RECYCLING MATERIALS
RULES AND REGULATIONS AND MAKING A DETERMINATION OF EXEMPTION UNDER CEQA.

To: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

Board of Directors 

General Manager 

November 9, 2021 

SUBJECT: Introduction of Ordinance No. 123 Regarding Solid Waste, Organic 
Waste, and Recycling Materials 

RECOMMENDATION  

Staff recommends that the Board of Directors: 

1. Hold a public hearing and receive public testimony on Ordinance No. 123.

2. Waive full reading, make any amendments to, and introduce Ordinance No.
123 by title:

ORDINANCE NO. 123 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
TO ADOPT MANDATORY SOLID WASTE, ORGANIC WASTE, AND 

RECYCLING MATERIALS RULES AND REGULATIONS AND MAKING A 
DETERMINATION OF EXEMPTION UNDER CEQA 

3. Direct that the proposed ordinance, be placed on the agenda for the December
___, 2021, Board of Directors Meeting for adoption.

BACKGROUND 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 42 of 373



On March 19, 2021, a LAFCO Certificate of Completion was recorded which officially 
activated the solid waste latent power to the San Simeon Community Services District 
(SSCSD). This power awards the SSCSD the authority to provide for the collection and 
disposal of garbage and refuse matter directly with Mission Country Disposal, the 
franchisee. Solid waste service for the community of San Simeon is currently provided by 
San Luis Obispo County through a franchise agreement with Mission Country Disposal. 
The District, through LAFCO, established solid waste power, primarily a move to keep 
franchise fees within the San Simeon community. Conditions of LAFCO approval 
regarding the solid waste power transition require the District to participate in the San Luis 
Obispo Integrated Waste Management Authority (IWMA) and comply with all policies and 
ordinances of the IWMA. To make the transition from the County of San Luis Obispo to 
the SSCSD for the direct oversight of solid waste services, the Board needs to adopt rules 
and regulations pertaining to the collection of solid waste within the District.  

Senate Bill No. 1383 (SB 1383) was signed into law on September 19, 2016, to reduce 
organic waste disposal by 75% and increase edible food recovery by 20%, by 2025. SB 
1383 is the most significant waste reduction mandate to be adopted in the State of 
California in the last 30 years and requires all jurisdictions to implement a mandatory 
organic recycling ordinance by January 1, 2022. This Legislation requires all businesses, 
residents, and multi-family apartments to have access to recycling programs that capture 
food scraps, landscaping waste, among other organic waste materials. 

As a result of SB 1383, the California Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery 
(CalRecycle), which is the state department tasked with administering California's waste 
and recycling programs, developed prescriptive regulations to achieve the State's outlined 
organic waste disposal goals by 2025. Over the last two years, CalRecycle conducted 
informal hearings with local governments and stakeholders to develop regulations to 
achieve the State's organic waste reduction mandates. In November 2020, CalRecycle 
released the final regulations for SB 1383. 

The adoption of Ordinance 123 will meet the requirements of SB 1383 and provide 
necessary rules and regulations for the disposal and collection of waste materials within 
the District.  

ANALYSIS  

Requirements of Senate Bill 1383  

As a result of SB 1383 and the regulations established by CalRecycle, the District will 
have to implement the following practices to be considered compliant: 

• Provide organic waste recycling services; 
• Inspect and enforce compliance with SB 1383 by adopting an enforcement 

ordinance; 
• Implement an edible food recovery program that recovers edible food from the 

waste stream; 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 43 of 373



• Conduct outreach and education to all affected parties, including generators, 
haulers, facilities, and edible food recovery organizations; 

• Procure recycled organic waste products like compost, mulch, and renewable 
natural gas; and 

• Maintain accurate and timely records of SB 1383 compliance for annual reporting 
requirements. 

Education, outreach, inspection, monitoring, and reporting will be handled by the IWMA 
for the benefit of San Simeon Community Services District if so designated.  

Ordinance Adoption 

As described in this staff report, the District is required to adopt an enforceable ordinance 
to compel businesses and residents to sort, recycle, and properly dispose of waste and 
to comply with other requirements of SB 1383. The adoption of Ordinance 123 will also 
provide necessary rules and regulations for the disposal and collection of waste materials 
within the District as directed by LAFCO.  

The attached ordinance (Attachment A) includes the following required provisions: 
 
Section 1. Title of Ordinance 
Section 2. Purpose of the Ordinance 
Section 3. Definitions 
Section 4. Requirements for Single-Family Premises 
Section 5. Requirements for Multi-Family Residential Dwellings 
Section 6. Requirements for Commercial Businesses 
Section 7. Waivers for Multi-Family Premises and Commercial Premises 
Section 8. Requirements for Commercial Edible Food Generators 
Section 9. Requirements for Food Recovery Organizations and Services 
Section 10. Requirements for Haulers and Facility Operators 
Section 11. Self-Hauler Requirements 
Section 12. Inspections and Investigations 
Section 13. Collection Rates and Collection Of Delinquent Fees And Charges 
Section 14. Franchise for Collection - Authorization 
Section 15. Regulations For Accumulation Of Solid Waste, Cast Offs, Rubble, 

And Refuse 
Section 16. Clearing Of Accumulated Solid Waste And Rubble 
Section 17. Storage And Placement Of Standard Containers For Pick-Up 
Section 18. Unlawful Collection 
Section 19. Condition of Collection Trucks 
Section 20. Exceptions 
Section 21. Enforcement 
Section 22. CalRecycle Issued Waivers 
Section 23. CEQA 
Section 24. Severability 
Section 25. Effective Date 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 44 of 373



ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED  
 
The District may: 

1. Decide not to adopt Ordinance No. 123; however, staff does not recommend this 
as an adoption of an ordinance is a requirement of SB 1383. 

2. Direct staff to return with a revised ordinance to be presented at a future Board 
of Directors meeting. 

CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT 

District legal counsel has evaluated proposed Ordinance No. 123 to determine whether it 
will have a significant effect on the environment. Legal counsel has determined that the 
proposed Ordinance is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
pursuant to State CEQA Guidelines Sections 15061(b)(3) and 15308, on the grounds that 
it can be seen with certainty that the enhanced solid waste regulations, as provided for in 
Ordinance No. 123 will not have a significant effect on the environment and that the new 
requirements, which strengthen requirements for the handling of all waste materials, 
represent actions by a regulatory agency for the protection of the environment. 

FISCAL REVIEW 

None at this time. 

CONCLUSION  

Staff recommends that the Board of Directors: 

1. Hold a public hearing and receive public testimony on Ordinance No. 123. 
 

2. Waive full reading, make any amendments to, and introduce Ordinance No. 
123 by title: 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 123 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
TO ADOPT MANDATORY SOLID WASTE, ORGANIC WASTE, AND 

RECYCLING MATERIALS RULES AND REGULATIONS AND MAKING A 
DETERMINATION OF EXEMPTION UNDER CEQA 

 

3. Direct that the proposed ordinance, be placed on the agenda for the 
December ___, 2021, Board of Directors Meeting for adoption. 

 
 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 45 of 373



Attachment A: Draft Ordinance 123 Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and 
Recycling Materials Ordinance 
 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 46 of 373



 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT TO 
ADOPT MANDATORY SOLID WASTE, ORGANIC WASTE, AND RECYCLING 

MATERIALS RULES AND REGULATIONS 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Section 1. Title of Ordinance ........................................................................................ 2 

Section 2. Purpose of the Ordinance ........................................................................... 2 

Section 3. Definitions .................................................................................................... 2 

Section 4. Requirements for Single-Family Premises .............................................. 14 

Section 5. Requirements for Multi-Family Residential Dwellings ........................... 15 

Section 6. Requirements for Commercial Businesses ............................................ 17 

Section 7. Waivers for Multi-Family Premises and Commercial Premises ............ 20 

Section 8. Requirements for Commercial Edible Food Generators ........................ 22 

Section 9. Requirements for Food Recovery Organizations and Services ............ 24 

Section 10. Requirements for Haulers and Facility Operators ................................ 25 

Section 11. Self-Hauler Requirements ....................................................................... 26 

Section 12. Inspections and Investigations .............................................................. 28 

Section 13. Collection Rates and Collection Of Delinquent Fees And Charges .... 29 

Section 14. Franchise for Collection - Authorization ............................................... 29 

Section 15. Regulations For Accumulation Of Solid Waste, Cast Offs, Rubble, And 
Refuse ................................................................................................... 29 

Section 16. Clearing Of Accumulated Solid Waste And Rubble ............................. 30 

Section 17. Storage And Placement Of Standard Containers For Pick-Up ............ 32 

Section 18. Unlawful Collection ................................................................................. 32 

Section 19. Condition of Collection Trucks .............................................................. 33 

Section 20. Exceptions ............................................................................................... 33 

Section 21. Enforcement ............................................................................................ 33 

Section 22. CalRecycle Issued Waivers .................................................................... 38 

Section 23. CEQA ........................................................................................................ 38 

Section 24. Severability .............................................................................................. 39 

Section 25. Effective Date ........................................................................................... 39 

 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 47 of 373



Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 1 of 40 

ORDINANCE NO. 123 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT TO ADOPT 
MANDATORY SOLID WASTE, ORGANIC WASTE, AND RECYCLING MATERIALS 
RULES AND REGULATIONS AND MAKING A DETERMINATION OF EXEMPTION 

UNDER CEQA  

WHEREAS, the San Simeon Community Services District (“District”) is a community 
services district duly formed under Government Code Section 61000 et seq. to provide 
community services within the District’s service area; and 

WHEREAS, Government Code Section 61600(c) authorizes Community Services 
Districts to provide the collection and disposal of solid waste; and  

WHEREAS, Assembly Bill 939 of 1989, the California Integrated Waste Management 
Act of 1989 (California Public Resources Code Section 40000, et seq., as amended, 
supplemented, superseded, and replaced from time to time), requires jurisdictions to reduce, 
reuse, and recycle (including composting) Solid Waste generated to the maximum extent 
feasible before any incineration or landfill disposal of waste, to conserve water, energy, and 
other natural resources, and to protect the environment; and 

WHEREAS, Assembly Bill 341 of 2011 places requirements on Commercial 
Businesses and Multi-Family Premises that generate a specified threshold amount of Solid 
Waste to arrange for recycling services and requires jurisdictions to implement a mandatory 
Commercial recycling program; and  

WHEREAS, Assembly Bill 1826 of 2014 requires Commercial Businesses and Multi-
Family Premises that generate a specified threshold amount of Solid Waste, Recyclable 
Materials, and Organic Materials per week to arrange for recycling services for that waste, 
requires jurisdictions to implement a recycling program to divert Organic Materials from 
Commercial Businesses and Multi-Family Premises subject to the law, and requires 
jurisdictions to implement a mandatory Commercial Organic Materials recycling program; and 

WHEREAS, SB 1383, the Short-lived Climate Pollutant Reduction Act of 2016, 
requires CalRecycle to develop regulations to reduce Organic Waste in landfills as a source 
of methane. The regulations place requirements on multiple entities including jurisdictions, 
residential households, Multi-Family Premises, Commercial Businesses, Commercial Edible 
Food Generators, haulers, Self-Haulers, Food Recovery Organizations, and Food Recovery 
Services to support achievement of the SB 1383 statewide Organic Waste disposal reduction 
targets; and  

WHEREAS, SB 1383, the Short-lived Climate Pollutant Reduction Act of 2016, 
requires jurisdictions to adopt and enforce an ordinance or enforceable mechanism to 
implement relevant provisions of SB 1383 Regulations; and  

WHEREAS, this Ordinance implements rules, regulations, and the requirements of AB 
341, AB 1826, and SB 1383. 

THE SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT DOES HEARBY ORDAIN 
AS FOLLOWS: 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 48 of 373



Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 2 of 40 

Section 1. Title of Ordinance 
This chapter shall be entitled “Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling 
Materials Ordinance.” 

Section 2. Purpose of the Ordinance  
The Purpose of the Ordinance is to assure the continuance of a collection and 

disposal of Solid Waste, Recyclable Materials, and Organic Waste for the benefit all 
citizens of the District.  It is necessary that rules, regulations, and procedures be 
established for the health and safety of all residents and guests of the community. 
Procedures related to the disposal and collection of Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and 
Recyclable Materials and are established by the Franchisee and all parties subject to this 
Ordinance are directed to the Franchisee to access general information and to start, 
change, or verify service. 

Section 3. Definitions 
The following words, terms, phrases, and their derivations have the meanings given 
herein. When consistent with the context, words used in the present tense include the 
future tense, and words in the singular number include the plural number. 

(a) “Alternative Daily Cover (ADC)” has the same meaning as in Section 20690 of 
Title 27 of the California Code of Regulations. 

(b) “Alternative Intermediate Cover (AIC)” has the same meaning as in Section 
20700 of Title 27 of the California Code of Regulations. 

(c) “Bulky Item” means discarded appliances (including refrigerators), furniture, 
tires, carpets, mattresses, Yard Trimmings and/or wood waste, and similar 
large items which can be handled by two (2) people, weigh no more than two 
hundred (200) pounds, and require special collection due to their size or nature, 
but can be collected without the assistance of special loading equipment (such 
as forklifts or cranes) and without violating vehicle load limits. Bulky Items must 
be generated by the customer and at the service address wherein the Bulky 
Items are collected.  Bulky Items do not include abandoned automobiles, large 
auto parts, trees, construction and demolition debris, or items herein defined 
as Excluded Waste. 

(d) “CalRecycle” means California's Department of Resources Recycling and 
Recovery, which is the Department designated with responsibility for 
developing, implementing, and enforcing SB 1383 Regulations on jurisdictions 
(and others).  

(e) “California Code of Regulations” or “CCR” means the State of California Code 
of Regulations. CCR references in this Ordinance are preceded with a number 
that refers to the relevant Title of the CCR (e.g., “14 CCR” refers to Title 14 of 
CCR). 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 49 of 373



Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 3 of 40 

(f) “Cast Offs” means discarded mattresses, couches, chairs, and other household 
furniture, but does not include rubble or Solid Waste. 

(g) “District Enforcement Official” means the District General Manager, authorized 
person(s), or the District Designee(s) who is/are partially or whole responsible 
for enforcing the Ordinance.  

(h) “Commercial Business” or “Commercial” means a firm, partnership, 
proprietorship, joint-stock company, corporation, or association, whether for-
profit or nonprofit, strip mall, or industrial facility. 

(i) “Commercial Edible Food Generator” includes a Tier One or a Tier Two 
Commercial Edible Food Generator as defined in this Section 3 or as otherwise 
defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(73) and (a)(74). For the purposes of this 
definition, Food Recovery Organizations and Food Recovery Services are not 
Commercial Edible Food Generators pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(7). 

(j) “Community Composting” means any activity that Composts green material, 
agricultural material, food material, and vegetative food material, alone or in 
combination, and the total amount of feedstock and Compost on-site at any 
one time does not exceed 100 cubic yards and 750 square feet, as specified in 
14 CCR Section 17855(a)(4); or, as otherwise defined by 14 CCR Section 
18982(a)(8). 

(k) “Compliance Review” means a review of records by the District to determine 
compliance with this Ordinance. 

(l) “Compost” has the same meaning as in 14 CCR Section 17896.2(a)(4), (or any 
variation thereof) includes a controlled biological decomposition of Organic 
Materials yielding a safe and nuisance free Compost product.  

(m) “Contractor” means franchisee, organized and operating under the laws of the 
State and its officers, directors, employees, agents, companies, related-parties, 
affiliates, subsidiaries, and subcontractors.  

(n) “County Enforcement Official” means a county agency enforcement official, if 
so if designated for enforcing the Ordinance in conjunction or consultation with 
District Enforcement Official. 

(o) “Customer” means the Person whom Contractor submits its billing invoice to 
and collects payment from for Collection services provided to a Premises. The 
Customer may be either the Occupant or Owner of the Premises. 

(p) “C&D” means construction and demolition debris. 

(q) “County” means the County of San Luis Obispo, a political subdivision of the 
State of California. 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 50 of 373



Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 4 of 40 

(r) “Designated Waste” means non-Hazardous Waste which may pose special 
Disposal problems because of its potential to contaminate the environment, 
and which may be Disposed of only in Class II Disposal sites or Class III 
Disposal sites pursuant to a variance issued by the California Department of 
Health Services. Designated Waste consists of those substances classified as 
Designated Waste by the State, in California Code of Regulations Title 23, 
Section 2522 as may be amended from time to time. 

(s) “Designee” means a person or entity that the District contracts with or otherwise 
agrees and arranges to carry out any of the District’s responsibilities of this 
Ordinance as authorized in 14 CCR Section 18981.2. A Designee may be an 
individual person, a government entity, a hauler, a private entity, or a 
combination of those entities. 

(t) “Discarded Materials” means Recyclable Materials, Organic Materials, and 
Solid Waste placed by a Generator in a collection container and/or at a location 
for the purposes of collection excluding Excluded Waste. 

(u) “District” means the San Simeon Community Services District, which is a 
California Special District, a form of local government created by a local 
community to meet a specific need or needs, and all the territory lying within its 
boundaries as presently existing or as such boundaries may be modified from 
time to time. 

(v) “Edible Food” means food intended for human consumption, or as otherwise 
defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(18). For the purposes of this Ordinance 
or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(18), “Edible Food” is not 
Solid Waste if it is recovered and not discarded. Nothing in this Ordinance or in 
14 CCR, Division 7, Chapter 12 requires or authorizes the Recovery of Edible 
Food that does not meet the food safety requirements of the California Health 
and Safety Code, including the California Retail Food Code. 

(w) “Enforcement Action" means an action of District or its Designee to address 
non-compliance with this Ordinance including, but not limited to, issuing 
administrative citations, fines, penalties, or using other remedies. 

(x) “Excluded Waste” means Hazardous Substance, Hazardous Waste, Infectious 
Waste, Designated Waste, volatile, corrosive, medical waste, infectious, 
regulated radioactive waste, and toxic substances or material that facility 
operator(s), which receive materials from the District and its Generators, 
reasonably believe(s) would, as a result of or upon acceptance, transfer, 
processing, or disposal, be a violation of local, State, or Federal law, regulation, 
or Ordinance, including: land use restrictions or conditions, waste that cannot 
be disposed of in Class III landfills or accepted at the facility by permit 
conditions, waste that in District, or its Designee’s reasonable opinion would 
present a significant risk to human health or the environment, cause a nuisance 
or otherwise create or expose District, or its Designee, to potential liability; but 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 51 of 373



Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 5 of 40 

not including de minimis volumes or concentrations of waste of a type and 
amount normally found in Single-Family or Multi-Family Solid Waste after 
implementation of programs for the safe collection, processing, recycling, 
treatment, and disposal of batteries and paint in compliance with Sections 
41500 and 41802 of the California Public Resources Code. 

(y) “Food Distributor” means a company that distributes food to entities including, 
but not limited to, Supermarkets and Grocery Stores, or as otherwise defined 
in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(22). 

(z) “Food Facility” has the same meaning as in Section 113789 of the Health and 
Safety Code. 

(aa) “Food Recovery” means actions to collect and distribute food for human 
consumption that otherwise would be disposed, or as otherwise defined in 14 
CCR Section 18982(a)(24). 

(bb) “Food Recovery Organization” means an entity that engages in the collection 
or receipt of Edible Food from Commercial Edible Food Generators and 
distributes that Edible Food to the public for Food Recovery either directly or 
through other entities or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(25), 
including, but not limited to: 

(1) A food bank as defined in Section 113783 of the Health and Safety 
Code; 

(2) A nonprofit charitable organization as defined in Section 113841 of the 
Health and Safety code; and, 

(3) A nonprofit charitable temporary Food Facility as defined in Section 
113842 of the Health and Safety Code. 

A Food Recovery Organization is not a Commercial Edible Food Generator for 
the purposes of this Ordinance and implementation of 14 CCR, Division 7, 
Chapter 12 pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(7).  

If the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(25) for Food Recovery 
Organization differs from this definition, the definition in 14 CCR Section 
18982(a)(25) shall apply to this Ordinance. 

(cc) “Food Recovery Service” means a person or entity that collects and transports 
Edible Food from a Commercial Edible Food Generator to a Food Recovery 
Organization or other entities for Food Recovery, or as otherwise defined in 14 
CCR Section 18982(a)(26). A Food Recovery Service is not a Commercial 
Edible Food Generator for the purposes of this Ordinance and implementation 
of 14 CCR, Division 7, Chapter 12 pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(7). 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 52 of 373



Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 6 of 40 

(dd) “Food Scraps” means those Discarded Materials that will decompose and/or 
putrefy including: (i) all kitchen and table Food Waste; (ii) animal or vegetable 
waste that is generated during or results from the storage, preparation, cooking 
or handling of food stuffs; (iii) fruit waste, grain waste, dairy waste, meat, and 
fish waste; and, (iv) vegetable trimmings, houseplant trimmings and other 
Compostable Organic Waste common to the occupancy of Residential 
dwellings. Food Scraps are a subset of Food Waste. Food Scraps excludes 
fats, oils, and grease when such materials are Source Separated from other 
Food Scraps.  

(ee) “Food Service Provider” means an entity primarily engaged in providing food 
services to institutional, governmental, Commercial, or industrial locations of 
others based on contractual arrangements with these types of organizations, 
or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(27). 

(ff) “Food-Soiled Paper” is compostable paper material that has come in contact 
with Food Scraps or liquid, such as, but not limited to, compostable paper 
plates, napkins, and pizza boxes.  

(gg) “Food Waste” means Source Separated Food Scraps and Food-Soiled Paper.  

(hh) “Food Waste Self-Hauler” means a Self-Hauler who generates and hauls, 
utilizing their own employees and equipment, an average of one cubic yard or 
more per week, or 6,500 pounds or more per quarter of their own Food Waste 
to a location or facility that is not owned and operated by that Self-Hauler. Food 
Waste Self-Haulers are a subset of Self-Haulers.  

(ii) “Franchisee” means the person, entity, or Company with a Franchise 
Agreement to collect, receive, carry, haul or transport Discarded Materials 
within the District and shall include the agents or employees of the Franchisee. 

(jj) “Franchise Agreement” means an agreement with a Franchisee. 

(kk) “Generator” means a person or entity that is responsible for the initial creation 
of one or more types of Discarded Materials. 

(ll) “Grocery Store” means a store primarily engaged in the retail sale of canned 
food; dry goods; fresh fruits and vegetables; fresh meats, fish, and poultry; and 
any area that is not separately owned within the store where the food is 
prepared and served, including a bakery, deli, and meat and seafood 
departments, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(30). 

(mm) “Hauler Route” means the designated itinerary or sequence of stops for each 
segment of the District’s collection service area, or as otherwise defined in 14 
CCR Section 18982(a)(31.5).  

(nn) “Hazardous Substance” means any of the following: (a) any substances 
defined, regulated or listed (directly or by reference) as "Hazardous 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 53 of 373



Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 7 of 40 

Substances", "hazardous materials", "Hazardous Wastes", "toxic waste", 
"pollutant", or "toxic substances", or similarly identified as hazardous to human 
health or the environment, in or pursuant to: (i) the Comprehensive 
Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act (CERCLA) of 1980, 
42 USC §9601 et seq. (CERCLA); (ii) the Hazardous Materials Transportation 
Act, 49 USC §1802, et seq.; (iii) the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, 
42 USC §6901 et seq.; (iv) the Clean Water Act, 33 USC §1251 et seq.; (v) 
California Health and Safety Code §§25115-25117, 25249.8, 25281, and 
25316; (vi) the Clean Air Act, 42 USC §7901 et seq.; and, (vii) California Water 
Code §13050; (b) any amendments, rules or regulations promulgated 
thereunder to such enumerated statutes or acts currently existing or hereafter 
enacted; and, (c) any other hazardous or toxic substance, material, chemical, 
waste or pollutant identified as hazardous or toxic or regulated under any other 
Applicable Law currently existing or hereinafter enacted, including, without 
limitation, friable asbestos, polychlorinated biphenyl’s (PCBs), petroleum, 
natural gas, and synthetic fuel products, and by-products. 

(oo) “Hazardous Waste” means all substances defined as Hazardous Waste, 
acutely Hazardous Waste, or extremely Hazardous Waste by the State in 
Health and Safety Code §25110.02, §25115, and §25117 or in the future 
amendments to or recodifications of such statutes or identified and listed as 
solar panels from residential premises, and Hazardous Waste by the U.S. 
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), pursuant to the Federal Resource 
Conservation and Recovery Act (42 USC §6901 et seq.), all future 
amendments thereto, and all rules and regulations promulgated thereunder. 

(pp) “High Diversion Organic Waste Processing Facility” means a facility that is in 
compliance with the reporting requirements of 14 CCR Section 18815.5(d) and 
meets or exceeds an annual average Mixed Waste organic content Recovery 
rate of 50 percent between January 1, 2022 and December 31, 2024, and 75 
percent after January 1, 2025, as calculated pursuant to 14 CCR Section 
18815.5(e) for Organic Waste received from the “Mixed waste organic 
collection stream” as defined in 14 CCR Section 17402(a)(11.5); or, as 
otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(33).  

(qq) “Infectious Waste” means (a) equipment, instruments, utensils and other 
fomites of a disposable nature from the rooms of patients who are suspected 
to have or have been diagnosed as having a communicable disease and must, 
therefore, be isolated as required by public health agencies; (b) laboratory 
wastes, including pathological specimens (i.e., all tissues, specimens of blood 
elements, excreta and secretions obtained from patients or laboratory animals) 
and disposable fomites (any substance that may harbor or transmit pathogenic 
organisms) attendant thereto; and/or (c) surgical operating room pathologic 
specimens - including recognizable anatomical parts, human tissue, 
anatomical human remains and disposable materials from hospitals, clinics, 
outpatient areas and emergency rooms, as defined in 14 CCR Section 
17225.36. 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 54 of 373



Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 8 of 40 

(rr) “Inspection” means a site visit where a District reviews records, containers, and 
an entity’s collection, handling, recycling, or landfill disposal of Recyclable 
Materials, Organic Waste, Solid Waste or Edible Food handling to determine if 
the entity is complying with requirements set forth in this Ordinance, or as 
otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(35). 

(ss) “Large Event” means an event, including, but not limited to, a sporting event or 
a flea market, that charges an admission price, or is operated by a local agency, 
and serves an average of more than 2,000 individuals per day of operation of 
the event, at a location that includes, but is not limited to, a public, nonprofit, or 
privately owned park, parking lot, golf course, street system, or other open 
space when being used for an event. If the definition in 14 CCR Section 
18982(a)(38) differs from this definition, the definition in 14 CCR Section 
18982(a)(38) shall apply to this Ordinance. 

(tt) “Large Venue” means a permanent venue facility that annually seats or serves 
an average of more than 2,000 individuals within the grounds of the facility per 
day of operation of the venue facility. For purposes of this Ordinance and 
implementation of 14 CCR, Division 7, Chapter 12, a venue facility includes, 
but is not limited to, a public, nonprofit, or privately owned or operated stadium, 
amphitheater, arena, hall, amusement park, conference or civic center, zoo, 
aquarium, airport, racetrack, horse track, performing arts center, fairground, 
museum, theater, or other public attraction facility. For purposes of this 
Ordinance and implementation of 14 CCR, Division 7, Chapter 12, a site under 
common ownership or control that includes more than one Large Venue that is 
contiguous with other Large Venues in the site, is a single Large Venue. If the 
definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(39) differs from this definition, the 
definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(39) shall apply to this Ordinance. 

(uu) “Local Education Agency” means a school district, charter school, or county 
office of education that is not subject to the control of District or county 
regulations related to Solid Waste, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 
18982(a)(40).  

(vv) “Multi-Family Residential Dwelling” or “Multi-Family” or “MFD” means of, from, 
or pertaining to residential Premises with five (5) or more dwelling units 
including such Premises when combined in the same building with Commercial 
establishments, that receive centralized, shared, Collection service for all units 
on the Premises which are billed to one (1) Customer at one (1) address. 
Customers residing in Townhouses, mobile homes, condominiums, or other 
structures with five (5) or more dwelling units who receive individual service 
and are billed separately shall not be considered Multi-Family. Multi-Family 
Premises do not include hotels, motels, or other transient occupancy facilities, 
which are considered Commercial Businesses.  

(ww) “Notice of Violation (NOV)” means a notice that a violation has occurred that 
includes a compliance date to avoid an action to seek penalties, or as otherwise 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 55 of 373



Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 9 of 40 

defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(45) or further explained in 14 CCR Section 
18995.4.  

(xx) “Occupant” means the Person who occupies a Premises. 

(yy) “Organic Materials” means Yard Trimmings and Food Waste, individually or 
collectively that are set aside, handled, packaged, or offered for collection in a 
manner different from Solid Waste for the purpose of processing. No Discarded 
Material shall be considered to be Organic Materials, however, unless it is 
separated from Recyclable Material and Solid Waste. Organic Materials are a 
subset of Organic Waste. 

(zz) “Organic Materials Container” shall be used for the purpose of storage and 
collection of Source Separated Organic Materials. 

(aaa) “Organic Waste” means wastes containing material originated from living 
organisms and their metabolic waste products, including but not limited to food, 
green material, landscape and pruning waste, organic textiles and carpets, 
lumber, wood, Paper Products, Printing and Writing Paper, manure, biosolids, 
digestate, and sludges or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 
18982(a)(46). Biosolids and digestate are as defined by 14 CCR Section 
18982(a). 

(bbb) “Owner” means the Person(s) holding legal title to real property and/or any 
improvements thereon and shall include the Person(s) listed on the latest 
equalized assessment roll of the County Assessor. 

(ccc) “Paper Products” include, but are not limited to, paper janitorial supplies, 
cartons, wrapping, packaging, file folders, hanging files, corrugated boxes, 
tissue, and toweling, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(51). 

(ddd) “Printing and Writing Papers” include, but are not limited to, copy, xerographic, 
watermark, cotton fiber, offset, forms, computer printout paper, white wove 
envelopes, manila envelopes, book paper, note pads, writing tablets, 
newsprint, and other uncoated writing papers, posters, index cards, calendars, 
brochures, reports, magazines, and publications, or as otherwise defined in 14 
CCR Section 18982(a)(54). 

(eee) “Premises” means and includes any land, building and/or structure, or portion 
thereof, in the District where Discarded Materials are produced, generated, or 
accumulated. All structures on the same legal parcel, which are owned by the 
same person shall be considered as one Premises. 

(fff) “Prohibited Container Contaminants” means the following: (i) Discarded 
Materials placed in the Recyclable Materials Container that are not identified 
as acceptable Source Separated Recyclable Materials for the District’s 
Recyclable Materials Container; (ii) Discarded Materials placed in the Organic 
Materials Container that are not identified as acceptable Source Separated 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 56 of 373



Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 10 of 40 

Organic Materials for the the District’s Organic Materials Container; (iii) 
Discarded Materials placed in the Solid Waste Container that are acceptable 
Source Separated Recyclable Materials and/or Source Separated Organic 
Materials to be placed in the District’s Organic Materials Container and/or 
Recyclable Materials Container; and, (iv) Excluded Waste placed in any 
container.  

(ggg) “Recovery” means any activity or process described in 14 CCR Section 
18983.1(b), or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(49). 

(hhh) “Recyclable Materials” means those Discarded Materials that the Generators 
set out in Recyclables Containers for Collection for the purpose of Recycling 
by the Service Provider and that exclude Excluded Waste. No Discarded 
Materials shall be considered Recyclable Materials unless such material is 
separated from Organic Materials, and Solid Waste. Recyclable Materials shall 
include, but not be limited to by-products or discards set aside, handled, 
packaged or offered for Collection from Residential, Commercial, governmental 
or industrial customers in a manner different from Solid Waste. Including, but 
not limited to, aluminum, newspaper, clear and colored glass, tin and bi-metal, 
all plastic containers (except polystyrene), cardboard, chipboard, magazines, 
mixed paper (including magazines, phone books and junk mail) and motor oil 
and filters.. For the purpose of collection of Recyclable Materials through 
contractor’s collection services, recyclable materials shall be limited to those 
materials identified by the collection contractor as acceptable recyclable 
materials. 

(iii) “Recyclable Materials Container” shall be used for the purpose of storage and 
collection of Source Separated Recyclable Materials. 

(jjj) “Recycled-Content Paper” means Paper Products and Printing and Writing 
Paper that consists of at least 30 percent, by fiber weight, postconsumer fiber, 
or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(61).  

(kkk) “Refuse” includes garbage, recyclables, green waste, Cast Offs, and/or 
Rubble. 

(lll) “Residential” shall mean of, from, or pertaining to a Single-Family Premises or 
Multi-Family Premises including Single-Family homes, apartments, 
condominiums, Townhouse complexes, mobile home parks, and cooperative 
apartments. 

(mmm) “Responsible Party” means the Owner, property manager, tenant, lessee, 
Occupant, or other designee that subscribes to and pays for Recyclable 
Materials, Organic Materials, and/or Solid Waste collection services for a 
Premises in the District, or, if there is no such subscriber, the Owner or property 
manager of a Single-Family Premises, Multi-Family Premises, or Commercial 
Premises. In instances of dispute or uncertainty regarding who is the 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 57 of 373



Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 11 of 40 

Responsible Party for a Premises, Responsible Party shall mean the Owner of 
a Single-Family Premises, Multi-Family Premises, or Commercial Premises. 

(nnn) “Restaurant” means an establishment primarily engaged in the retail sale of 
food and drinks for on-Premises or immediate consumption, or as otherwise 
defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(64). 

(ooo) “Route Review” means a visual Inspection of containers along a Hauler Route 
for the purpose of determining Container Contamination and may include 
mechanical Inspection methods such as the use of cameras, or as otherwise 
defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(65). 

(ppp) “Rubble” means and includes all debris from the construction, demolition or 
alteration of buildings, earth, rocks or incinerator ashes, brick, mortar, 
concrete and similar solid material. 

(qqq) “SB 1383” means Senate Bill 1383 of 2016 approved by the Governor on 
September 19, 2016, which added Sections 39730.5, 39730.6, 39730.7, and 
39730.8 to the Health and Safety Code, and added Chapter 13.1 (commencing 
with Section 42652) to Part 3 of Division 30 of the Public Resources Code, 
establishing methane emissions reduction targets in a Statewide effort to 
reduce emissions of short-lived climate pollutants as amended, supplemented, 
superseded, and replaced from time to time.  

(rrr) “SB 1383 Regulations” or “SB 1383 Regulatory” means or refers to, for the 
purposes of this Ordinance, the Short-Lived Climate Pollutants: Organic Waste 
Reduction regulations developed by CalRecycle and adopted in 2020 that 
created 14 CCR, Division 7, Chapter 12 and amended portions of regulations 
of 14 CCR and 27 CCR.  

(sss) “Self-Haul” means to act as a Self-Hauler. 

(ttt) “Self-Hauler” means a person, who hauls Solid Waste, Organic Waste or 
Recyclable Material they have generated to another person. Self-hauler also 
includes a landscaper, or a person who back-hauls waste. Back-haul means 
generating and transporting Recyclable Materials or Organic Waste to a 
destination owned and operated by the Generator or Responsible Party using 
the Generator’s or Responsible Party’s own employees and equipment.  

(uuu) “Service Level” refers to the size of a Customer’s Container and the frequency 
of Collection service. 

(vvv) “Single-Family” or “SFD” refers to any detached or attached house or residence 
of four (4) units or less designed or used for occupancy by one (1) family, 
provided that Collection service feasibly can be provided to such Premises as 
an independent unit, and the Owner or Occupant of such independent unit is 
billed directly for the Collection service. Single-Family includes Townhouses, 
and each independent unit of duplex, tri-plex, or four-plex Residential 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 58 of 373



Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 12 of 40 

structures, regardless of whether each unit is separately billed for their specific 
Service Level. 

(www) “Solid Waste” has the same meaning as defined in State Public Resources 
Code Section 40191, which defines Solid Waste as all putrescible and non-
putrescible solid, semisolid, and liquid wastes, including garbage, trash, refuse, 
paper, rubbish, ashes, industrial wastes, demolition and construction wastes, 
abandoned vehicles and parts thereof, discarded home and industrial 
appliances, dewatered, treated, or chemically fixed sewage sludge which is not 
hazardous waste, manure, vegetable or animal solid and semi-solid wastes, 
and other discarded solid and semisolid wastes, with the exception that Solid 
Waste does not include any of the following wastes: 

(1) Hazardous waste, as defined in the State Public Resources Code 
Section 40141. 

(2) Radioactive waste regulated pursuant to the State Radiation Control 
Law (Chapter 8 (commencing with Section 114960) of Part 9 of Division 
104 of the State Health and Safety Code). 

(3) Medical waste regulated pursuant to the State Medical Waste 
Management Act (Part 14 (commencing with Section 117600) of 
Division 104 of the State Health and Safety Code). Untreated medical 
waste shall not be disposed of in a Solid Waste landfill, as defined in 
State Public Resources Code Section 40195.1. Medical waste that has 
been treated and deemed to be Solid Waste shall be regulated pursuant 
to Division 30 of the State Public Resources Code.  

(4) Recyclable Materials, Organic Materials, and Construction and 
Demolition Debris when such materials are Source Separated. 

Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary, Solid Waste may include de 
minimis volumes or concentrations of waste of a type and amount normally 
found in Residential Solid Waste after implementation of programs for the safe 
Collection, Recycling, treatment, and Disposal of household hazardous waste 
in compliance with Section 41500 and 41802 of the California Public Resources 
Code as may be amended from time to time. Solid Waste includes salvageable 
materials only when such materials are included for Collection in a Solid Waste 
Container not Source Separated from Solid Waste at the site of generation. 

(xxx) “Solid Waste Container” shall be used for the purpose of storage and collection 
of Solid Waste.  

(yyy) “Source Separated” or “Source-Separated (materials)” means materials, 
including commingled Recyclable Materials and Organic Materials, that have 
been separated or kept separate from the Solid Waste stream, at the point of 
generation, for the purpose of additional sorting or processing those materials 
for recycling or reuse in order to return them to the economic mainstream in the 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 59 of 373



Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 13 of 40 

form of raw material for new, reused, or reconstituted products, which meet the 
quality standards necessary to be used in the marketplace, or as otherwise 
defined in 14 CCR Section 17402.5(b)(4). For the purposes of the Ordinance, 
Source Separated shall include separation of materials by the Generator, 
Responsible Party, or Responsible Party’s employee, into different containers 
for the purpose of collection such that Source-Separated materials are 
separated from Solid Waste for the purposes of collection and processing.  

(zzz) “Source Separated Organic Materials” means Organic Materials that are 
Source Separated and placed in an Organic Materials Container.  

(aaaa) “Source Separated Recyclable Materials” means Recyclable Materials that are 
Source Separated and placed in a Recyclable Materials Container.  

(bbbb) “Standard Container” means Organic Waste Containers, Recyclable Materials 
Containers, and Organic Waste Containers approved by the District and/or 
the Franchisee. 

(cccc) “State” means the State of California.  

(dddd) “Supermarket” means a full-line, self-service retail store with gross annual sales 
of two million dollars ($2,000,000), or more, and which sells a line of dry 
grocery, canned goods, or nonfood items and some perishable items, or as 
otherwise defined in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(71). 

(eeee) “Tier One Commercial Edible Food Generator” means a Commercial Edible 
Food Generator that is one of the following: 

(1) Supermarket. 

(2) Grocery Store with a total facility size equal to or greater than 10,000 
square feet. 

(3) Food Service Provider. 

(4) Food Distributor. 

(5) Wholesale Food Vendor. 

If the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(73) of Tier One Commercial Edible 
Food Generator differs from this definition, the definition in 14 CCR Section 
18982(a)(73) shall apply to this Ordinance. 

(ffff) “Tier Two Commercial Edible Food Generator” means a Commercial Edible 
Food Generator that is one of the following: 

(1) Restaurant with 250 or more seats, or a total facility size equal to or 
greater than 5,000 square feet. 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 60 of 373



Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 14 of 40 

(2) Hotel with an on-site Food Facility and 200 or more rooms. 

(3) Health facility with an on-site Food Facility and 100 or more beds. 

(4) Large Venue. 

(5) Large Event. 

(6) A State agency with a cafeteria with 250 or more seats or total cafeteria 
facility size equal to or greater than 5,000 square feet. 

(7) A Local Education Agency facility with an on-site Food Facility. 

If the definition in 14 CCR Section 18982(a)(74) of Tier Two Commercial Edible 
Food Generator differs from this definition, the definition in 14 CCR Section 
18982(a)(74) shall apply to this Ordinance. 

(gggg) “Ton” or “Tonnage” means a unit of measure for weight equivalent to two 
thousand (2,000) standard pounds where each pound contains sixteen (16) 
ounces. 

(hhhh) “Wholesale Food Vendor” means a business or establishment engaged in the 
merchant wholesale distribution of food, where food (including fruits and 
vegetables) is received, shipped, stored, prepared for distribution to a retailer, 
warehouse, distributor, or other destination, or as otherwise defined in 14 CCR 
Section 189852(a)(76). 

(iiii) “Yard Trimmings” or “Green Waste” means those Discarded Materials that will 
decompose and/or putrefy, including, but not limited to, green trimmings, grass, 
weeds, leaves, prunings, branches, dead plants, brush, tree trimmings, dead 
trees, small pieces of unpainted and untreated wood, and other types of 
Organic Materials resulting from normal yard and landscaping maintenance 
that may be specified in District Legislation for Collection and Processing as 
Organic Materials under this Agreement. Yard Trimmings does not include 
items herein defined as Excluded Waste. Yard Trimmings are a subset of 
Organic Materials. Yard Trimmings placed for Collection may not exceed six 
(6) inches in diameter and three (3) feet in length and must fit within the 
Contractor-provided Container. Acceptable Yard Trimmings may be added to 
or removed from this list from time to time by mutual consent or at the sole 
discretion of the District.  

Section 4. Requirements for Single-Family Premises 
(a) Except Responsible Parties of Single-Family Premises that meet the Self-

Hauler requirements in Section 11 of this Ordinance, Responsible Parties of 
Single-Family Premises shall comply with the following requirements:  

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 61 of 373



Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 15 of 40 

(1) Subscribe to and pay for District’s three-container collection services for 
weekly collection of Recyclable Materials, Organic Materials, and Solid 
Waste generated by the Single-Family Premises and comply with 
requirements of those services as described below in Section 4(a)(2). 
District and its Designee(s) shall have the right to review the number and 
size of a Generator’s containers to evaluate adequacy of capacity 
provided for each type of collection service for proper separation of 
materials and containment of materials. The Responsible Parties for 
Single-Family Premises shall adjust their Service Level for their 
collection services as requested by the District.  

(2) Participate in the District’s three-container collection service(s) in the 
manner described below.  

(i) Place, or, if Responsible Party is not an occupant of the Single-
Family Premises, direct its Generators to place, Source 
Separated Organic Materials, including Food Waste, in the 
Organic Materials Container; Source Separated Recyclable 
Materials in the Recyclable Materials Container; and Solid Waste 
in the Solid Waste Container.   

(ii) Not place, or, if Responsible Party is not an occupant of the 
Single-Family Premises, direct its Generators to not place 
Prohibited Container Contaminants in collection containers and 
not place materials designated for the Organic Materials 
Containers or Recyclable Materials Containers in the Solid Waste 
Containers. 

(b) Nothing in this Section prohibits a Responsible Party or Generator of a Single-
Family Premises from preventing or reducing Discarded Materials generation, 
managing Organic Waste on site, and/or using a Community Composting site 
pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18984.9(c). 

(c) The requirements of this Section 4 may be subject to a low-population waiver 
pursuant to Article 3 in Title 14 of the California Code of Regulations, Sections 
18984 through 18984.13.  Please contact the District for verification. 

Section 5. Requirements for Multi-Family Residential Dwellings 
(a) Responsible Parties of Multi-Family Premises shall provide or arrange for 

Recyclable Materials, Organic Materials, and Solid Waste collection services 
consistent with this Ordinance and for employees, contractors, and tenants. 
Responsible Parties of Multi-Family Premises may receive waivers pursuant to 
Section 7 for some requirements of this Section. 

(b) Except for Responsible Parties of Multi-Family Premises that meet the Self-
Hauler requirements in Section 11 of this Ordinance, including hauling services 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 62 of 373



Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 16 of 40 

arranged through a landscaper, Responsible Parties of Multi-Family Premises 
shall:  

(1) Subscribe to and pay for the District’s three or more-container collection 
services and comply with requirements of those services for all 
Recyclable Materials, Organic Materials, and Solid Waste generated at 
the Multi-Family Premises as further described below in this Section.  
The District and its Designee(s) shall have the right to review the number 
and size of the Multi-Family Premises’ collection containers and 
frequency of collection to evaluate adequacy of capacity provided for 
each type of collection service for proper separation of materials and 
containment of materials. The Responsible Party of a Multi-Family 
Premises shall adjust their Service Level for their collection services as 
requested by the District or its Designee.  

(2) Participate in the District’s three or more-container collection service(s) 
for at least weekly collection of Recyclable Materials, Organic Materials, 
and Solid Waste in the manner described below.  

(c) Place and/or direct its Generators to place Source Separated Organic 
Materials, including Food Waste, in the Organic Materials Container; Source 
Separated Recyclable Materials in the Recyclable Materials Container; and 
Solid Waste in the Solid Waste Container. 

(d) Not place and/or direct its Generators to not place Prohibited Container 
Contaminants in collection containers and to not place materials designated for 
the Organic Materials Containers or Recyclable Materials Containers in the 
Solid Waste Containers. 

(1) Supply and allow access to adequate number, size and location of 
collection containers with sufficient labels or colors for employees, 
contractors, tenants, and customers, consistent with the District’s 
Recyclable Materials Container, Organic Materials Container, and Solid 
Waste Container collection service or, if Self-Hauling, consistent with the 
Multi-Family Premises’ approach to complying with Self-Hauler 
requirements in Section 11 of this Ordinance.  

(2) Annually provide information to employees, contractors, tenants, and 
customers about Recyclable Materials and Organic Waste Recovery 
requirements and about proper sorting of Recyclable Materials, Organic 
Materials, and Solid Waste.  

(3) Provide education information before or within fourteen (14) days of 
occupation of the Premises to new tenants that describes requirements 
to Source Separate Recyclable Materials and Organic Materials and to 
keep Source Separated Organic Materials and Source Separated 
Recyclable Materials separate from each other and from Solid Waste 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 63 of 373



Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 17 of 40 

(when applicable) and the location of containers and the rules governing 
their use at each property.  

(4) Provide or arrange access for the District and/or its Designee(s) to their 
properties during all Inspections conducted in accordance with this 
Ordinance to confirm compliance with the requirements of this 
Ordinance. 

(e) If the Responsible Party of a Multi-Family Premises wants to Self-Haul, meet 
the Self-Hauler requirements in Section 11 of this Ordinance.  

(f) Multi-family Premises that generate two (2) cubic yards or more of total Solid 
Waste, Recyclable Materials, and Organic Materials per week (or other 
threshold defined by the State) that arrange for gardening or landscaping 
services shall require that the contract or work agreement between the Owner, 
Occupant, or operator of a Multi-Family Premises and a gardening or 
landscaping service specifies that the designated organic materials generated 
by those services be managed in compliance with this chapter. 

(g) Nothing in this Section prohibits a Responsible Party or Generator of a Multi-
Family Premises from preventing or reducing Discarded Materials generation, 
managing Organic Waste on site, or using a Community Composting site 
pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18984.9(c). 

Section 6. Requirements for Commercial Businesses 
(a) Responsible Parties of Commercial Businesses shall provide or arrange for 

Recyclable Materials, Organic Materials, and Solid Waste collection services 
consistent with this Ordinance and for employees, contractors, tenants, and 
customers. Responsible Parties of Commercial Premises may receive waivers 
pursuant to Section 7 for some requirements of this Section. 

(b) Except Responsible Parties of Commercial Businesses that meet the Self-
Hauler requirements in Section 11 of this Ordinance, including hauling services 
arranged through a landscaper, Responsible Parties of Commercial Premises 
shall: 

(1) Subscribe to and pay for the District’s three or more-container collection 
services and comply with requirements of those services for all 
Recyclable Materials, Organic Materials, and Solid Waste generated at 
the Commercial Premises as further described below in this Section.  
The District and its Designee(s) shall have the right to review the number 
and size of a Commercial Premises’ containers and frequency of 
collection to evaluate adequacy of capacity provided for each type of 
collection service for proper separation of materials and containment of 
materials. The Responsible Party of the Commercial Business shall 
adjust their Service Level for their collection services as requested by 
the District or its Designee.  

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 64 of 373



Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 18 of 40 

(2) Participate in the District’s three or more-container collection service(s) 
for at least weekly collection of Recyclable Materials, Organic Materials, 
and Solid Waste in the manner described below.  

(i) Place and/or direct its Generators to place Source Separated 
Organic Materials, including Food Waste, in the Organic 
Materials Container; Source Separated Recyclable Materials in 
the Recyclable Materials Container; and Solid Waste in the Solid 
Waste Container.  

(ii) Not place and/or direct its Generators to not place Prohibited 
Container Contaminants in collection containers and to not place 
materials designated for the Organic Materials Containers or 
Recyclable Materials Containers in the Solid Waste Containers. 

(3) Supply and allow access to adequate number, size and location of 
collection containers with sufficient labels or colors (conforming with 
Sections 6(b)(4)(A)) and 6(b)(4)(B) below) for employees, contractors, 
tenants, and customers, consistent with the District’s Recyclable 
Materials Container, Organic Materials Container, and Solid Waste 
Container collection service or, if Self-Hauling, consistent with the 
Commercial Premises’ approach to complying with Self-Hauler 
requirements in Section 11 of this Ordinance.  

(4) Provide containers for customers for the collection of Source Separated 
Recyclable Materials and Source Separated Organic Materials in all 
indoor and outdoor areas where Solid Waste containers are provided for 
customers, for materials generated by that Commercial Business. Such 
containers shall be visible and easily accessible. Such containers do not 
need to be provided in restrooms. If a Commercial Business does not 
generate any of the materials that would be collected in one type of 
container, as demonstrated through an approved de minimis waiver per 
Section 7(a), then the Responsible Party of the Commercial Business 
does not have to provide that particular container in all areas where Solid 
Waste containers are provided for customers. Pursuant to 14 CCR 
Section 18984.9(b), the containers provided by the Responsible Party 
of the Commercial Business shall have either:  

(i) A body or lid that conforms with the container colors provided 
through the collection service provided by the District, with either 
lids conforming to the color requirements or bodies conforming to 
the color requirements or both lids and bodies conforming to color 
requirements. The Responsible Party of the Commercial 
Business is not required to replace functional containers that do 
not comply with the requirements of this subsection prior to 
whichever of the following comes first: (i) the end of the useful life 
of those containers, or (ii) January 1, 2036. 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 65 of 373



Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 19 of 40 

(ii) Container labels that include language or graphic images, or 
both, indicating the primary material accepted and the primary 
materials prohibited in that container, or containers with imprinted 
text or graphic images that indicate the primary materials 
accepted and primary materials prohibited in the container. 
Pursuant 14 CCR Section 18984.8, the container labeling 
requirements are required on new containers commencing 
January 1, 2022. 

(5) To the extent practical through education, training, Inspection, and/or 
other measures, prohibit employees from placing materials in a 
container not designated for those materials per the District’s Recyclable 
Materials Container, Organic Materials Container, and Solid Waste 
collection service or, if Self-Hauling, per the instructions of the 
Commercial Business’s Responsible Party to support its compliance 
with Self-Hauler requirements in Section 11 of this Ordinance.   

(6) Periodically inspect Recyclable Materials Containers, Organic Materials 
Containers, and Solid Waste Containers for contamination and inform 
employees if containers are contaminated and of the requirements to 
keep contaminants out of those containers pursuant to 14 CCR Section 
18984.9(b)(3).  

(7) Annually provide information to employees, contractors, tenants, and 
customers about Recyclable Materials and Organic Waste Recovery 
requirements and about proper sorting of Recyclable Materials, Organic 
Materials, and Solid Waste.  

(8) Provide education information before or within fourteen (14) days of 
occupation of the Premises to new tenants that describes requirements 
to Source Separate Recyclable Materials and Organic Materials and to 
keep Source Separated Organic Materials and Source Separated 
Recyclable Materials separate from each other and from other Solid 
Waste (when applicable) and the location of containers and the rules 
governing their use at each property.  

(9) Provide or arrange access for the District or its Designee to their 
properties during all Inspections conducted in accordance with this 
Ordinance to confirm compliance with the requirements of this 
Ordinance. 

(c) If the Responsible Party of a Commercial Business wants to Self-Haul, meet 
the Self-Hauler requirements in Section 11 of this Ordinance.  

(d) Nothing in this Section prohibits a Responsible Party or a Generator of a 
Commercial Business from preventing or reducing Discarded Materials 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 66 of 373



Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 20 of 40 

generation, managing Organic Waste on site, or using a Community 
Composting site pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18984.9(c). 

(e) Responsible Parties of Commercial Businesses that are Tier One or Tier Two 
Commercial Edible Food Generators shall comply with Food Recovery 
requirements, pursuant to Section 8 of this Ordinance. 

Section 7. Waivers for Multi-Family Premises and Commercial Premises 
(a) De Minimis Waivers for Multi-Family Premises and Commercial Premises. The 

District and/or its Designee, may waive a Responsible Party’s obligation to 
comply with some or all Recyclable Materials and Organic Waste requirements 
of this Ordinance if the Responsible Party of the Commercial Business or Multi-
Family Premises provides documentation that the Commercial Business or 
Multi-Family Premises meets one of the criteria in subsections (1) and (2) 
below. For the purposes of subsections (1) and (2), the total Solid Waste shall 
be the sum of weekly container capacity measured in cubic yards for Solid 
Waste, Recyclable Materials, and Organic Materials collection service. Hauling 
through paper shredding service providers or other incidental services may be 
considered in granting a de minimis waiver. 

(1) The Commercial Business’s or Multi-Family Premises’ total Solid Waste 
collection service is two (2) cubic yards or more per week and 
Recyclable Materials and Organic Materials subject to collection in 
Recyclable Materials Container(s) or Organic Materials Container(s) 
comprises less than twenty (20) gallons per week per applicable material 
stream of the Multi-family Premises’ or Commercial Business’s total 
waste (i.e., Recyclable Materials in the Recyclable Materials stream are 
less than twenty (20) gallons per week or Organic Materials in the 
Organic Materials stream are less than twenty (20) gallons per week); 
or,  

(2) The Commercial Business’s or Multi-Family Premises’ total Solid Waste 
collection service is less than two (2) cubic yards per week and 
Recyclable Materials and Organic Materials subject to collection in a 
Recyclable Materials Container(s) or Organic Materials Container(s) 
comprises less than ten (10) gallons per week per applicable material 
stream of the Multi-family Premises’ or Commercial Business’s total 
waste (i.e., Recyclable Materials in the Recyclable Materials stream are 
less than ten (10) gallons per week or Organic Materials in the Organic 
Materials stream are less than ten (10) gallons per week). 

(b) Physical Space Waivers. The District and/or District’s Designee may waive a 
Commercial Business’s or Multi-Family Premises’ obligation to comply with 
some or all of the Recyclable Materials and/or Organic Waste collection service 
requirements if the District or its Designee has evidence from its own staff, a 
hauler, licensed architect, or licensed engineer demonstrating that the 
Premises lacks adequate space for Recyclable Materials Containers and/or 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 67 of 373



Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 21 of 40 

Organic Materials Containers required for compliance with the Recyclable 
Materials and Organic Materials collection requirements of Section 5 or 6 as 
applicable.  

(c) Review and Approval of Waivers. Waivers shall be granted to Responsible 
Parties by the District’s Designee, or the District if there is no Designee, 
according to the following process: 

(1) Responsible Parties of Premises seeking waivers shall submit a 
completed application form to the District and/or its Designee for a 
waiver.  The waiver shall be considered based upon the following 
criteria: (1) the waiver type requested; (2) type(s) of collection services 
for which the party is requesting a waiver; (3) the reason(s) for such 
waiver; (4) documentation supporting the request for a waiver; (5) any 
pertinent facts or circumstances; (6) harmony with the intent of this 
Ordinance; and (7) any other factors deemed relevant by the District 
and/or its Designee.   The District or its Designee shall have sole 
discretion in determining to grant or not grant a waiver.  

(2) Upon waiver approval, the District and/or its shall specify that the waiver 
is valid for the following duration: 

(i) For Commercial Premises, five (5) years, or if property ownership 
changes, or if occupancy changes, whichever occurs first. 

(ii) For Multi-Family Premises, five (5) years, or if property ownership 
changes, or if the property manager changes, whichever occurs 
first. 

(3) Waiver holder shall notify the District’s Designee, or the District if there 
is no Designee, if circumstances change such that Commercial 
Business’s or Multi-Family Premises’ may no longer qualify for the 
waiver granted, in which case waiver will be rescinded. 

(4) Any waiver holder must cooperate with the District and/or its Designee 
for any on-site assessment of the appropriateness of the waiver. 

(5) Waiver holder shall reapply to the District’s Designee, or the District if 
there is no Designee, for a waiver upon the expiration of the waiver 
period and shall submit any required documentation, and/or 
fees/payments as required by the District and/or its Designee. Failure to 
submit a completed application shall equate to an automatic denial of 
said application. 

(6) The District’s Designee, or the District if there is no Designee, may 
revoke a waiver upon a determination that any of the circumstances 
justifying a waiver are no longer applicable. 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 68 of 373



Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 22 of 40 

(7) If the District’s Designee does not approve a waiver application or 
revokes a waiver, the applicant may appeal the decision for additional 
review to the District General Manager.  The District may, after meeting 
and conferring with its Designee, direct the Designee to approve the 
waiver application and/or repeal the revocation of the waiver. 

Section 8. Requirements for Commercial Edible Food Generators 
(a) Tier One Commercial Edible Food Generators must comply with the 

requirements of this Section commencing January 1, 2022, and Tier Two 
Commercial Edible Food Generators must comply commencing January 1, 
2024, pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18991.3.  

(b) Large Venue or Large Event operators not providing food services, but allowing 
for food to be provided by others, shall require Food Facilities operating at the 
Large Venue or Large Event to comply with the requirements of this Section, 
commencing January 1, 2024. 

(c) Commercial Edible Food Generators shall comply with the following 
requirements:  

(1) Arrange to recover the maximum amount of Edible Food that would 
otherwise be disposed. Food that is donated shall be free from 
adulteration, spoilage, and meet the food safety standards of the 
California Health and Safety Code. Food cannot be donated if it is not in 
compliance with the food safety standards of the California Health and 
Safety Code, including food that is returned by a customer, has been 
served or sold and in the possession of a consumer, or is the subject of 
a recall.   

(2) Contract with or enter into a written agreement with Food Recovery 
Organizations or Food Recovery Services for: (i) the collection of Edible 
Food for Food Recovery; or, (ii) acceptance of the Edible Food that the 
Commercial Edible Food Generator Self-Hauls to the Food Recovery 
Organization for Food Recovery.  

(3) Not intentionally spoil Edible Food that is capable of being recovered by 
a Food Recovery Organization or a Food Recovery Service. 

(4) Allow the District, its agents, or the District’s designated enforcement 
entity or designated third party enforcement entity to access the 
Premises and review records pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18991.4.  

(5) Keep records that include the following information, or as otherwise 
specified in 14 CCR Section 18991.4: 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 69 of 373



Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 23 of 40 

(i) A list of each Food Recovery Service or organization that collects 
or receives its Edible Food pursuant to a contract or written 
agreement established under 14 CCR Section 18991.3(b). 

(ii) A copy of all contracts or written agreements established under 
14 CCR Section 18991.3(b). 

(iii) A record of the following information for each of those Food 
Recovery Services or Food Recovery Organizations: 

(A) The name, address and contact information of the Food 
Recovery Service or Food Recovery Organization. 

(B) The types of food that will be collected by or Self-Hauled to 
the Food Recovery Service or Food Recovery Organization. 

(C) The established frequency that food will be collected or Self-
Hauled. 

(D) The quantity of food, measured in pounds recovered per 
month, collected or Self-Hauled to a Food Recovery Service 
or Food Recovery Organization for Food Recovery.  

(6) Maintain records required by this Section for five (5) years.  

(7) No later than January 31 of each year commencing no later than 
January 31, 2023, for Tier One Commercial Edible Food Generators and 
January 31, 2025, for Tier Two Commercial Edible Food Generators, 
provide an annual Food Recovery report to the District or its Designee 
that includes the following information: 

(i) The amount, in pounds, of edible food donated to a Food 
Recovery Service or Food Recovery Organization annually; and, 

(ii) The amount, in pounds of edible food rejected by a Food 
Recovery Service or Food Recovery Organization annually. 

(iii) Any additional information required by the District Manager or 
their Designee. 

(d) Nothing in this Ordinance shall be construed to limit or conflict with the 
protections provided by the California Good Samaritan Food Donation Act of 
2017, the Federal Good Samaritan Act, or share table and school food donation 
guidance pursuant to Senate Bill 557 of 2017 (approved by the Governor of the 
State of California on September 25, 2017, which added Article 13 
[commencing with Section 49580] to Chapter 9 of Part 27 of Division 4 of Title 
2 of the Education Code, and to amend Section 114079 of the Health and 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 70 of 373



Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 24 of 40 

Safety Code, relating to food safety, as amended, supplemented, superseded 
and replaced from time to time). 

Section 9. Requirements for Food Recovery Organizations and Services 
(a) Food Recovery Services collecting or receiving Edible Food directly from 

Commercial Edible Food Generators, via a contract or written agreement 
established under 14 CCR Section 18991.3(b), shall maintain the following 
records, or as otherwise specified by 14 CCR Section 18991.5(a)(1): 

(1) The name, address, and contact information for each Commercial 
Edible Food Generator from which the service collects Edible Food. 

(2) The quantity in pounds of Edible Food collected from each Commercial 
Edible Food Generator per month. 

(3) The quantity in pounds of Edible Food transported to each Food 
Recovery Organization per month. 

(4) The name, address, and contact information for each Food Recovery 
Organization that the Food Recovery Service transports Edible Food to 
for Food Recovery. 

(b) Food Recovery Organizations collecting or receiving Edible Food directly from 
Commercial Edible Food Generators, via a contract or written agreement 
established under 14 CCR Section 18991.3(b), shall maintain the following 
records, or as otherwise specified by 14 CCR Section 18991.5(a)(2): 

(1) The name, address, and contact information for each Commercial 
Edible Food Generator from which the organization receives Edible 
Food. 

(2) The quantity in pounds of Edible Food received from each Commercial 
Edible Food Generator per month. 

(3) The name, address, and contact information for each Food Recovery 
Service that the organization receives Edible Food from for Food 
Recovery. 

(c) Maintain records required by this Section for five years.  

(d) Food Recovery Organizations and Food Recovery Services that have their 
primary address physically located in the District and contract with or have 
written agreements with one or more Commercial Edible Food Generators 
pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18991.3(b) shall report to the District it is located 
in and the District’s Designee, if applicable, the total pounds of Edible Food 
recovered in the previous calendar year from the Tier One and Tier Two 
Commercial Edible Food Generators they have established a contract or 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 71 of 373



Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 25 of 40 

written agreement with pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18991.3(b). The annual 
report shall be submitted to the District and the District’s Designee, if 
applicable, no later than January 31 of each year.  

(e) In order to support Edible Food Recovery capacity planning assessments or 
other studies conducted by the District that provides Solid Waste collection 
services, or its designated entity, Food Recovery Services and Food Recovery 
Organizations operating in the District shall provide information and 
consultation to the District and District’s Designee, if applicable, upon request, 
regarding existing, or proposed new or expanded, Food Recovery capacity that 
could be accessed by the District and its Commercial Edible Food Generators. 
A Food Recovery Service or Food Recovery Organization contacted by the 
District and/or its Designee shall respond to such request for information within 
60 days, unless a shorter timeframe is otherwise specified by the District.   

(f) Food Recovery Organizations and Food Recovery Services that have their 
primary address physically located in the District and contract with or have 
written agreements with one or more Commercial Edible Food Generators shall 
include language in all agreements with Tier 1 and Tier 2 edible food generators 
located in the District identifying and describing the California Good Samaritan 
Act of 2017. 

(g) Nothing in this chapter prohibits a Food Recovery Organization or Food 
Recovery Service from refusing to accept Edible Food from a Commercial 
Edible Food Generator. 

Section 10. Requirements for Haulers and Facility Operators 
(a) Requirements for Haulers 

(1) Franchise hauler(s) providing Recyclable Materials, Organic Waste, 
and/or Solid Waste collection services to Generators within the District’s 
boundaries shall meet the following requirements and standards as a 
condition of approval of its contract, agreement, permit, or other 
authorization with the District to collect Recyclable Materials, Organic 
Materials, and/or Solid Waste: 

(i) Through written notice to the District annually on or before 
January 1 of each year, identify the facilities to which they will 
transport Discarded Materials, including facilities for Source 
Separated Recyclable Materials, Source Separated Organic 
Materials, and Solid Waste unless otherwise stated in the 
franchise agreement, contract, permit, or license, or other 
authorization with the District.  

(ii) Transport Source Separated Recyclable Materials to a facility 
that recovers those materials; transport Source Separated 
Organic Materials to a facility, operation, activity, or property that 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 72 of 373



Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 26 of 40 

recovers Organic Waste as defined in 14 CCR, Division 7, 
Chapter 12, Article 2; transport Solid Waste to a disposal facility 
or transfer facility or operation that processes or disposes of Solid 
Waste; and transport manure to a facility that manages manure 
in conformance with 14 CCR Article 12 and such that the manure 
is not landfilled, used as Alternative Daily Cover (ADC), or used 
as Alternative Intermediate Cover (AIC).  

(iii) Obtain approval from the District to haul Organic Waste, unless it 
is transporting Source Separated Organic Waste to a Community 
Composting site or lawfully transporting C&D in a manner that 
complies with 14 CCR Section 18989.1, and Section 11 of this 
Ordinance. 

(2) Franchise hauler(s) authorized to collect Recyclable Materials, Organic 
Materials, and/or Solid Waste shall comply with education, equipment, 
signage, container labeling, container color, contamination monitoring, 
reporting, and other requirements contained within its franchise 
agreement, permit, or other agreement entered into with the District.  

(b) Requirements for Facility Operators and Community Composting Operations 

(1) Owners of facilities, operations, and activities located in the District’s 
boundaries that recover Organic Waste, including, but not limited to, 
Compost facilities, in-vessel digestion facilities, and publicly-owned 
treatment works shall, upon District request, provide information 
regarding available and potential new or expanded capacity at their 
facilities, operations, and activities, including information about 
throughput and permitted capacity necessary for planning purposes. 
Entities contacted by the District shall respond within 60 days.  

(2) Community Composting operators with operations located in the 
District’s boundaries, upon District request, shall provide information to 
the District to support Organic Waste capacity planning, including, but 
not limited to, an estimate of the amount of Organic Waste anticipated 
to be handled at the Community Composting operation. Entities 
contacted by the District shall respond within 60 days. 

(3) Owners of facilities, operations, and activities located in the District’s 
boundaries that receive Recyclable Materials, Organic Materials, and/or 
Solid Waste shall provide to the District, on a quarterly basis, copies of 
all reports they are required to report to CalRecycle under 14 CCR. 

Section 11. Self-Hauler Requirements  
(a) Every Self-Hauler shall Source Separate its Recyclable Materials and Organic 

Materials (materials that District otherwise requires Generators or Responsible 
Parties to separate for collection in the District’s Recyclable Materials and 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 73 of 373



Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 27 of 40 

Organic Materials collection program) generated on-site from Solid Waste in a 
manner consistent with 14 CCR Section 18984.1 and the District’s collection 
program. Self-Haulers shall deliver their materials to facilities described in 
subsection (b) below. Alternatively, Self-Haulers may or choose not to Source 
Separate Recyclable Materials and Organic Materials and shall haul its Solid 
Waste (that includes Recyclable Materials and Organic Materials) to a High 
Diversion Organic Waste Processing Facility subject to advance written 
approval by the District. 

(b) Self-Haulers that Source Separate their Recyclable Materials and Organic 
Materials shall haul their Source Separated Recyclable Materials to a facility 
that recovers those materials; haul their Source Separated Organic Waste to a 
facility, operation, activity, or property that processes or recovers Source 
Separated Organic Waste; and haul their Solid Waste to a disposal facility or 
transfer facility or operation that processes or disposes of Solid Waste.  

(c) Self-Haulers that are Responsible Parties of Commercial Businesses or Multi-
Family Premises shall keep records of the amount of Recyclable Materials, 
Organic Waste, and Solid Waste delivered to each facility, operation, activity, 
or property that processes or recovers Recyclable Materials and Organic 
Waste and processes or disposes of Solid Waste or shall keep records of Solid 
Waste delivered to High Diversion Organic Waste Processing Facilities. These 
records shall be subject to review by the District and/or its Designee(s). The 
records shall include the following information: 

(1) Delivery receipts and weight tickets from the entity accepting the 
Recyclable Materials, Organic Materials, and Solid Waste. 

(2) The amount of material in cubic yards or Tons transported by the 
Generator or Responsible Party to each entity. 

(3) If the material is transported to an entity that does not have scales on-
site or employs scales incapable of weighing the Self-Hauler’s vehicle in 
a manner that allows it to determine the weight of materials received, 
the Self-Hauler is not required to record the weight of material but shall 
keep a record of the entities that received the Recyclable Materials, 
Organic Materials, and Solid Waste.  

(d) Self-Haulers shall retain all records and data required to be maintained by this 
Section for no less than five (5) years after the Recyclable Materials, Organic 
Materials, and/or Solid Waste was first delivered to the facility accepting the 
material. 

(e) Self-Haulers that are Commercial Businesses or Multi-Family Premises shall 
provide copies of records required by this Section to the District if requested by 
the District General Manager and shall provide the records at the frequency 
requested by the District Manager.   

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 74 of 373



Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 28 of 40 

(f) A Single-Family Generator or Single-Family Responsible Party that Self-Hauls 
Recyclable Materials, Organic Waste, or Solid Waste is not required to record 
or report information in Section 11(c) and (d).  

(g) Pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18815.9, Food Waste Self-Haulers are required 
to maintain records and report to CalRecycle information on the Tons of Food 
Waste Self-Hauled and the facilities or each use of such material. Food Waste 
Self-Haulers shall provide to the District, on a quarterly basis, copies of all 
reports they are required to report to CalRecycle. 

Section 12. Inspections and Investigations 
(a) The District representatives or its Designee(s) are authorized to conduct 

Inspections and investigations, at random or otherwise, of any collection 
container, collection vehicle loads, or transfer, processing, or disposal facility 
for materials collected from Generators, or Source Separated materials to 
confirm compliance with this Ordinance by Generators, Responsible Parties of 
Single-Family Premises, Responsible Parties of Commercial Businesses, 
Responsible Parties of Multi-Family Premises, Commercial Edible Food 
Generators, haulers, Self-Haulers, Food Recovery Services, and Food 
Recovery Organizations, subject to applicable laws. This Section does not 
allow District or its Designee to enter the interior of a private residential property 
for Inspection.  

(b) Entities regulated by this Ordinance shall provide or arrange for access during 
all Inspections (with the exception of residential property interiors) and shall 
cooperate with the District’s representative or its Designee during such 
Inspections and investigations.  Such Inspections and investigations may 
include confirmation of proper placement of materials in containers, inspection 
of Edible Food Recovery activities, review of required records, or other 
verification or Inspection to confirm compliance with any other requirement of 
this Ordinance.  Failure of a Responsible Party to provide or arrange for: (i) 
access to an entity’s Premises; or (ii) access to records for any Inspection or 
investigation is a violation of this Ordinance and may result in penalties 
described in Section 21.  

(c) Any records obtained by the District or its Designee during its Inspections, and 
other reviews shall be subject to the requirements and applicable disclosure 
exemptions of the Public Records Act as set forth in Government Code Section 
6250 et seq.  

(d) The District representatives or their Designee are authorized to conduct any 
Inspections, or other investigations as reasonably necessary to further the 
goals of this Ordinance, subject to applicable laws.  

(e) The District or its Designee shall receive written complaints from persons 
regarding an entity that may be potentially non-compliant with SB 1383 
Regulations, including receipt of anonymous complaints.  

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 75 of 373



Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 29 of 40 

(f) The District representatives and/or their Designee are authorized to provide 
informational notices to entities regulated by this Ordinance regarding 
compliance with this Ordinance. 

Section 13. Collection Rates and Collection Of Delinquent Fees And Charges  
(a) Collection rates, fees and charges for solid waste collection and disposal shall 

be established pursuant to the California Constitution Article XIIID and set by 
the Franchisee. 

(b) Once each year, prior to a date established by the District, the Franchisee 
shall take the following actions to collect delinquent solid waste collection and 
disposal accounts: 

(1) Present to the District a list of Responsible Parties and/or Owners (with 
corresponding parcel numbers) within the District whose accounts are 
more than one hundred twenty days past due; 

(2) Send a certified letter requesting payment to each Responsible Party 
and/or Owner with a delinquent account; 

(3) At least thirty days after receiving delivery certification for payment 
requests, present to the District a list of Responsible Parties and/or 
Owners (with corresponding parcel numbers) whose accounts are still 
past due. 

(c) After the Franchisee has completed all of the actions listed in Paragraph (a), 
the District Board of Directors will adopt a resolution authorizing the County 
Auditor to place the delinquent accounts upon the tax roll. The Franchisee 
shall bear the full cost of any fees charged by the County Auditor to place the 
delinquent accounts on the tax roll. 

Section 14. Franchise for Collection - Authorization 
(a) A Franchise, exclusive or nonexclusive, for the collection and disposal of solid 

waste may be granted and/or authorized by the District or its Designee. 

(b) No person shall collect, or enter into an agreement to collect, or provide for the 
collection or disposal of Discarded Materials, unless such person is authorized 
by the District to operate within the District by means of a Franchise Agreement. 

Section 15. Regulations For Accumulation Of Solid Waste, Cast Offs, Rubble, And 
Refuse 
(a) No Responsible Party, Generator, or Owner of property shall allow the following 

to be accumulated on any property, lot, parcel, or Premises: 

(1) Solid waste of any kind, unless the same shall be in a Solid Waste 
Container. 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 76 of 373

https://oceanocsd.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=12.10.010_Regulations_For_Accumulation_Of_Solid_Waste%2C_Rubble%2C_And_Refuse
https://oceanocsd.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=12.10.010_Regulations_For_Accumulation_Of_Solid_Waste%2C_Rubble%2C_And_Refuse


Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 30 of 40 

(2) Discarded mattresses, couches, chairs, and other household furniture. 

(3) Construction material, demolition material, Rubble, Refuse, and/or 
debris. 

(4) Hazardous Materials of any kind. 

(5) Bulky Items and Cast Offs. 

(b) No Responsible Party, Generator, or Owner shall dispose of Solid Waste, 
Recyclable Materials, or Organic Waste by: 

(1) Causing it to be placed on another’s lot, parcel, or Premises.  

(2) Causing it to be deposited in or near litter receptacles placed by the 
District in public places for incidental use by pedestrians or vehicular 
traffic; 

(3) Causing it to be deposited on any public or private place, street, lane, 
alley, or drive. 

(4) Causing it to be placed into any standard container other than those in 
possession of such Responsible Party or Generator unless permission 
for such use is granted by the Commercial or Residential Customer in 
possession of the Standard Container(s). 

(c) The Responsible Party and/or Owner of a developed or non-developed 
(vacant) lot or parcel of land shall be liable for paying the costs, including 
administrative costs and attorneys' fees for the removal of Solid Waste, Refuse, 
Cast Offs, and Rubble that accumulates on his/her property in violation of this 
section, if said waste is not removed after notice, as provided in Section 16. 

Section 16. Clearing Of Accumulated Solid Waste And Rubble 
(a) The accumulation of Solid Waste, Refuse, Cast Offs, and/or Rubble in violation 

of this Ordinance is hereby declared to be a public nuisance. 

(b) The District or its Designee is authorized and empowered to notify the Owner, 
his or her agent, or person in control of any lot, parcel, or Premises within the 
District, and direct them to dispose of Solid Waste, Refuse, Cast Offs, and/or 
Rubble that has accumulated in violation of this Section 16. Such notice shall 
be given by posting the lot, parcel, or Premises and by certified mail addressed 
to the Responsible Party and/or Owner, his or her agent, at his or her last 
known address, or by personal service on the owner, agent, person in control 
or occupant of the property or Premises. 

(c) The notice shall describe the work to be done and shall state that if the work is 
not commenced within ten calendar days after receipt of notice and diligently 
prosecuted to completion without interruption, the District and/or its Designee 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 77 of 373

https://oceanocsd.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=12.10.020_Clearing_Of_Accumulated_Solid_Waste_And_Rubble


Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 31 of 40 

shall notify the County Environmental Health Department to commence 
abatement proceedings. Cost of said abatement, including administrative costs 
and attorneys' fees, shall be a lien on the property. The notice shall be 
substantially in the following form: 

 

NOTICE TO REMOVE  
SOLID WASTE REFUSE, CAST OFFS, AND/OR RUBBLE 

The owner of the property commonly known as: _______________________is 
hereby ordered to properly dispose of the solid waste matter, refuse, cast offs, 
and/or rubble located on the property, to wit: (type of waste matter to be disposed 
of) within ten calendar days from the date hereof. If the disposal of the solid waste 
matter, cast-offs, and/or rubble herein described is not commenced and diligently 
prosecuted to completion within the time fixed herein, the District Operations 
Supervisor will apply to the County of San Luis Obispo Environmental Health 
Department for an order to abate said nuisance, and the costs of such abatement 
shall become a charge against the property, and shall be made a special 
assessment against the property. Said special assessment may be collected at the 
same time and in the same manner as is provided for the collection of ordinary 
County taxes, and shall be subject to the same procedures as foreclosure and sale 
in the case of delinquency as is provided for ordinary County taxes. 
 
If you should have any questions, please contact the undersigned at (805) 927-
4778.  
 
Date: _____________   ________________________________ 
     District General Manager 

 
cc: San Luis Obispo County Environmental Health Department 

 

(d) The District shall cause to be kept in his/her office a permanent record 
containing: 

(1) a description of each parcel, property, or Premises for which notice to 
dispose of waste matter has been given; 

(2) the name of the Owner, if known; 

(3) the date the matter was referred to the San Luis Obispo County 
Department of Environmental Health; 

(4) action taken by the County Department of Environmental Health. Each 
such entry shall be made as soon as practicable after completion of such 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 78 of 373



Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 32 of 40 

act. 

(e) The County of San Luis Obispo Environmental Health Department is hereby 
authorized to enforce all abatement proceedings authorized by this section. 

Section 17. Storage And Placement Of Standard Containers For Pick-Up 
(a) All residential Standard Containers shall be placed for collection along the 

street in front of the premises or the rear alley, when applicable, only on the 
date established for the collection of solid waste on the particular route, or after 
5:30 P.M. on the day immediately prior to such collection, and shall not remain 
thereon for more than twelve (12) hours after it has been emptied unless 
special in yard service has been contracted for. 

(b) Any Container placed for collection along a street or roadway shall be placed 
within three feet of the edge of the street or roadway, without causing a safety 
hazard. In the event that automated service is provided in the District, 
Containers shall be placed in accordance with guidelines established by the 
Franchisee and approved by the District. 

(c) Upon collection, the Franchisee shall place all Standard Containers 
approximately 3 feet from the edge of the street or roadway, to avoid creating 
a safety hazard. 

(d) No person other than a Franchisee or Customer shall interfere in any manner 
with any Standard Container or the contents thereof, or remove any Discarded 
Materials from the location where it was placed by the Customer or Franchisee, 
nor remove the contents of any Standard Container. 

Section 18. Unlawful Collection 
(a) A Franchisee shall not be required to collect Hazardous Waste, or dangerous 

materials as part of its regular collection activity. Liquid and dry caustics, 
acids, biohazardous, flammable, explosive materials, insecticides, and similar 
substances shall not be deposited in Standard Containers. Any person 
collecting such substances shall store, handle and dispose of such materials 
in accordance with local, state and federal law and shall obtain all necessary 
local, state and federal permits therefor. 

(b) A Franchisee shall not be required to collect Infectious Waste (as defined in 
California Health and Safety Code section 7054.4, as amended from time to 
time, or any successor provision or provisions thereto) as part of its regular 
collection activity. Anyone producing such wastes shall store, handle and 
dispose of such materials only in the manner approved by the County health 
officer or designated deputy, and in accordance with local, state and federal 
law and with all necessary local, state and federal permits. 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 79 of 373

https://oceanocsd.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=12.10.030_Storage_And_Placement_Of_Standard_Containers_For_Pick-Up
https://oceanocsd.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=12.10.030_Storage_And_Placement_Of_Standard_Containers_For_Pick-Up


Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 33 of 40 

Section 19. Condition of Collection Trucks 
Every truck used by a Franchisee in the collection and removal of Discarded Materials 
shall be kept well painted, clean, and in good operating condition. 

Section 20. Exceptions  
(a) Nothing in this Ordinance shall be deemed to prohibit the removal and hauling 

by a licensed person pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Ordinance. 

(b) Nothing in this Ordinance shall be construed to prohibit any producer of Solid 
Waste, Cast Offs, Rubble, or Refuse from hauling the same to a permitted 
disposal site pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Ordinance. 

(c) Nothing in this Ordinance shall be construed to prohibit the collection and 
removal of Yard Trimmings or Green Waste by individual residents and by 
individuals doing business as professional landscapers, when the collection is 
directly related to their work and done pursuant to the terms and conditions of 
this Ordinance. 

(d) Nothing in this Ordinance shall limit the right of Generator, Responsible Party, 
Owner, or Commercial Business, or other entity to donate, sell or otherwise 
dispose of Solid Waste provided that any such disposal is in accordance with 
the provisions of this Ordinance. 

Section 21. Enforcement 
(a) Violation of any provision of this Ordinance shall constitute grounds for 

issuance of a Notice of Violation and assessment of a fine by the District or its 
Designee.  

(b) Other remedies allowed by law may be used, including civil action or 
prosecution as a misdemeanor or infraction. The District may pursue civil 
actions in the California courts to seek recovery of unpaid administrative 
citations.  The District may, at its option, choose to delay court action until such 
time as a sufficiently large number of violations, or cumulative size of violations 
exist such that court action is a reasonable use of the District’s staff and 
resources.  

(c) Responsible Entity for Enforcement 

(1) Enforcement pursuant to this Ordinance may be undertaken by the 
District General Manager or its Designee, agent, legal counsel, or 
combination thereof.   

(2) Enforcement may also be undertaken by a County Enforcement Official 
if so designated by the District.  

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 80 of 373

https://oceanocsd.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=12.10.030_Storage_And_Placement_Of_Standard_Containers_For_Pick-Up
https://oceanocsd.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&name=12.10.030_Storage_And_Placement_Of_Standard_Containers_For_Pick-Up


Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 34 of 40 

(3) The District General Manager and/or its Designee may issue Notices of 
Violation(s).  

(d) Process for Enforcement 

(1) The District General Manager and/or its Designee will monitor 
compliance with the Ordinance through Compliance Reviews, Route 
Reviews, investigation of complaints, and an Inspection program. The 
District General Manager and/or the County Enforcement Officials 
and/or its designee may also monitor compliance with the Ordinance 
randomly.  

(2) The District may issue an official notification to notify regulated entities 
of its obligations under the Ordinance.  

(3) For incidences of Prohibited Container Contaminants found in 
containers, the District or its Designee will issue an informational notice 
of contamination to any Generator or Responsible Party found to have 
Prohibited Container Contaminants in a container. Such notice will be 
provided via a cart tag or other communication immediately upon 
identification of the Prohibited Container Contaminants or within seven 
(7) days after determining that a violation has occurred. If the District, 
the County or their designee observes Prohibited Container 
Contaminants in a Responsible Party’s containers on more than three 
(3) consecutive occasion(s), the District/County may assess 
contamination processing fees or contamination penalties on the 
Generator.  

(4) With the exception of violations of contamination of container contents 
addressed under Section 21(k), the District shall issue a Notice of 
Violation requiring compliance within 60 days of issuance of the notice.    

(5) Absent compliance by the respondent within the deadline set forth in the 
Notice of Violation, the District shall commence an action to impose 
penalties, via an administrative citation and fine, pursuant to Section 
21(k), Table 1, List of Example Violations.   

(6) Notices shall be sent to “Owner” at the official address of the owner 
maintained by the tax collector for the County Assessor or if no such 
address is available, to the owner at the address of the Multi-Family 
Premises or Commercial Premises or to the Responsible Party for the 
collection services, depending upon available information.  

(e) Penalty Amounts for Types of Violations 

The penalty levels are as follows, as prescribed by 14 CCR Section 18997.2 
and any other applicable code or regulation:  

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 81 of 373



Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 35 of 40 

(1) For a first violation, the amount of the base penalty shall be $50 to $100 
per violation.  

(2) For a second violation, the amount of the base penalty shall be $100 to 
$200 per violation. 

(3) For a third or subsequent violation, the amount of the base penalty shall 
be $250 to $500 per violation.  

(f) Factors Considered in Determining Penalty Amount  

The following factors shall be used to determine the amount of the penalty for 
each violation within the appropriate penalty amount range: 

(1) The nature, circumstances, and severity of the violation(s). 

(2) The violator’s ability to pay. 

(3) The willfulness of the violator's misconduct. 

(4) Whether the violator took measures to avoid or mitigate violations of this 
chapter. 

(5) Evidence of any economic benefit resulting from the violation(s). 

(6) The deterrent effect of the penalty on the violator. 

(7) Whether the violation(s) were due to conditions outside the control of the 
violator.  

(g) Compliance Deadline Extension Considerations 

The District may extend the compliance deadlines set forth in a Notice of 
Violation issued in accordance with this Section if it finds that there are 
extenuating circumstances beyond the control of the respondent that make 
compliance within the deadlines impracticable, including the following: 

(1) Acts of God such as earthquakes, wildfires, flooding, and other 
emergencies or natural disasters; 

(2) Delays in obtaining discretionary permits or other government agency 
approvals; or, 

(3) Deficiencies in Organic Waste recycling infrastructure or Edible Food 
Recovery capacity and the City/County is under a corrective action plan 
with CalRecycle pursuant to 14 CCR Section 18996.2 due to those 
deficiencies. 

(h) Appeals Process 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 82 of 373



Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 36 of 40 

Persons receiving an administrative citation containing a penalty for an 
uncorrected violation may request a hearing to appeal the citation.  A hearing 
will be held only if it is requested within the time prescribed and consistent with 
the Districts formal or informal procedures for appeals of administrative 
citations. Evidence may be presented at the hearing. The District will appoint a 
hearing officer who shall conduct the hearing and issue a final written order.  

(i) Education Period for Non-Compliance  

Beginning January 1, 2022 and through December 31, 2023, the District or its 
Designee will conduct Inspections, Route Reviews or waste evaluations, and 
Compliance Reviews, depending upon the type of regulated entity, to 
determine compliance, and if the District or its Designee determines that 
Generator, Responsible Party, Self-Hauler, hauler, Tier One Commercial 
Edible Food Generator, Food Recovery Organization, Food Recovery Service, 
or other entity is not in compliance, it shall provide educational materials to the 
entity describing its obligations under this Ordinance and a notice that 
compliance is required by January 1, 2022, and that violations may be subject 
to administrative civil penalties starting on January 1, 2024.  

(j) Civil Penalties for Non-Compliance 

Beginning January 1, 2024, if the District determines that a Generator, 
Responsible Party, Self-Hauler, hauler, Tier One or Tier Two Commercial 
Edible Food Generator, Food Recovery Organization, Food Recovery Service, 
or other entity is not in compliance with this Ordinance, it shall document the 
noncompliance or violation, issue a Notice of Violation, and take Enforcement 
Action pursuant to this Section, as needed.   

(k) Enforcement Table 

Table 1. List of Example Violations  

Requirement Description of Violation 

Commercial Business Multi-
Family Premises 
Responsibility Requirement 
Sections 5 and 6 

Responsible Party for a Commercial Business or Multi-
Family Premises fails to provide or arrange for Organic 
Waste collection services consistent with District 
requirements and as outlined in this Ordinance, for 
employees, contractors, tenants, and customers, 
including supplying and allowing access to adequate 
numbers, size, and location of containers and 
sufficient signage and container color. 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 83 of 373



Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 37 of 40 

Requirement Description of Violation 

Organic Waste Generator or 
Responsible Party 
Requirement 
Section 4, 5, and 6 

Organic Waste Generator or Responsible Party fails 
to comply with requirements pursuant to this 
Ordinance. 

Hauler Requirement 
Section 10   

A hauler providing Single-Family, Multi-Family or 
Commercial collection service fails to transport 
Discarded Materials to a facility, operation, activity, or 
property that recovers Organic Waste, as prescribed 
by this Ordinance. 

Hauler Requirement 
Section 10  

A hauler providing Single-Family, Multi-Family or 
Commercial Recyclable Materials, Organic Materials, 
or Solid Waste collection service fails to obtain 
applicable approval issued by the District to haul 
Recyclable Materials, Organic Materials, or Solid 
Waste as prescribed by this Ordinance. 

Hauler Requirement 
Section 10 

A hauler fails to keep a record of the applicable 
documentation of its approval by the District, as 
prescribed by this Ordinance. 

Self-Hauler Requirement 
Section 11 

A Generator or Responsible Party who is a Self-
Hauler fails to comply with the requirements of this 
Ordinance. 

Commercial Edible Food 
Generator Requirement  
Section 8  

Tier One Commercial Edible Food Generator fails to 
arrange to recover the maximum amount of its Edible 
Food that would otherwise be disposed by establishing 
a contract or written agreement with a Food Recovery 
Organization or Food Recovery Service and/or fails to 
comply with other requirements of this Ordinance 
commencing Jan. 1, 2022.  

Commercial Edible Food 
Generator Requirement 
Section 8 

Tier Two Commercial Edible Food Generator fails to 
arrange to recover the maximum amount of its Edible 
Food that would otherwise be disposed by establishing 
a contract or written agreement with a Food Recovery 
Organization or Food Recovery Service and/or fails to 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 84 of 373



Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 38 of 40 

Requirement Description of Violation 

comply with other requirements of this Ordinance 
commencing Jan. 1, 2024. 

Commercial Business 
Responsible Party, Multi-
Family Premises 
Responsible Party, 
Commercial Edible Food 
Generator, Food Recovery 
Organization or Food 
Recovery Service 
Sections 5, 6, 8, 9, and 12  

Failure to provide or arrange for access to an entity’s 
Premises for any Inspection or investigation.  

Recordkeeping 
Requirements for 
Commercial Edible Food 
Generator 
Section 8 

Tier One or Tier Two Commercial Edible Food 
Generator fails to keep records, as prescribed by 
Section 8 of this Ordinance.  

Recordkeeping 
Requirements for Food 
Recovery Services and Food 
Recovery Organizations 
Section 9 

A Food Recovery Organization or Food Recovery 
Service that has established a contract or written 
agreement to collect or receive Edible Food directly 
from a Commercial Edible Food Generator pursuant 
to 14 CCR Section 18991.3(b) fails to keep records, 
as prescribed by Section 9 of this Ordinance. 

Section 22. CalRecycle Issued Waivers 
Certain provisions of this Ordinance may be subject to a low-population waiver pursuant 
to Article 3 in Title 14 of the California Code of Regulations, Sections 18984 through 
18984.13.  Please contact the District for verification. 

Section 23. CEQA 
The District finds that this Ordinance is exempt from the California Environmental Quality 
Act ("CEQA") pursuant to State CEQA Guidelines Sections 15061(b)(3) and 15308 on 
the grounds that it can be seen with certainty that the enhanced waste disposal 
regulations, as provided for in this Ordinance will not have a significant effect on the 
environment and that the new requirements, which strengthen requirements for the 
handling of waste materials, represent actions by a regulatory agency for the protection 
of the environment. 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 85 of 373



Mandatory Solid Waste, Organic Waste, and Recycling Materials Ordinance Page 39 of 40 

Section 24. Severability 
If any section, subsection, subdivision, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this 
Ordinance for any reason is held to be invalid or unconstitutional by the decision of any 
court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining 
portions of this Ordinance. The District hereby declares that it would have adopted this 
Ordinance, and each section, subsection, subdivision, sentence, clause, phrase, or 
portion thereof, irrespective of the fact that any one or more sections, subsections, 
subdivisions, sentences, clauses, phrases, or portions thereof be declared invalid or 
unconstitutional. 

Section 25. Effective Date 
This Ordinance shall be effective commencing on January 1, 2022. 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 86 of 373



 
 
 

 

 

 

6. A. Business Items 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 87 of 373



BUSINESS ACTION ITEM STAFF REPORT 

ITEM 6.A. CONSIDERATION OF CANDIDATES TO REPLACE THE BOARD OF 
DIRECTOR VACANCY CREATED BY THE RESIGNATION OF WILLIAM MAURER 
AND BOARD APPOINTMENT OF THE NEW DIRECTOR. 

Summary: 

With the resignation of William Maurer, the Board directed GES staff to post the notice 
of vacancy in three locations, post the notice on the District website, and an 
advertisement was placed in both the New Times and the Tribune. Additionally, notices 
were mailed to all rate payers with San Simeon and Cambria mailing addresses, and to 
the residents of the mobile home park. 

We received one (1) application, which is enclosed with this packet. It is recommended 
that the Board make an appointment so that the appointee can be sworn in before the 
December 14, 2021 Board meeting. 

Enc:  Application for Board Member Vacancy – Michael Donahue 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 88 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 89 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 90 of 373



 
 
 

 

 

 

6. B. Business Items 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 91 of 373



BUSINESS ACTION ITEM STAFF REPORT 

ITEM 6.B. APPROVAL OF A PROPOSAL FROM AKEL ENGINEERING GROUP, INC. FOR
THE URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN NOT TO EXCEED THE AMOUNT OF $25,090.00.

Summary 

On May 28, 2021 a combined Urban Water Management Plan (UWMP) and Instream 
Flow Management Study (IFMS) Request for Proposal (RFP) for the addendum to the 
District’s Water Master Plan was direct mailed to thirty-five (35) firms. An RFP notice 
was also sent to several trade journals, and an ad was posted in the New Times and the 
Tribune. The deadline for responses was June 24, 2021. There were no responses to 
the RFP.  

At the July 8, 2021 Board meeting GES staff was directed to perform a second 
attempt at the RFP by revising the original RFP into two separate RFP 
documents. One of these RFP’s was for an Urban Water Management Plan 
(UWMP) (including a drought risk assessment). This RFP was issued on 
August 11, 2021 and was mailed to 39 firms. The deadline for the UWMP RFP 
was October 14, 2021. 

The Urban Water Management Plan (UWMP) is not required for the community 
of San Simeon because the District has less than 3,000 connections. However, 
the UWMP would demonstrate the CSD has a plan in place for the community 
watershed. The District received two responsive bids from the following firms: 

1) Akel Engineering Group, LLC. – $ 25,090.00
2) Hasan Consultants - $ 150,500.00

Possible Outcomes: 
1) The Board can authorize the work to be performed and select 

the lowest qualified bidder. 
2) The Board can choose not to authorize the work for the 

UWMP.

Enc:  Proposal – Akel Engineering Group, LLC. 
Proposal – Hasan Consultants 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 92 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 93 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 94 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 95 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 96 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 97 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 98 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 99 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 100 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 101 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 102 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 103 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 104 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 105 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 106 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 107 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 108 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 109 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 110 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 111 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 112 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 113 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 114 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 115 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 116 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 117 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 118 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 119 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 120 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 121 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 122 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 123 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 124 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 125 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 126 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 127 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 128 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 129 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 130 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 131 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 132 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 133 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 134 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 135 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 136 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 137 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 138 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 139 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 140 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 141 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 142 of 373



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 143 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 144 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 145 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 146 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 147 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 148 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 149 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 150 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 151 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 152 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 153 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 154 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 155 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 156 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 157 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 158 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 159 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 160 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 161 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 162 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 163 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 164 of 373



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6. C. Business Items 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 165 of 373



BUSINESS ACTION ITEM STAFF REPORT 

ITEM 6.C. APPROVAL OF A PROPOSAL FROM STILLWATER SCIENCES FOR THE INFLOW 
STREAM MANAGEMENT PLAN TASKS 1 THROUGH 5 NOT TO EXCEED THE AMOUNT OF
$ 84,900.00. 

Summary: 

On May 28, 2021 a combined Urban Water Management Plan (UWMP) and Instream 
Flow Management Study (IFMS) Request for Proposal (RFP) for the addendum to the 
District’s Water Master Plan was direct mailed to thirty-five (35) firms. An RFP notice 
was also sent to several trade journals, and an ad was posted in the New Times and the 
Tribune. The deadline for responses was June 24, 2021. There were no responses to 
the RFP.  

At the July 8, 2021 Board meeting GES staff was directed to perform a second attempt 
at the RFP by revising the original RFP into two separate RFP documents. One of these 
RFP’s was for an Instream Flow Management Plan (IFMP). This RFP was issued on 
August 11, 2021 and was mailed to 39 firms. The deadline for this RFP was October 14, 
2021. The SSCSD office received one responsive bid from Stillwater Sciences on 
October 14, 2021. Hasan Consultants submitted a non-responsive bid on October 14, 
2021. On October 29, 2021 Hasan Consulting submitted a bid with pricing clarification. 
The District received one responsive bid and one non-responsive bid from the following 
firms:  

Responsive Bid: 
1) Stillwater Sciences - $84,900.00

Non-responsive Bid submitted 10/29/2021 (after RFP deadline): 
1) Hasan Consultants - $76,026.00

Recommendation: 

GES Staff reviewed both proposals. Based on the experience, qualifications 
and competitive pricing from Stillwater, staff recommends Stillwater for the 
Instream Flow Management Study.  

Enc: Proposal – Stillwater Sciences 
Proposal - Hasan Consultants 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 166 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 167 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 168 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 169 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 170 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 171 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 172 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 173 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 174 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 175 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 176 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 177 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 178 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 179 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 180 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 181 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 182 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 183 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 184 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 185 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 186 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 187 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 188 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 189 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 190 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 191 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 192 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 193 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 194 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 195 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 196 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 197 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 198 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 199 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 200 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 201 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 202 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 203 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 204 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 205 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 206 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 207 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 208 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 209 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 210 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 211 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 212 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 213 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 214 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 215 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 216 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 217 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 218 of 373



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 219 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 220 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 221 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 222 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 223 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 224 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 225 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 226 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 227 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 228 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 229 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 230 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 231 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 232 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 233 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 234 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 235 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 236 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 237 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 238 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 239 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 240 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 241 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 242 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 243 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 244 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 245 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 246 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 247 of 373



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6. D. Business Items 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 248 of 373



 

  

BUSINESS ACTION ITEM STAFF REPORT  

ITEM 6.D. APPROVAL OF A PROPOSAL FROM COOPERATIVE STRATEGIES FOR 
DISTRICTING SERVICES NOT TO EXCEED THE AMOUNT OF $25,090.00.  
Background: 
 
The San Simeon Community Services District (District) currently elects its Board 
through an at-large electoral system in which each Board member may reside anywhere 
within the District’s boundaries, is elected by the entire electorate, and the candidates 
with the most votes fill the open seats. This electoral system is known as the “multi-seat 
plurality electoral system.” 
 
The California Voting Rights Act (CVRA) allows for legal challenges alleging that an at-large 
system has resulted in racially polarized voting within a jurisdiction and the ability to seek a 
court order that a jurisdiction convert to a by-district election system. Racially polarized voting” 
under the CVRA means voting in which there is a difference between the choice of candidates 
or other electoral choices that are preferred by voters in a protected class and in the choice of 
candidates and electoral choices preferred by voters in the ‘rest of the electorate’, and in which 
the candidates preferred by ‘the rest of the electorate’ defeat the candidates preferred by the 
protected class voters. A by-district based electoral system is one in which a jurisdiction is 
divided into separate geographic districts, each with one representative who resides in the 
district and is elected only by the voters residing within the district. In a by-district system, voters 
within each district may vote for only one candidate. “ 
 
Moving to a by-district election system is the ‘safe harbor’ under the California Voting 
Rights Act that prevents a CVRA lawsuit alleging the dilution of protected class voting 
strength. As a result, staff and legal counsel examined the various alternative 
approaches considering recent legal decisions and what would protect the District 
from lawsuits under the CVRA. While alternative election systems may enhance a 
District’s defense in a CVRA lawsuit, none currently provides a safe harbor from being 
sued under the CVRA except for moving the District to by-district elections. 
 
Discussion: 
 
As part of the District’s diligence in conducting its business consistent with laws and 
regulations that promote well governed communities, the Board adopted Resolution 21-430 on 
February 11, 2021. This Resolution declared its intention to transition from at-large to District-
based elections by November 2022. The Board authorized the General Manager to contract 
with a Demographer to begin drawing District maps.  
 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 249 of 373



GES staff contacted three vendors to obtain quotes.  
 
 

1. National Demographics Corporation – Non-responsive 
2. Redistricting Strategies - $8,500.00 – Provided a quote to review the demographics for 

San Simeon CSD to determine potential need to convert to by-area election.  
3. Cooperative Strategies - $20,050.00 – Provided a quote to perform voting area creation 

services.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends that the Board approves the proposal from Cooperative Strategies for 
districting services and authorize the General Manager to execute an agreement with 
Cooperative Solutions for an amount not to exceed $20,050. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Enc: Proposal - Cooperative Strategies  
 Proposal – Redistricting Strategies 
 
 
 
 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 250 of 373



 

 

O CT O B E R  26 ,  2 0 2 1  

S A N  S I M E O N  C O M M U N I T Y  S E R V I C E S  D I S T R I C T  

 

VOTING AREA CREATION 
SERVICES  

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 251 of 373



 

 

L E T T E R  O F  I N T E R E S T  
 
Mr. Charles Grace & Ms. Cortney Murguia 
c/o San Simeon Community Services Distr ict  
111 Pico Avenue 
San Simeon, CA 93452 

Re: Proposal to Provide Voting Area Creation Services 

Dear Mr. Grace & Ms. Murguia:  

Cooperative Strategies,  LLC is pleased to submit the enclosed proposal 
("Proposal") to provide demographic services in compliance with the California 
Voting Rights Act ("CVRA") for San Simeon Community Services District  ("SSCSD" 
or "Distr ict") .  

For more than 25 years, Cooperative Strategies has provided services to public  
agencies throughout Cal ifornia.  Our phi losophy is  to provide relat ionship-based 
consult ing services and to thoroughly understand our c lients '  specif ic needs.  

Given our long history of working with public agencies and our expertise in 
analyzing and evaluating demographic data, Cooperative Strategies is uniquely 
qual if ied to assist SSCSD with demographic services in relation to compliance 
with the CVRA. We've provided similar services to more than 50 public agencies 
across the State of California ("State") which makes us int imately familiar  with 
the requirements under the CVRA and the Federal  Voting Rights Act ("FVRA").  

We stand by our philosophy of act ing as an advocate for our cl ients,  and therefore 
only serve public agencies in these matters.  We also offer s implif ied pric ing with 
a single fee that includes all  meetings required under applicable laws.  Thank you 
for the opportunity to submit the enclosed proposal .  Should you have any 
questions, please do not hesitate to contact me as I  wil l  serve as the primary 
point of contact for SSCSD. 

Sincerely,  

 

David Lopez 
Executive Director

1 0 / 2 6 / 2 0 2 1  

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 252 of 373



 

 

T A B L E  O F  C O N T E N T S  
 

S E C T I O N          P A G E  

S C O P E  O F  S E R V I C E S  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1  

K E Y  P E R S O N N E L  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  7  

P A S T  P R O J E C T S  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1 1  

R E F E R E N C E S  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1 6  

F E E  P R O P O S A L  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1 8  

 

 

 

 

 

ABOUT US 
O U R  A B I L I T Y  T O  S E R V E  Y O U  

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 253 of 373



SECT IO N 2  –  SCOPE  O F SER VICES  9-30 -20 20  
 

 

 

 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 254 of 373



SECTION 1 –  SCOPE OF SERVICES  10-26-2021 
 

 PROPOSAL TO PROVIDE VOTING AREA CREATION SERVICES  
              TO SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES  DISTRICT PAGE 2  

 

V O T I N G  A R E A  C R E A T I O N  
Cooperative Strategies has aided a number of public  agencies throughout the 
State with the creation and implementation of voting areas.  When drawing voting 
areas, we util ize the following legal considerations:  
 

• Each area shall  contain nearly equal    
number of inhabitants based on total 
population with a variance of up to 10 
percent between the largest and smallest 
areas 
• Comply with the FVRA in that member of 
a protected class do not have their voting 
rights di luted through the creation of 
voting areas 
• Be compact and contiguous, as much as 
possible 
• Follow man-made and natural  geographic features, as much as possible 
• Respect incumbency where possible 
• Consider other local criter ia 
 

Once several maps that meet the above criter ia are 
created,  we review them with Distr ict staff and legal 
counsel to ensure legal compliance.  The maps are then 
shared with the governing board for review and 
comment prior to receiving public input.  Public input 
can take the form of public hearings at board meetings 
or in town hall  meetings across the Distr ict  where 
community members can review the information and 
provide feedback.   

 

After a ll feedback is  compiled, the governing board can adjust the maps as it 
desires before ult imately deciding on the map that best meets the needs of the 
community. Cooperative Strategies then aids in the approval and adoption 
process to f inal ize and implement the new voting area election method. The 
following scope of work outl ines the specif ic act iv ities and tasks involved in 
Cooperative Strategies' voting area creation services.   

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 255 of 373



SECTION 1 –  SCOPE OF SERVICES  10-26-2021 
 

 PROPOSAL TO PROVIDE VOTING AREA CREATION SERVICES  
              TO SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES  DISTRICT PAGE 3  

 

S T A T E M E N T  O F  W O R K  

Voting Area Creation 

ACTIVITY & 
TIMING TASKS 

1. 

Goals, Priorities 
and Data 
Analysis 

1.A. Identify Goals and Priorities 

This task involves determining the goals the Distr ict has for 
the redistrict ing process. This determination wil l  be based 
on Elect ions Code, including the Cal ifornia Voting Rights 
Act and Federal  Voting Rights Act.   Goals and prior it ies may 
or may not take into account:  

• Balanced Population (One Person, One Vote) 

• Civic  Boundaries 

• Community Identity 

 1.B. Identify Key Issues and Considerations 

This task involves identify ing the key issues and 
considerations involved in creating Voting Areas.  These 
may include legal issues,  compliance with federal  and State 
regulations,  constituent/community concerns, as wel l as 
others .  

 1.C. Discuss Requirements with Legal Counsel 

This task involves discussing the l ist  of  i tems identif ied in 
Tasks 1.A.  and 1.B.  with staff  of the Distr ict and their  
counsel to ensure compliance with al l  appl icable legal,  
statutory, and organizational requirements. 

 1.D. Prepare Census Data Analysis for Voting Areas 

This task involves analyzing 2020 Census data to obtain 
information on population within the District  as well  as to 
use in creating conceptual Voting Areas.  

 1.E. Evaluate Population of Community 

This task involves evaluating the demographics of  the 
Distr ict based on data from the United States Census.  

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 256 of 373



SECTION 1 –  SCOPE OF SERVICES  10-26-2021 
 

 PROPOSAL TO PROVIDE VOTING AREA CREATION SERVICES  
              TO SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES  DISTRICT PAGE 4  

 

ACTIVITY & 
TIMING TASKS 

 1.F. Attend and Present at Public Hearings 

This task involves Cooperative Strategies attending and 
presenting at the two (2) pre-map public  hearings at 
meetings of the Governing Board of the Distr ict to gather 
input from the community and Board of Directors.  

2. 

Prepare and 
Present 
Scenarios  

2.A. Create Conceptual Voting Areas 

This task involves using Census data and GIS data gathered 
in Task 1.D. and input received in Task 1.F . to prepare three 
(3) conceptual Voting Area scenarios. This task wil l  involve 
preparing alternative Voting Area boundary proposals for 
consideration, including maps and demographic data for 
comparative purposes. 

 2.B. Present Recommendations to Staff 

This task involves presenting conceptual Voting Areas to 
Distr ict staff for their review and consideration.  
Cooperative Strategies wil l  prepare deliverables and a 
presentation with the goal of  ref ining the 
recommendations that wil l  be delivered to the Board. 

 2.C. Present to Board of Directors 

This task involves three (3) meetings to present the 
scenarios from Task 2.B. to the Board for comment and 
review.  These meetings include the public hearings 
required prior to approval by the Governing Board. 

 2.D. Assist in Public Outreach 

This task involves assist ing in a public outreach effort to 
present conceptual scenarios to the public and solic it  
feedback from constituents on the scenarios.  

 2.E. Revise Scenarios 

This task involves revis ing the conceptual scenarios based 
on feedback from the public  and the Board.  

 2.F. Present Revised Scenarios to  Board of Directors 

This task involves presenting the revised scenarios to the 
Board for consideration and approval of  new Voting Areas.  

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 257 of 373



SECTION 1 –  SCOPE OF SERVICES  10-26-2021 
 

 PROPOSAL TO PROVIDE VOTING AREA CREATION SERVICES  
              TO SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES  DISTRICT PAGE 5  

 

ACTIVITY & 
TIMING TASKS 

 2.G. Assist in Implementation Process 

This task involves assist ing in ensuring documentation is  
provided to the County offices to implement the change in 
Voting Areas.  

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 258 of 373



SECTION 2 –  KEY PERSONNEL 10-26-2021 
 

 PROPOSAL TO PROVIDE VOTING AREA CREATION SERVICES  
              TO SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES  DISTRICT PAGE 6  

 

 

 

KEY PERSONNEL 
Y O U R  T E A M  O F  E X P E R T S  

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 259 of 373



SECTION 2 –  KEY PERSONNEL 10-26-2021 
 

 PROPOSAL TO PROVIDE VOTING AREA CREATION SERVICES  
              TO SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES  DISTRICT PAGE 7  

 

DA V I D  L O P E Z  
E X E C U T I V E  D I R E C T O R  

David Lopez brings over 25 years 
of experience in managing project 
teams within the client service 
industry.  He assists both Public 
Agencies and Local Education 

Agencies with utilization of Community Facilities Districts 
("CFDs") as facilities funding options, trustee area 
redistr ict ing, facilities master planning efforts, 
enrollment projections, developer impact fee studies, 
redevelopment services and other specialized 
demographic needs. 

In addition to being actively involved with client relations 
and outreach endeavors nationwide, David presents 
training topics at COE-sponsored meetings and various 
regional events hosted by and for public agencies. 

Education 

•  B.A. ,  American History, University of 
California, Berkeley 

Areas of Expertise 

•  CFD Formation & Administration 
•  Trustee/Voting Areas 
•  Community Engagement 
•  Demographic Studies 
•  Enrollment Projections 
•  Facil it ies Master Planning 
•  Redevelopment 

Notable Accomplishments 

•  Currently serves over 100 Publ ic Agencies 
cl ients throughout 16 CA counties 

•  Involved in the formation of more than 50  
•  CFDs from 2008 to present 

  

Sample Experience 

Apple Valley Unified School District, CA 
Capacity Analysis, Developer Fee Justification 
Studies, Facilities Usage Fee Studies 

City of Beverly Hills, CA 
Disclosure Compliance Services; CFD 
Administration 

Conejo Valley Unified School District, CA 
Developer Fee Justification Studies, Enrollment 
Projections, myschoolLOCATION, Trustee/ Voting 
Areas 

East Orange County Water District, CA 
Trustee/Voting Areas 

Lodi Unified School District, CA 
Developer Fee Justification Studies; Enrollment 
Projections; Facilities Master Planning; Facilities 
Usage Fees; myschoolLOCATION 
 

Los Osos Community Services District, CA 
Trustee/Voting Areas 

Menifee Union School District, CA 
CFD Administration; CFD Formation; 
Demographic Analysis; Developer Negotiations; 
Enrollment Projections; Funding Programs 

Paso Robles Joint Unified School District, CA 
Redevelopment, Developer Fee Justification 
Studies, Attendance Boundaries, Trustee/Voting 
Areas 
 

Perris Elementary School District, CA 
CFD Administration, Clean Energy Services, 
Developer Fee Justification Studies, 
Redevelopment, Trustee/Voting Areas 

San Miguel Joint Union School District, CA 
Trustee/Voting Areas 

Santa Ynez Valley UHSD, CA 
Developer Fee Justification Studies 

Simi Valley Unified School District, CA 
Developer Fee Justification Studies, Facilities 
Usage Fee Studies 

Victor Elementary School District, CA 
CFD Administration; Continuing Disclosure; 
Enrollment Projections, Trustee/Voting Areas 

 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 260 of 373



SECTION 2 –  KEY PERSONNEL 10-26-2021 
 

 PROPOSAL TO PROVIDE VOTING AREA CREATION SERVICES  
              TO SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES  DISTRICT PAGE 8  

 

J U S T I N  R I C H  
E X E C U T I V E  D I R E C T O R  

Justin Rich brings over 15 years of 
experience in school facil it ies planning 
and f inance. He assists both Public 
Agencies and Local Education Agencies 

with their  facil it ies master planning efforts,  special ized 
demographic analyses, and munic ipal advisory services.  
He has been involved in numerous community outreach 
efforts related to trustee area redistr ict ing, facil ity  
planning, general obl igation bond elections, and school 
attendance boundaries/closures .  

In addit ion to being actively involved with cl ient  
relations and outreach endeavors, Justin has presented 
on various topics at industry conferences and events.  

Education 

•  M.P.A. ,  Publ ic Administration, California State 
University ,  Long Beach 

•  B.A. ,  Polit ical Sc ience,  University of California, Los 
Angeles 

Areas of Expertise 

•  Trustee/Voting Areas 
•  Facil it ies Master Planning 
•  Community Engagement 
•  Development Impact Analyses 
•  Boundary Planning 

Notable Accomplishments 

•  MSRB Series 50, Municipal Advisor Representative.  
•  Advised on nearly $7 bi l l ion in municipal bond 

transactions for school distr icts and community 
college distr icts.  

• Facil itated multiple community outreach processes 
and townhall forums related to facil it ies master plans,  
school attendance boundary adjustments and school 
closures.   

Sample Experience 

Riverside Community College District, CA 
Trustee/Voting Areas 

Riverside Unified School District, CA 
Trustee/Voting Areas 

Castro Valley Unified School District, CA 
Bond Election Services; Financial Advisory 

Lake Elsinore Unified School District, CA 
Boundary Planning; Developer Fee 
Justification Studies; Facilities Master 
Planning; Demographic Analysis; Developer 
Negotiations 

Menifee Union School District, CA 
Financial Advisory; Demographic Analysis; 
Developer Negotiations; Enrollment 
Projections 

Moreland School District, CA 
Boundary Planning; Developer Fee 
Justification Studies 

Mountain View School District, CA 
Developer Negotiations; Developer Fee 
Justification Studies; Bond Election Services; 
Financial Advisory 

Norris School District, CA 
Facilities Master Plan; Financial Advisory 

Oakley Union Elementary School District, 
CA 
Bond Election Services; Financial Advisory 

Pasadena Unified School District, CA 
Boundary Planning; Developer Fee 
Justification Studies; Redevelopment  

Richland School District, CA 
Facilities Master Planning; Developer Fee 
Justification Studies; Enrollment Projections 

San Dieguito Union High School District, 
CA 
Long Range Facilities Task Force; Bond 
Election Services; Financial Advisory 

San Gabriel Unified School District, CA 
Developer Fee Justification Studies, Facilities 
Usage Fee Studies 

    

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 261 of 373



SECTION 2 –  KEY PERSONNEL 10-26-2021 
 

 PROPOSAL TO PROVIDE VOTING AREA CREATION SERVICES  
              TO SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES  DISTRICT PAGE 9  

 

A N D R E W  B I S H O P  
S E N I O R  A S S O C I A T E  
D I R E C T O R  

Andrew Bishop has provided f inancial ,  
demographic,  and cartographic 
services to a wide variety of public 

agencies since 2005. His expertise with Geographic 
Information Systems has helped i l lustrate a variety  of 
demographic and facil it ies planning services for 
hundreds of school distr icts,  c it ies,  and special distr icts .   

Andrew also has extensive experience in calculating 
student generation rates to determine future student 
enrollment and the result ing impact on school faci l it ies.  

Education 

•  B.A. ,  Geography, University of California, Los 
Angeles 

Areas of Expertise 

•  Geographic Information Systems 
•  Trustee/Voting Areas 
•  School Facil it ies Needs Analyses 
•  Enrollment Projections 
•  Capacity Analyses 
•  Assessment Distr ict Administration 
•  Developer Fee Justif ication Studies 

Notable Accomplishments 

•  Finalist ,  NYC Department of Education Call  for 
Innovations, Enhancing School Zoning Efforts by 
Predicting Population change 

 

 

Sample Experience 

Anaheim Elementary School 
District, CA 
Trustee/Voting Areas 

Beverly Hills Unified School 
District, CA 
Developer Fee Justification Studies 

Bonita Unified District, CA 
Developer Fee Justification Studies; 
RIMD Administration 

Fremont Unified School District, CA 
Developer Fee Justification Studies; 
Enrollment Projections; School 
Facilities Needs Analyses 

Hesperia Unified School District, CA 
Annual & Five-Year Reports; Developer 
Fee Justification Studies; Enrollment 
Projections; School Facilities Needs 
Analyses 

Irvine Unified School District, CA 
Annual & Five-Year Reports; Developer 
Fee Justification Studies; RIMD 
Administration; School Facilities Needs 
Analyses 

Marin County Office of Education 
Trustee/Voting Areas 

Menifee Union School District, CA 
Annual & Five-Year Reports; Developer 
Fee Justification Studies; School 
Facilities Needs Analyses 

North Orange County Community 
College District 
Trustee/Voting Areas 

Palm Springs Unified School 
District, CA 
Developer Fee Justification Studies 

Redondo Beach Unified School 
District, CA 
Boundary Planning; Developer Fee 
Justification Studies; Enrollment 
Projections 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 262 of 373



SECTION 3 –  PAST PROJECTS  10-26-21 
 

 PROPOSAL TO PROVIDE VOTING AREA CREATION SERVICES  
              TO SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES  DISTRICT PAGE 10 

 

 

 

PAST PROJECTS 
P R O V E N  S U C C E S S  S T O R I E S  

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 263 of 373



SECTION 3 –  PAST PROJECTS  10-26-21 
 

 PROPOSAL TO PROVIDE VOTING AREA CREATION SERVICES  
              TO SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES  DISTRICT PAGE 11 

 

P A S T  P R O J E C T S  

Please see below for a l ist of some of the agencies we have previously assisted 
or are being provided similar services by our f irm at this time. Please note, we 
cannot disclose a full  l ist  of our c lients for whom we have performed liabi l i ty 
analysis services as many engaged our services through legal counsel which 
remain under attorney-client pr iv ilege.  

 

District Name Location Service Type 
Adelanto Elementary 

School Distr ict 
San Bernardino 

County 
Voting Area Creation 

Services 

Alta Loma School District 
San Bernardino 

County 
Voting Area Creation 

Services 
Alvord Unified 
School Distr ict 

Riverside 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Anaheim Elementary 
School Distr ict 

Orange 
County 

CVRA Analysis & 
Voting Area Creation 

Services 
Anaheim Union High 

School Distr ict 
Orange 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Antelope Valley Union 
High School Distr ict 

Los Angeles 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Antioch Unified School 
Distr ict 

Contra Costa 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Apple Valley Unified 
School Distr ict 

San Bernardino 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Banning Unified 
School Distr ict 

Riverside 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Beaumont Unified 
School Distr ict 

Riverside 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Benicia Unified School 
Distr ict 

Solano 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Bonsall Unified 
School Distr ict 

San Diego 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 264 of 373



SECTION 3 –  PAST PROJECTS  10-26-21 
 

 PROPOSAL TO PROVIDE VOTING AREA CREATION SERVICES  
              TO SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES  DISTRICT PAGE 12 

 

District Name Location Service Type 
City of 

Garden Grove 
Orange 
County 

CVRA Analysis 

Conejo Valley Unified 
School Distr ict 

Ventura 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Corona-Norco Unified 
School Distr ict 

Riverside 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Davis Joint Unified School 
Distr ict 

Yolo 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Desert Sands Unified 
School Distr ict 

Riverside 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Diablo Water Distr ict 
Contra Costa 

County 
Voting Area Creation 

Services 
Dublin Unified 
School Distr ict 

Alameda 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

East Orange County  
Water District 

Orange 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Etiwanda 
School Distr ict 

San Bernardino 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Exeter 
Ambulance Distr ict 

Tulare 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Fallbrook Union High 
School Distr ict 

San Diego 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Fullerton 
School Distr ict 

Orange 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Garden Grove Unified 
School Distr ict 

Orange 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Hacienda La Puente 
Unified School District 

Los Angeles 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Hesperia Unified 
School Distr ict 

San Bernardino 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Hueneme Elementary 
School Distr ict 

Ventura 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 265 of 373



SECTION 3 –  PAST PROJECTS  10-26-21 
 

 PROPOSAL TO PROVIDE VOTING AREA CREATION SERVICES  
              TO SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES  DISTRICT PAGE 13 

 

District Name Location Service Type 
Imperial Valley Community 

College District 
Imperial 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

La Mesa-Spring Valley 
School Distr ict 

San Diego 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Lincoln Unified 
School Distr ict 

San Joaquin 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Moorpark Unified School 
Distr ict 

Ventura 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Moreno Valley Unified 
School Distr ict 

Riverside 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Mt. Diablo Unified School 
Distr ict 

Contra Costa 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

North Orange County 
Community College 

Distr ict 

Orange 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Novato Unified 
School Distr ict 

Marin 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Oakley Union Elementary 
School Distr ict 

Contra Costa 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Ojai Unified School District 
Ventura 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Ontario-Montclair 
School Distr ict 

San Bernardino 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Oxnard 
School Distr ict 

Ventura 
County 

CVRA Analysis & 
Voting Area Creation 

Services 
Palm Springs Unified 

School Distr ict 
Riverside 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Perris Elementary 
School Distr ict 

Riverside 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Redlands Unified 
School Distr ict 

San Bernardino 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 266 of 373



SECTION 3 –  PAST PROJECTS  10-26-21 
 

 PROPOSAL TO PROVIDE VOTING AREA CREATION SERVICES  
              TO SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES  DISTRICT PAGE 14 

 

District Name Location Service Type 
Rim of the World Unified 

School Distr ict 
San Bernardino 

County 
Voting Area Creation 

Services 
Riverside Community 

College District 
Riverside 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Romoland 
School Distr ict 

Riverside 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Rowland Unified School 
Distr ict 

Los Angeles 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

San Juan Unified School 
Distr ict 

Sacramento 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

San Mateo County 
Community College 

Distr ict 

San Mateo 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Santa Paula Unified School 
Distr ict 

Ventura 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Santa Rosa  
City Schools 

Sonoma 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Snowline Joint Unified 
School Distr ict 

San Bernardino 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

South Whittier School 
Distr ict 

Los Angeles 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Temecula Valley Unified 
School Distr ict 

Riverside 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Val Verde Unified 
School Distr ict 

Riverside 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Vallecitos Elementary 
School Distr ict 

San Diego 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Vallejo City Unified School 
Distr ict 

Solano 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Victor Elementary 
School Distr ict 

San Bernardino 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

Victor Valley Union High 
School Distr ict 

San Bernardino 
County 

Voting Area Creation 
Services 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 267 of 373



SECTION 4 –  REFERENCES 10-26-2021 
 

 PROPOSAL TO PROVIDE VOTING AREA CREATION SERVICES  
              TO SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES  DISTRICT PAGE 15 

 

 

 

REFERENCES 
T R A N S P A R E N C Y  I S  T R U S T  

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 268 of 373



SECTION 4 –  REFERENCES 10-26-2021 
 

 PROPOSAL TO PROVIDE VOTING AREA CREATION SERVICES  
              TO SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES  DISTRICT PAGE 16 

 

 

CLIENT CONTACT INFORMATION 

Conejo Val ley Unif ied  
School Distr ict  

Dr. Victor Hayek 
Deputy Superintendent 

805.498.4557 
VHayek@conejousd.org 

Diablo Water District  
Dan Muelrath 

General Manager 
925.625.3798 

dmuelrath@diablowater.org 

Garden Grove Unif ied  
School Distr ict  

Dr. Gabriela Mafi  
Superintendent 

714.663.6000 
gmafi@ggusd.us 

North Orange County Community  
College District  

Fred Wil l iams 
Vice Chancel lor 

714.808.4746 
fwil liams@nocccd.edu 

Oakley Union Elementary 
School Distr ict  

Cindy Peterson 
Assistant Superintendent 

925.625.5054 
cpeterson@ouesd.k12.ca.us 

 
Paso Robles Joint Unif ied 

School Distr ict  

 

Brad Pawlowski 
Assistant Superintendent 

805.769.1000 
bpawlowski@pasoschools.org 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 269 of 373



SECTION 5 –  FEE PROPOSAL 10-26-2021 
 

 PROPOSAL TO PROVIDE VOTING AREA CREATION SERVICES  
              TO SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES  DISTRICT PAGE 17 

 

 

 

FEE PROPOSAL 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 270 of 373



SECTION 5 –  FEE PROPOSAL 10-26-2021 
 

 PROPOSAL TO PROVIDE VOTING AREA CREATION SERVICES  
              TO SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES  DISTRICT PAGE 18 

 

The proposed fee for Cooperative Strategies to perform the services as descr ibed 
in Section I  of this Proposal is outlined below. This fee includes attendance at up 
to f ive (5) meetings at the District (public hearings, Board meetings and 
community input meetings),  as well  as scenario creation and mapping services.  

 

SERVICE DESCRIPTION PROPOSED FEE 

Voting Area Creation 
$21,500 

(Plus Expenses)  

 

Should the District wish to util ize a web-based tool for members of the 
community to provide scenarios or revise map options,  there shall  be an 
additional fee of $5,000 for such service.  
 
Should the District request attendance at additional meetings beyond those 
identified in Exhibit A, attendance is not guaranteed and will  be subject to 
limited availability.   If available, attendance may be virtual and the fee shall 
be $850 per additional meeting. 

 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 271 of 373



 

2855 MICHELLE DR, SUITE 230, IRVINE, CA 92618                  844.654.2421                 WWW.COOPSTRATEGIES.COM 

AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTING SERVICES 
 

THIS AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTING SERVICES ("Agreement") is made and entered into 
this ____ day of ________ 2021 ("Effective Date"), by and San Simeon Community Services District 
at 111 Pico Avenue, San Simeon, CA 93452, hereinafter called "Client", and Cooperative 
Strategies, LLC at 2855 Michelle Drive, Suite 230, Irvine, CA 92606, hereinafter called 
"Consultant".  The Client and the Consultant in consideration of the mutual promises and 
conditions herein contained agree as follows: 

 
ARTICLE I. 

SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED BY CONSULTANT 
 

Section 1.1 Services, Statement of Work. Client hereby retains Consultant to 
perform the services ("Services") set forth in the Statement of Work (the "SOW") attached 
as Exhibit A to this Agreement, which is hereby incorporated by reference.  In the event of 
a conflict between this Agreement and the SOW, the SOW shall prevail for the purposes of 
such SOW only. 

 
Section 1.2 No Agency. The relationship of the Parties is that of independent 

contractors. Nothing herein will be deemed to create an employment, agency, joint venture, 
or partnership relationship between the Parties or any of their agents or employees. Neither 
Party will have the power to enter into any contracts or to incur any liabilities on behalf of 
the other. 

 
ARTICLE II. 

OWNERSHIP; USE 
 

Section 2.1 Consultant Materials. Consultant owns any and all work product 
created in the performance of this Agreement, including all intellectual property rights 
therein, including, but not limited to: (a) computer software (including financial models, 
compilations of formulas and spreadsheet models), inventions, designs, programs, 
improvements, techniques, ideas, concepts, trade secrets and know-how, proprietary 
models, processes and methods, and (b) reports, drawings, templates, specifications, 
computer files, field data, notes, other documents and instruments and other works of 
authorship and developments conceived, created, discovered, invented, or reduced to 
practice ("Consultant Materials").  

 
Section 2.2 Client’s Rights and Obligations. This Agreement only entitles Client 

to a right to use the hard copy or electronic reports portion of the Consultant Materials 
(each a "Report"). Client shall not reuse Reports for any unlawful purpose. Client shall, to 
the fullest extent permitted by law, indemnify and hold harmless Consultant, its 
shareholders, officers, directors, members, managers, employees, and subcontractors 
(“Consultant Indemnified Parties”) against any damages, losses, liabilities. and costs and 
expenses, including reasonable attorneys' fees and costs, arising from or allegedly arising 
from the unauthorized use of the Consultant Materials or Reports by or through Client. 

 
 
 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 272 of 373



SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT  PAGE 2 
VOTING AREA CREATION SERVICES  OCTOBER 22, 2021 

Section 2.3 Rights. Consultant reserves all rights in Consultant Materials, 
including the Reports. Consultant may use Consultant Materials for any purpose during the 
term of this Agreement or thereafter. Client agrees that Consultant has spent and will spend 
substantial time and effort in collecting and compiling data and information (including 
Client Data, as defined below) (the "Data Compilations") in order to produce the Report(s). 
Data Compilations may be used by Consultant for its own purposes, including, without 
limitation, sale, or distribution to third parties, provided that Consultant will not sell or 
distribute Client’s Confidential Information that may be contained in Data Compilations 
unless such information is used on an aggregated, anonymous basis. 

 
ARTICLE III. 

COMPENSATION 
 

Section 3.1 Fees. Client shall pay Consultant a professional fee according to the 
fee schedule attached as Exhibit B hereto (the "Fee Schedule") for the Services rendered 
hereunder. Consultant may adjust its rates in the event of an amendment of the SOW.   

 
Section 3.2 Reimbursement. Client agrees that it shall reimburse Consultant for 

Consultant’s out-of-pocket expenses incurred in performance of the Consulting Services. 
Expenses of Consultant in the performance of any Consulting Services that will be 
reimbursed by Client are the following: 

(a) Transportation costs, including mileage for the use of personal automobiles at 
the prevailing IRS standard rate, rental vehicles, travel, lodging and regularly 
scheduled commercial airline ticket costs; and 
(b) Third-party photographic reproduction and data purchases. 
(c) Photocopies, facsimile, postage, overnight deliveries. 

 
Section 3.3 Invoices. Consultant shall deliver to Client an invoice for Services 

performed and reimbursable expenses incurred in the prior month. Client shall pay all 
invoices within forty-five (45) days of the date of each invoice. A monthly charge of 1.2% 
may be imposed on past due accounts. Payment shall not be subject to any discounts or 
set-offs. 

 
ARTICLE IV. 

OTHER AGREEMENTS OF CONSULTANT 
 

Section 4.1 Performance. Consultant shall perform the Services in accordance 
with the SOW and generally accepted industry standards. 

Section 4.2 Necessary tools. Consultant shall supply all tools and 
instrumentalities required to perform the Services under the Agreement.  

 
Section 4.3 Workers’ Compensation. Consultant shall maintain workers’ 

compensation insurance for Consultant’s employees and agents performing Services as 
required by law. Consultant shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws and 
ordinances as it relates to the work to be performed under this Agreement. 

 
Section 4.4 Liability Insurance. Consultant shall, at its sole cost and expense, carry 

and maintain throughout the term of this Agreement professional liability insurance 
covering errors and omissions, with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence or 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 273 of 373



SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT  PAGE 3 
VOTING AREA CREATION SERVICES  OCTOBER 22, 2021 

$2,000,000 aggregate. Evidence of such insurance shall be provided to Client as soon as 
reasonably practicable following Client’s written request. 

 
ARTICLE V. 

OTHER AGREEMENTS OF CLIENT 
 

Section 5.1 Client’s Assistance. Client shall provide all information, data and 
documents as specified in the SOW, or reasonably requested by Consultant. Client shall also 
satisfy any assumptions, perform any SOW obligations, and comply with all applicable laws 
and regulations. 

 
Section 5.2 Client Responsibility.  

(a) Client acknowledges Consultant will be using various data, reports, studies, 
computer printouts and other information, documents, and representations as to facts, 
the source of which may be Client (“Client Data”), and data from public agencies or 
third-parties (“Other Data”). Client agrees that Consultant is entitled to use and rely 
upon such Client Data in performing Services, and that Consultant shall not be 
obligated to verify the accuracy of the Client Data or Other Data or be responsible for 
its impact of on its work products (including without limitation the Reports). 

(b) Client represents and warrants to Consultant that Client has the right to 
deliver the Client Data to Consultant and neither the Client Data, nor its use shall (i) 
infringe any intellectual property rights of any third party, (ii) violate any laws or privacy 
rights of any third party, or (iii) violate any third parties’ privacy policies, and Client shall 
use commercially reasonable efforts to ensure that Client Data does not contain any 
viruses or other damaging or disabling code. 

Section 5.3 Non-Solicitation. Client shall not solicit for employment or hire 
Consultant’s employees during the term and for one year following the termination of this 
Agreement; provided, however, that this shall not prohibit Client from generalized 
solicitation or advertising, including the use of an independent agency or search firm whose 
efforts are not specifically directed at such employees. Such employees shall not include 
any individual (a) whose employment with Consultant has terminated for any reason, or (b) 
whose employment or solicitation has been agreed upon in writing by Consultant. 

 
ARTICLE VI. 

TERM; TERMINATION 
 

Section 6.1 Term. This Agreement shall become effective on the Effective Date 
and will continue in effect until the earlier of (a) completion of performance under the SOW, 
or (b) termination as provided herein. 

 
Section 6.2 Convenience. Either party may terminate this Agreement (and the 

SOW) for convenience upon thirty (30) prior written days’ notice to the other party. 
 

Section 6.3 Breach. Either party may terminate this Agreement with written 
notice to the other party in the event of a material breach which is not cured within ten (10) 
days. Without limiting the foregoing, if Client fails to make payments when due, Consultant 
may suspend Services upon notice. Consultant shall have no liability to Client for any costs 
or damages arising as a result of such suspension. Upon payment in full by Client (if 
Consultant has not terminated the Agreement), Consultant shall resume Services and the 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 274 of 373



SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT  PAGE 4 
VOTING AREA CREATION SERVICES  OCTOBER 22, 2021 

SOW shall be adjusted for the suspension period plus reasonable time and expense for the 
Consultant to resume performance.   

 
Section 6.4 Fees. Upon expiration or termination of this Agreement, Client shall 

pay all of Consultant’s fees, expenses, and other costs payable by Client pursuant to Article 
III, which have accrued through the date of expiration or termination. 

Section 6.5 Mutual Indemnification. Each Party shall defend, indemnify and hold 
the other Party harmless from and against all obligations, losses, liabilities, damages, claims, 
attachments, executions, demands, actions and/or proceedings (collectively, "Claims") and 
all costs and expenses in connection therewith, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and 
expenses, arising out of or connected with this Agreement when such Claims arise from, 
relate to, or in any way result from (i) breach of any representation or warranty in this 
Agreement, (ii) breach of any applicable law or (iii) gross negligence or willful misconduct. 
Client’s obligations under this subsection shall be reduced to the extent that they arise out 
of Consultant’s gross negligence or willful misconduct. 

 
Section 6.6 Survival. Sections 1.2, 5.2, 5.3, 6.4, 6.5, 6.6, and Articles II, III, VII, and 

VIII shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 
 

ARTICLE VII. 
CONFIDENTIALITY 

 
Section 7.1 Definition. "Confidential Information" means all information that is 

disclosed by a party to the other party and that: (a) is designated as confidential, regardless 
of the form in which it is disclosed; or (b) relates to a party’s markets, customers, patents, 
trade secrets, inventions, procedures, methods, designs, strategies, distributors, or business 
in general. It shall not include any item which: (i) the receiving party can prove was in its 
possession prior to disclosure thereof by the disclosing party whether prior to or during the 
term of this Agreement; (ii) is or becomes generally available to the public other than as a 
result of any action or omission by the receiving party; (iii) is rightfully disclosed to the 
receiving party by a third party without the imposition on the third party of any 
confidentiality obligation or restrictions on use; or (iv) is independently developed by the 
receiving party without reference to the disclosing party’s Confidential Information, as 
evidenced by the receiving party’s written records. The Consultant Materials are 
Consultant’s Confidential Information (subject to the rights set forth in Section 2.2).  

 
Section 7.2 Obligation. Each party, as a receiving party, shall (a) hold all 

Confidential Information in confidence and not disclose same to anyone except its 
employees who have a need to know and who are bound by the confidentiality and 
nondisclosure restrictions herein; (b) use the other party’s Confidential Information only as 
necessary for its performance hereunder; and (c) hold and protect Confidential Information 
with the same degree of care it uses with its own information of like importance, but in no 
event less than a reasonable standard of care. 

 
Section 7.3 Compelled Disclosure. If either receiving party is required by law to 

disclose any Confidential Information, the receiving party shall provide the disclosing party 
with prompt oral and written notice, so that the latter may seek a protective order or other 
appropriate remedy. In the event that such a protective order or other remedy is not 
promptly obtained, the receiving party shall furnish only that portion of the Confidential 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 275 of 373



SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT  PAGE 5 
VOTING AREA CREATION SERVICES  OCTOBER 22, 2021 

Information which is legally required and shall exercise its best efforts to obtain a protective 
order or other reliable assurance that confidential treatment shall be accorded to the 
disclosing party’s Confidential Information. 

 
Section 7.4 Injunctive Relief. Each party agrees that remedies at law are 

inadequate to protect against its breach or threatened breach of this Article VII. Accordingly, 
each party agrees that the other party may obtain injunctive relief against it in the event of 
any such breach or threat thereof, in addition to any other legal or equitable remedies that 
may be available. 

 
ARTICLE VIII. 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 

Section 8.1 Notice. Any notices to be given hereunder may be effected either by 
personal delivery in writing, by mail or by electronic mail (reader receipt requested). Mailed 
notices shall be addressed to the parties at the addresses appearing in the introductory 
paragraph of this Agreement, or at the following email addresses (Consultant: 
dlopez@coopstrategies.com; Client: __________________), but each party may change the 
address by written notice in accordance with this Section 8.1. Notices delivered personally 
or by electronic mail (reader receipt requested) will be deemed communicated as of actual 
receipt. Mailed notices will be deemed communicated as of two (2) days after mailing. 

 
Section 8.2 Assignment. Neither party may assign this Agreement, in whole or in 

part without the express written consent of the other party, with the exception of an 
assignment carried out as part of a merger, restructuring or reorganization, or as a sale or 
transfer of all or substantially all of a party’s equity or assets. Any such attempted 
assignment or delegation shall be void. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and 
shall be binding upon the Parties’ successors and permitted assigns.   

 
Section 8.3 Not Public Official. Neither this Agreement, nor any duties or 

obligations under this Agreement, nor the intentions or expectations of Client will cause 
Consultant to be a "public official" as that term, or a similar term, is used under applicable 
law. The Parties agree that Consultant is not a "public official" or "participating in 
governmental decision" as those terms, or similar terms, are used under applicable law, and 
that no actions and opinions necessary for the performance under this Agreement will cause 
Consultant to be a “public official” or “participating in a governmental decision” as those 
terms, or similar terms, are used under applicable law. 

 
Section 8.4 Entire Agreement. This Agreement and Exhibits A and B supersede 

any and all agreements, either oral or written, between the Parties with respect to Services. 
Any reference to any statute herein shall be construed as including all statutory provisions 
consolidating, amending, or replacing such statute. 

 
Section 8.5 Amendment. This Agreement and any exhibit hereto may not be 

modified except as expressly provided herein or in writing by the parties and signed by 
authorized representatives of both Parties.  

 

 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 276 of 373



SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT  PAGE 6 
VOTING AREA CREATION SERVICES  OCTOBER 22, 2021 

Section 8.6 Severability. If any provision in this Agreement is held by a court of 
competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions will 
nevertheless continue in full force without being impaired or invalidated in any way. 

 
Section 8.7 Dispute Resolution.  

(a) Except as set forth in Section 7.4, the Parties agree to first try in good faith 
to settle any dispute hereunder by mediation pursuant to the Mediation Rules of the 
American Arbitration Association (AAA). If the dispute is not settled by mediation, the 
dispute may be resolved by final and binding arbitration under subsection (b).  

(b) Except as set forth in Section 7.4, upon written, served request, the dispute 
shall be submitted to binding arbitration in accordance with the commercial rules and 
regulations of the AAA and the provisions of applicable law. The arbitration shall take 
place in a location mutually agreed to by the parties. Consultant shall select the 
arbitrator. If Consultant and Client do not agree on such arbitrator, however, Client shall 
select a second arbitrator. The first and second arbitrator shall then select a third 
arbitrator who shall conduct the arbitration. The parties may select arbitrators from 
JAMS, ADR, ARC or any independent arbitrator/neutral for dispute resolution. No 
arbitration shall include by way of consolidation or joinder any parties or entities not a 
Party to this Agreement without the express written consent of Parties and any party 
or entity sought to be joined with an express reference to this provision. Any party or 
entity joined in the arbitration, after mutual consent, shall be bound by this provision. 
The decree or judgment of an award rendered by the arbitrator(s) may be entered in 
any court having jurisdiction thereof. The prevailing party shall be entitled, in addition 
to any other rights and remedies, to reimbursement for its expenses, including court 
costs and reasonable attorneys’ fees. The non-prevailing party shall be liable, to the 
extent allowable under law, for all arbitrator fees and expenses and all arbitration costs. 

 
Section 8.8 Governing Law. This Agreement will be governed by and construed 

in accordance with the laws of the State of California, excluding choice of law rules. 
 

Section 8.9 Third Parties. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create a 
contractual relationship with cause of action in favor of a third party against either Party.  

 
Section 8.10 DISCLAIMER OF CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES. EXCEPT FOR 

DAMAGES ARISING FROM BREACH OF SECTION 2.2 or ARTICLE VII, NEITHER PARTY, NOR 
THEIR RESPECTIVE OFFICERS, DIRECTORS, PARTNERS, EMPLOYEES, CONTRACTORS OR 
SUBCONTRACTORS, WILL BE LIABLE FOR ANY INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, 
EXEMPLARY, TREBLE, PUNITIVE OR SPECIAL DAMAGES (INCLUDING DAMAGES FOR LOST 
PROFITS, LOST BUSINESS OPPORTUNITY, LOSS OF USE, LOSS OF INCOME, LOSS OF 
REPUTATION, PERSONAL INJURY OR THE LIKE) RESULTING FROM OR RELATING TO THIS 
AGREEMENT, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION, LIABILITY ARISING OUT OF CONTRACT, 
TORT, NEGLIGENCE, AND STRICT LIABILITY, EVEN IF SUCH PARTY HAS BEEN ADVISED OF 
THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES. 

 
Section 8.11 Force Majeure. Neither party will be liable for failure to perform 

(except for payments owing) due to circumstances or causes beyond its reasonable control, 
including, but not limited to, acts of God, war, acts of terrorism, embargoes, acts of civil or 
military authorities, fire, flood, accident, strikes, inability to secure transportation, facilities, 
fuel, energy, labor, or materials. In the event of force majeure, time for delivery or other 
performance will be extended for a period equal to the duration of the delay. 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 277 of 373



SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT  PAGE 7 
VOTING AREA CREATION SERVICES  OCTOBER 22, 2021 

 
Section 8.12 Limitation of Liability. The parties intend that the Services shall not 

subject Consultant Indemnified Parties to personal legal exposure. Therefore, 
notwithstanding anything to the contrary, Client agrees that Client’s sole and exclusive 
remedy, and any claim, demand or suit shall be directed and/or asserted only against 
Consultant and not against Consultant Indemnified Parties. Consultant’s total liability for 
any cause of action, including contract, tort and otherwise, shall not exceed the sum paid 
to Consultant under this Agreement. The limitations of liability and exclusion of certain 
damages shall apply regardless of the effectiveness of any of the remedies provided for 
under this Agreement. Any action against Consultant must be brought within twelve (12) 
months after the cause of action arises. 

 
Section 8.13 DISCLAIMER. EXCEPT AS MAY BE SPECIFIED IN THIS AGREEMENT, 

CONSULTANT EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMS ALL WARRANTIES, EXPRESS AND IMPLIED, 
INCLUDING THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A 
PARTICULAR PURPOSE, NON- INFRINGEMENT AND WARRANTIES ARISING UNDER 
COURSE OF DEALING OR TRADE USAGE. CONSULTANT CANNOT GUARANTEE RESULTS 
AND CLIENT UNDERSTANDS AND ACKNOWLEDGES THAT USE OF CONSULTANT 
MATERIALS AND IMPLEMENTATION THEREOF WITHIN CLIENT’S ORGANIZATION IS AT 
CLIENT’S OWN DISCRETION AND RISK.  

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed on the Effective Date. 

CONSULTANT:  CLIENT: 
 
Cooperative Strategies, LLC                              San Simeon Community Services District 
 
  
 
By:     By:    
 David Lopez 
 Executive Director 
 
Date:  October 22, 2021  Date:    
 
 
 
 
S:\Proposals\Working Documents\California\Demographics\Trustee Area Creation\San Simeon Community Services District\San 
Simeon CSD_VotingAreaCreation_20211022.docx 
 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 278 of 373



SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT  PAGE A-1 
VOTING AREA CREATION SERVICES  OCTOBER 22, 2021 

EXHIBIT A 
 

STATEMENT OF WORK 
SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

VOTING AREA CREATION SERVICES 
 
 
Cooperative Strategies, LLC shall provide consulting services to San Simeon Community 
Services District ("District" or "Client") to assist in the transition from at-large voting to by-
area voting with the creation of voting areas in compliance with applicable law.  The specific 
tasks include, but are not limited to, the following:  
 

ACTIVITY & 
TIMING TASKS 

1. 
Goals,  Priorities 
and Data 
Analysis 
 

1.A. Identify Goals and Priorities 
This task involves determining the goals the Distr ict has for 
the redistr ict ing process.   This determination wil l  be based 
on Elections Code, including the Cal ifornia Voting Rights 
Act and Federal Voting Rights Act.   Goals and priorit ies may 
or may not take into account:   
 
• Balanced Population (One Person, One Vote) 
• Civic Boundaries 
• Community Identity 

1.B. Identify Key Issues and Considerations 
This task involves identifying the key issues and 
considerations involved in creating Voting Areas.  These 
may include legal issues,  compliance with federal and State 
regulations,  constituent/community concerns, as well  as 
others.  

1.C. Discuss Requirements with Legal Counsel 
This task involves discussing the l ist  of items identif ied in 
Tasks 1.A. and 1.B.  with staff  of the Distr ict and the Cl ient 
to ensure compliance with all  applicable legal,  statutory,  
and organizational requirements.  

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 279 of 373



SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT  PAGE A-2 
VOTING AREA CREATION SERVICES  OCTOBER 22, 2021 

ACTIVITY & 
TIMING TASKS 

1.D. Prepare Census Data Analysis for Voting Areas 
This task involves analyzing 2020 Census data to obtain 
information on population within the Distr ict as well  as to 
use in creating conceptual Voting Areas.  

1.E. Evaluate Population of Community 
This task involves evaluating the demographics of the 
Distr ict based on data from the United States Census.  

1.F. Attend and Present at Public Hearings 
This task involves Cooperative Strategies attending and 
presenting at the two (2) pre-map public hearings at 
meetings of the Board of Directors to gather input from the 
community and Board.  

2. 
Prepare and 
Present 
Scenarios  
 

2.A. Create Conceptual Voting Areas 
This task involves using Census data and GIS data gathered 
in Task 1.D. and input received in Task 1.F.  to prepare three 
(3) conceptual Voting Area scenarios.  This task wil l  involve 
preparing alternative Voting Area boundary proposals for 
consideration, including maps and demographic data for 
comparative purposes.  

2.B. Present Recommendations to Staff 
This task involves presenting conceptual Voting Areas to 
Distr ict staff  for their review and consideration. 
Cooperative Strategies wil l  prepare deliverables and a 
presentation with the goal of ref ining the 
recommendations that wil l  be delivered to the Board. 

2.C. Present to Board of Directors 
This task involves three (3) meetings to present the 
scenarios from Task 2.B.  to the Board for comment and 
review.  These meetings include the public hearings 
required prior to approval by the Board of Directors.  

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 280 of 373



SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT  PAGE A-3 
VOTING AREA CREATION SERVICES  OCTOBER 22, 2021 

ACTIVITY & 
TIMING TASKS 

2.D. Assist in Public Outreach 
This task involves assist ing in a public outreach effort to 
present conceptual scenarios to the public and sol icit  
feedback from constituents on the scenarios.  

2.E. Revise Scenarios 
This task involves revising the conceptual scenarios based 
on feedback from the public and the Board.  

2.F. Present Revised Scenarios to Board of Directors 
This task involves presenting the revised scenarios to the 
Board for consideration and approval of new Voting Areas. 

2.G. Assist in Implementation Process 
This task involves assist ing in ensuring documentation is 
provided to the County off ices to implement the change in 
Voting Areas.  

 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 281 of 373



SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT  PAGE B-1 
VOTING AREA CREATION SERVICES  OCTOBER 22, 2021 

EXHIBIT B 
 

FEE SCHEDULE 
SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT  

VOTING AREA CREATION SERVICES 
 

The proposed fee for Cooperative Strategies to perform the services as described 
in Section I  of this Proposal is  outl ined below. This fee includes attendance at up 
to f ive (5) meetings at the Distr ict (public hearings, community input meetings, 
and Board meetings),  as well  as scenario creation and mapping services.  

 

SERVICE DESCRIPTION PROPOSED FEE 

Voting Area Creation $20,500 
(Plus Expenses) 

 
Should the District wish to util ize a web-based tool for members of the 
community to provide scenarios or revise map options, there shall be an 
additional fee of $5,000 for such service. 
 
Should the District request attendance at additional meetings beyond those 
identified in Exhibit A, attendance is not guaranteed and will be subject to 
l imited availabil ity.  If available, attendance may be virtual and the fee shall 
be $850 per additional meeting. 
 
In the event the District’s regularly scheduled meetings do not align with 
Cooperative Strategies abil ity to be in attendance, the District agrees to 
collaborate with Cooperative Strategies to develop a schedule to 
accomplish the work by identifying dates and times that are mutually 
agreeable. This may require scheduling special board meetings on non-
typical dates and times. 
 
 
S:\Proposals\Working Documents\California\Demographics\Trustee Area Creation\San Simeon Community Services District\San 
Simeon CSD_VotingAreaCreation_20211022.docx 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 282 of 373



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 283 of 373



 

 

 

November 1, 2021 

 

Cortney Murguia 
San Simeon Community Service District 
111 Pico Avenue 
San Simeon, CA 93452 

Sent electronically to:   admin@sansimeoncsd.org  

  

Dear Ms. Murguia, 

The following is a proposed cost and structure for the San Simeon Community Service 
District for conducting a review of the demographics of the district as you determine 
potential need to convert to a by-area election system in order to comply with the 
California Voting Rights Act (CVRA).  
  
Redistricting Partners has worked with dozens of local government agencies, law firms 
and nonprofit clients on racially polarized voting analysis for the purposes of 
identifying CVRA vulnerability and assisting with decisions on possible conversion to 
by-district election systems.  
  
Our experience includes work for cities, school boards, community colleges, water and 
healthcare districts. We most recently conducted the public conversion process to create 
to CVRA compliant election districts in the Cities of Napa, Davis and Santa Ana in 
response to CVRA claims. 
  
If contracted, Redistricting Partners can produce a racially polarized voting analysis 
that identifies voting patterns comparing outcomes of candidates and issues in recent 
elections and identification of potential communities of interest that may require 
protection or representation. This voting analysis is often the first thing courts look to in 
determining whether at-large elections undermining the voting power of minority 
voters under the CVRA.  
 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 284 of 373

mailto:admin@sansimeoncsd.org


 

After this analysis and recommendations has been delivered, we can present them 
either in a public meeting or through attorneys. 
  
In conducting a full racially polarized voting analysis we will utilize four main datasets:  
  

1) 2020 Census Redistricting Data [P.L. 94-171] Summary Files.  These are 
files released by the state reflective of the total population within the boundaries 
of the city utilizing the census geographies. This must be the basis for 
determining the “equal population” of districts if they were to be created.   
  
2) Most recent American Community Survey (ACS) dataset, including 
estimated total population and Citizen Voting Age Population (CVAP).  This 
dataset is based on the longform of the US Census and statistical estimates which 
can be useful in both understanding how different communities might be 
growing, and the ethnic populations for the purposes of voting rights claims. 
This data is updated annually and based on five-year averages.   
  
3) California Voter File as maintained by Political Data Inc. This file allows 
us to understand the voter makeup of the registered voter population, including 
the age, ethnicity, partisanship, and other factors which help provide 
understanding of the populations that vote in elections, and providing a part of 
the basis for identifying candidate preferences of geographic and ethnic 
subgroups.  Note: the voter file cannot be used to determine the “equal districts” 
but it can be utilized to inform decisions about communities of interests and the 
impacts politically of a change in election method.  
  
4) Election results datasets.  The analysis would compare ethnic composition 
of the population with election results.  If necessary we will often rebuild base 
files of official election results for candidates and measures that are endogenous 
(contests for the agency itself, or agency ballot measures and bonds) and 
exogenous (statewide campaigns, countywide races, ballot measures or other 
elections that are not local municipal contest, but can be evaluated within the 
boundaries)  

 

The analysis will utilize these datasets to create the following deliverables and a set of 
recommendations.  
  

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 285 of 373



 

• Overview of the existing boundaries, ethnic populations that could be 
considered “protected classes” for the purposes of voting rights.  
  

• Overview of past elections and a selection of candidate races or ballot measure 
contests that have the greatest potential to show racially polarized voting.    
  

• Statistical analysis of past elections utilizing at least two different methodologies 
to create mathematical proof for or against racially polarized voting claims.  
  

• Recommendation, based on the above analysis, for next steps.   
  
The cost for this research, report, and a call to go over the findings would be $8,500. 
 
If there is a decision to convert to districts, we are also available to conduct this work 
and information on this process can be found here: 
http://redistrictingpartners.com/services/ 
 
Please contact us if you have any questions regarding the process I can be reached at 
(916) 612-8686 or you can email me at paul@redistrictingpartners.com.  For questions 
regarding contracting or other administrative queries, please contact Kimi Shigetani at 
kimi@redistrictingpartners.com.  
 
References are also available upon request 
 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Paul Mitchell 
Owner, Redistricting Partners 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 286 of 373

http://redistrictingpartners.com/services/
mailto:paul@redistrictingpartners.com
mailto:kimi@redistrictingpartners.com


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6. E. Business Items 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 287 of 373



  

BUSINESS ACTION ITEM STAFF REPORT  

ITEM 6.E. CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL OF THE DRAFT POLICY ON CREDITS TO 
CUSTOMERS UTILITY BILLS. 
 
Summary: 
 
This matter has been discussed at both the September and October Board meetings. 
The Board directed GES staff to prepare a draft policy regarding credits to customers 
utility bills.  
 
Discussion: 
 
San Simeon CSD Current Policy (2000 series) is as follows: 
 
Disputed Bills: Whenever the correctness of any bill for water service is questioned, the 
District will cause an investigation to be made, including, if requested, a meter test in 
accordance with this ordinance.  
 
Bills reflecting clerical or meter errors shall be adjusted, taking into consideration the 
volume of business, season demand, any other factors that may assist in determining an 
equitable charge.  
 
At the request of the SSCSD Board, GES staff prepared a draft application and 
submitted this document to the policy and procedures ad-hoc committee for their review.  
 
Recommendations: 
 
Provide direction to GES staff and Legal Counsel on the draft update to the 2000 series 
disputed bill policy. The updated policy includes an application for a water leak billing 
adjustment. If approved, this document will be incorporated into the Policy and 
Procedures manual.  
 
It is also suggested that the Board may wish to form a Utility Billing Adjustment Ad-hoc 
Committee. This committee could work with a GES staff person(s) to review any 
applications for adjustment that are received in the District office.   
 
Enc:  Request from - 9148 Balboa Avenue = $3250.09 and 9229 Balboa Avenue = $ 856.80  
 San Simeon CSD – Draft Version Application for Billing Adjustment 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 288 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 289 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 290 of 373



 

Leak Adjustment Application Page 1 
 

San Simeon Community Services District 
Leak Adjustment Credit Application 

 
111 Pico Avenue, San Simeon, California 93452 

(805) 927-4778 Fax (805) 927-0399 
admin@sansimeoncsd.org 

 
 

Date of Application: __________________ Utility Account No. ___________ 
 
Name: ____________________________ Phone No.: _________________ 
 
Service Address: __________________________________________________ 
 
Email Address: ____________________ Amount of Bill: ______________ 

 
Type of Leak:  ________ Service Line _______ Other: 
 
Date of leak discovery: ______________ Date of leak repair: ___________ 
 
Please provide a description of what occurred at the property to result in high 

usage (Please use additional pages if needed): 

________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________ 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 291 of 373

mailto:admin@sansimeoncsd.org


 

Leak Adjustment Application Page 2 
 

Provide evidence of repair/s made: (invoices or receipts associated with the repairs 

made) 

 

 

 

___________________________  __________________ 
Signature of Customer    Date 
 
 
___________________________  ___________________ 
Approval Signature     Date 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 292 of 373



 

Leak Adjustment Application Page 3 
 

Utility Billing Adjustment Policy and Procedures 
 

I. DEFINITIONS: 
As used in this policy, the following terms shall have the meanings specified below: 
 

a. “Customer” means the person or entity under whose name and utility account is 
created and/or who is ultimately responsible for payment of all charges incurred 
on the account. 
  

b. “Water service line leak” means water loss from the water line, the existence of 
which is known or unknown to the property owner or tenant (customer), 
beginning at the meter coupling on the customer’s downstream side of the meter 
to the customer’s home, business or within. 
 

c. “Non-water service line leak” means all water loss, other than from a water line 
leak, due to deterioration of pipes, fittings, or equipment, the existence of which 
is known or unknown to the property owner or tenant (customer), and said loss 
emanates from the coupling / pipe fitting / appurtenance (example: toilet, 
irrigation valve) / junction on the customer’s side of the water meter serving the 
customer’s property. 
 
 

d. “District” means San Simeon Community Services District (SSCSD).  
 
II. PURPOSE 
The purpose of this document is to establish a written policy for extending billing 
adjustments to water customers in the San Simeon Services District’s water service 
area. The policy includes the requirements to request an adjustment and billing 
adjustment that will be granted if all the requirements are met. 
 
III. POLICY 

 A. Water and Non-Water Service Line Leaks 
Customers are responsible for the service line and (fittings) attached to the Water 
Utility system beginning at the meter coupling on the customer’s downstream 
side of the meter. Any leaks in the water line and/or fittings, which are the 
responsibility of the customer, must be maintained and repaired by the customer 
solely and at their expense. 
 
The customer’s water line, including the fittings on the customer’s side of the 
meter, are to be maintained in a state of repair sufficient to allow the removal and 
replacement of the meter for maintenance. No adjustment or credits will be given 
for leaks which develop because of changing or maintaining the water meter, 
unless it can be shown that the Utility was negligent in performing the meter 
change or maintenance.  

 
The customer is responsible for monitoring higher than expected usage as 
reflected on the customer’s bill.  
 

 1. Customer Adjustment Request Requirements for Water Service Line Leaks:  
  

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 293 of 373



Leak Adjustment Application Page 4 

The General Manager, is delegated the responsibility for adjusting water billings 
and may adjust the water billing (excluding service charges) on a customer’s bill 
for a water line leak when all the following requirements are met: 

a. WITHIN 60 DAYS OF BILL ISSUANCE: Customer shall notify District, in
writing, of water loss and repair of a water line leak within 60 days from
the bill issuance date for the period in which the loss occurred.

b. ONE ADJUSTMENT EVERY 24 MONTHS : The customer has not
received a water service line leak billing adjustment in the past 24 month
The 24-month period begins with the previous billing period immediately
prior to the billing for which a leak billing adjustment is requested. 

c. PAYMENT OF BILL: The District shall not extend the due date of a water
bill because of the customer submitting a request for an adjustment of a
bill for a water service line leak. Customer shall pay at least the
uncontested portion of the bill to prevent discontinuation of service as
determined by the General Manager or their designee.

d. NO NEGLIGENT ACTS: There must be evidence that excessive use of
water was not due to the customer, their agents, or tenants’ willful or
neglectful acts.

e. LEAK MUST BE REPAIRED OR RESOLVED: If the excess usage is due
to a water line leak, the District must be satisfied that the problem
that resulted in a request for a billing adjustment has been properly
repaired or resolved.

f. EVIDENCE OF REPAIR OR RESOLUTION: The District shall require
repair bills or other appropriate documentation substantiating the repair of
the water line leak prior to approving a claim for adjustment. The written
request shall be accompanied by either a plumber or landscaper’s invoice
including a description of the repair work performed or a letter or email
from the customer certifying: a. The name, address, and telephone
number of the person discovering the leak; the date the leak was
discovered; the nature and location of the leak; the date the leak was
repaired;

g. The name, address, and telephone number of the person repairing the
leak. 2. Water Service Line Leaks Billing Adjustments 50% HIGHER
THAN NORMAL: Customers water, because of a line leak, must be at
least 50% higher than the average water use as determined by the
General Manager or designee to qualify for a billing adjustment.

h. 50% higher than normal will be based on the 24-month period that begins
with the previous billing period immediately prior to the billing for which a 
leak billing adjustment is requested. 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 294 of 373



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6. F. Business Items 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 295 of 373



  

BUSINESS ACTION ITEM STAFF REPORT  

ITEM 6.F AUTHORIZE THE CHAIRPERSON TO: (1) EXECUTE THE MEMORANDUM OF 
AGREEMENT (“MOA”) BY AND BETWEEN THE MEMBER JURISDICTIONS OF THE 
SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY INTEGRATED WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 
(“IWMA”); (2) EXECUTE AMENDMENT ONE TO THE MOA; AND (3) EXECUTE A 
LETTER OF DESIGNATION WITH THE IWMA REGARDING SENATE BILL 1383 
COMPLIANCE.    
 
Discussion: 
 
On May 10, 1994, an agreement was executed by and between the Cities and 
the County forming a Joint Powers Authority (JPA) for the purposes of 
facilitating the development of waste diversion programs and providing 
economies of scale on a regional basis. In 2001, a Memorandum of Agreement 
(MOA, and First Amendment to the JPA) was executed by and between the 
Cities, the County, and Special Districts with solid waste powers within the 
County, amending the JPA agreement to include the Authorized Districts for 
representation on the IWMA Board. San Simeon Community Services District 
did not and has not executed the MOA, however, Section 2.A. of the MOA 
provides that membership “shall be available to any Independent Special 
District within the San Luis Obispo County which currently provides solid waste 
collection and disposal services and executed this MOA”. The District has 
recently activated its solid waste powers and is in the process of implementing 
said authority for the benefit of the community.   Membership in the IWMA is 
central to this end.  
 
On September 14, 2021, the County Board of Supervisors voted to withdraw 
from the IWMA with an effective date of November 15, 2021. In order to 
facilitate the continued operation of the IWMA Board of Directors without the 
County as a member jurisdiction, a Second Amendment to the JPA is 
necessary to: (1) revise the representative members of the IWMA Board of 
Directors to eliminate the participation of the County Board of Supervisors; and 
(2) eliminate the requirement that a County representative is required to 
establish a quorum of the IWMA Board. It is anticipated that the JPA agreement 
will be amended, however, the Special Districts need to execute the attached 
first amendment to the MOA to acknowledge and accept the terms of the 
amended JPA Agreement. 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 296 of 373



In Item 5.A of this agenda, your board introduced an ordinance for waste 
diversion to meet the requirements of SB 1383. The attached letter of 
designation provides for the IWMA to act as the District’s agent for the 
education, monitoring, and reporting requirements of SB 1383. 
 
Recommendation:   
 
It is recommended that your Board: 1) execute the Memorandum of Agreement 
(“MOA”) by and between the member jurisdictions of the San Luis Obispo 
County Integrated Waste Management Authority (“IWMA”); (2) execute 
Amendment One to the MOA; and (3) execute a letter of designation with the 
IWMA regarding senate bill 1383 compliance.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Enc: Draft - Letter of designation 

Original Memorandum of Agreement – to be executed 
 Second Amendment to the Joint Powers Agreement - to be executed 
 
 
 
 
 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 297 of 373



 

San Simeon Community Services District 

 
111 Pico Avenue, San Simeon, California 93452 

(805) 927-4778 Fax (805) 927-0399 
 

Letter of Designation – Senate Bill 1383 Compliance 
 
November 9, 2021 
 
On (insert date), the City Council / Board of Supervisors adopted (Title of City/District’s SB 1383 
Ordinance), which implements the relevant provisions of Senate Bill 1383 (Public Resources 
Code section 42652-42654) and the corresponding regulations in Title 14 of the California Code 
of Regulations, Division 7, Chapter 12, and enables the City/District to delegate authority for 
the implementation of Senate Bill 1383 and (Title of City/District’s SB 1383 Ordinance) 
requirements to the extent allowed by law.  
 
I am the designated Signature Authority for (Name of City/District). Accordingly, I hereby 
authorize the San Luis Obispo County Integrated Waste Management Authority (IWMA) to act 
as a delegate on behalf of the City/District for the responsibilities of compliance with Senate 
Bill 1383 and the corresponding regulations in Title 14 of the California Code of Regulations, 
Division 7, Chapter 12 to the extent allowed by law. These delegated responsibilities, include, 
but are not limited to: 
 

(1) Establishing, administering, implementing, educating, and/or operating all state 
mandated Senate Bill 1383 programs. Such programs include, but are not limited 
to organic waste management, education and outreach, monitoring, inspection, 
and record keeping programs.  

 
(2) Establishing, administering, and implementing the edible food recovery 

requirements of Senate Bill 1383 regulations. Such duties shall include but are 
not limited to: assessment of existing capacity for edible food recovery, 
establishing a food recovery program, inspection of commercial generators for 
compliance, and education and outreach to all businesses, residents, commercial 
edible food generators, and any other entities or parties required by law. 

 
(3) Coordinating with CalRecycle and any other state or federal entities in assessing 

and ensuring compliance with the CalRecycle procurement and pollution 
reduction targets for each party. 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 298 of 373



 

 
(4) Monitoring and education related to (Title of City/District’s SB 1383 Ordinance) 

including but not limited to monitoring compliance through route reviews and 
evaluations, determining the applicability of waivers, and issuing educational 
notices where necessary and/or appropriate.  

 
(5) Reporting to CalRecycle on behalf of the City/District related to its compliance 

with SB 1383, consistent with the requirements prescribed by CalRecycle. 
 
This designation will remain effective until rescinded by my authority, or my successor’s 
authority. 
 
Sincerely, 
(Name of Signature Authority) 
City/District Manager 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 299 of 373



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 300 of 373



MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN TEE MEMBER 
JURISDICTIONS OF THE SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY INTEGRATED 

WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY (COUNTY OF SAN LUIS OBISPO 
AND THE CITIES OF ARROYO GRANDE, ATASCADERO, GROVER 

BEACH, MORRO BAY, PISMO BEACH, AND SAN LUIS OBISPO) AND 
THE HERITAGE RANCH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT, SAN MIGUEL 

COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT, NIPOMO COMMUNITY SERVICES 
DISTRICT, SAN MIGUEL SANITARY DISTRICT, CALIFORNIA VALLEY 

COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT, CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES 
DISTRICT, CAYUCOS SANITARY DISTRICT, OCEANO COMMUNITY SERVICES 

DISTRICT, LOS OSOS COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT, AND TEMPLETON 
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT REGARDING MEMBERSHIP ON THE SAN 
LUIS OBISPO COUNTY INTEGRATED WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 

THIS MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT (hereinafter referred to as the "MOA") is 

executed on the date below stated by and between the member jurisdictions of the San Luis 

Obispo County Integrated Waste Management Authority (hereinafter referred to as the"IWMA") 

and the Heritage Ranch Community Services District, San Mguel Community Services District, 

Nipomo Community Services District, San Miguel Sanitary District, California Valley Community 

Services District, Cambria Community Services District, Cayucos Sanitary District, Oceano 

Community Services District, Los Osos Community Services District, and Templeton Community 

Services District (hereinafter referred to as the "Districts"). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the member jurisdictions of the IW/vIA entered into a joint powers agreement 

on May 10, 1994, to‘achieve the mandates of the California Integrated Waste Management Act of 

1989, to plan for, suggest, and implement solutions to common solid waste problems, to assist 

with programs by utilizing the professional talents of the various governmental entities in the 

County and ofeiperts in various other fields and to coordinate'their efforts; and 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 301 of 373



WHEREAS, the IWMA member jurisdictions established a regional agency in accordance 

With Public Resources Code section 40973; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Joint Powers Agreement referenced above and Public 

Resources Code section 40973, the XWMA member jurisdictions have agreed that said regional 

agency, and not the individual IWMA. member jurisdictions, shall be responsible for compliance 

'with the waste diversion requirements set forth in Public Resources Code section 41780, et seq.; 

and 

WHEREAS, Public Resources Code section 40977 authorizes a regional agency to allow 

one district to be included as a member of the regional agency; and 

WHEREAS, the jWMA member jurisdictions are desirous of including a special district 

representative on the JWMA Board of Directors pursuant to Public Resources Code section 

40999 to represent the interests of all 'special districts within San Luis Obispo County who 

provide their residents with the collection and disposal of solid waste under State law; and 

WHEREAS, the special districts possessing responsibility for solid waste management are 

obligated by law to comply with the source reduction and recycling element and household 

hazardous waste element adopted by the County of San Luis ObiSpo; and 

WHEREAS, the special districts within San Luis Obispo County are desirous of joining 

the 1W1V1A and selecting from among themselves a representative member to sit on the IWMA. 

Board of Directors. 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Purpose. This MOA is entered into for the purpose of providing representation on the 

rwmA Board of Directors for districts within San Luis Obispo County who possess the authority 

to manage solid waste within their jurisdictions. It is the intent of the-parties that the 

-2-
November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 302 of 373



representative sitting on the TWA Board on behalf of the various districts shall have all of the 

rights and powers granted to an IWMA. member under the JPA. 

2. Membership. Membership of a special district on the IWMA. Board of Directors shall 

be provided for as follows:, 

A. Membership on the TWM.A Board of Directors shall be available to any 
Independent Special District within the San Luis Obispo County which 
currently provides solid waste collection and disposal services and.has 
executed this MOA (hereinafter referred to as "Authorized Districts"). 

B. Authorized Districts in accordance with procedures to be established by 
said Districts shall appoint one regular member and one alternate member 
to represent Authorized Districts on the IWIVIA Board of Directors. Said 
selected representatives shall represent the collective interests of all 
Authorized Districts on the IWMA Board of Directors. The selected 
representatives shall serve subject to such terms and conditions as may be 
established at the sole discretion of the Authorized Districts. 

C. The representative so appointed shall be an elected Authorized District
officer residing within the County but shall not be a member of a legislative 
body of a city or county. The appointed representatives shall attend the 
meetings of IWMA Board of Directors. The representative and alternate 
shall serve so long as they hold an elected office with their member agency, 
or until they resign or are removed by a majority vote of the Authorized 
Districts. Vacancies shall be filled in the same manner as the initial • 
appointments. 

D. The alternate shall be entitled to vote on IWMA matters only in the 
absence of the representative. 

E. Designation of the representative and the alternate serving on behalf of 
Authorized Districts, as well as changes thereto, shall be transmitted in 
writing to the manager of the Authority. In addition, to any district 
presently a party to this MO.A,, any other district that provides solid waste 
collection or disposal services which may desire to participate in the 
activities of the Authority may do so by executing this MOA and, 
thereafter, shall be governed by all the terms and prOvisions of this MOA as 
of the date of execution. 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 303 of 373



3., Existing Joint Powers Agreement. By executing this MOA, the undersigned districts 

each agree to be bound by the terms and conditions of the Joint Powers Agreement dated May 10, 

1994, a copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference as Exhibit A. 

'4. Withdrawal and Dissolution. Any district which is a party to this MOA may withdraw 

from the MOA, with thirty (30) days written notice, and may terminate its participation in this 

MOA by resolution of its governing board, The withdrawal of the member shall have no effect on 

the continuance of this MOA by and between the remaining members, and the MOA shall remain 

in full force and effect with respect to the remaining members. No withdrawal shall become 

effective until thirty (30) days after receipt of written notice by the Authority. The MOA may be 

terminated by a joint agreement executed by the TWMA member jurisdictions and the districts 

which are a party hereto. 

5. Notices. All notices which any WV-MA member, district or the authority may wish to 

give in connection with this MOA shall be in writing and shall be served by personal delivery 

during usual business hours at the principal office of the IWMA member, district or authority, to 

an officer or person apparently in charge of that office, or by depositing the same in the United 

States mail, postage prepaid, and addressed to the IWMA member, district, or authority at its 

principal office, or to such other address as the IWMA member, district or authority may 

designate from time to time by written notice given in the manner specified in this section. 
•0% 

Service of notice pursuant to this section shall be deemed complete on the date of service by 

personal delivery, or two days thereafter by mailing if deposited in the United States mail. 

• 6. Severability. Should any part, term or provision of this MOA be decided by a final 

judgment of a court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal or in conflict with any law of the State 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 304 of 373



of California, or otherwise be unenforceable or ineffectual, the validity of its remaining parts, 

terms and provisions shall not be affected. 

7. Effective Date. This MOA shall take effect upon its execution by the Chair or Mayor. 

and Clerks of the governing bodies of all current IWMA members and at least three community 

service districts or sanitation districts that provide solid waste handling services or implement 

source reduction and recycling programs, pursuant to resolutions of such governing bodies 

authorizing such execution and shall remain in full force and effect until dissolved pursuant to the 

provisions herein. This MOA may be executed in counterpart's which together shall constitute a 

single agreement. 

8. Amendment of WA. Execution of this MOA by all of the member jurisdictions of the 

WA shall constitute an amendment of the WA with regard to inclusion of special districts for 

representation on the IWMA. All other terms and conditions of the WA shall remain in full force 

and effect. 

IN- WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this MOA as of the date and 

year hereinabove written. 

CITY OF ARROYO GRANDE 

By: 
Mayor 

Date: r 2/07 

Resolution No., NA
Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM _AND LEGAL EITECT: 

By: 
ity Aft" 

Dated:  'IA (0/ 

-5..
November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 305 of 373



CITY OF ATASCADE 

Mayor 

Clerk 
Resolution No.  • A04 

APPR S VED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL EFFECT: 

By: 
Attorney 

Dated:  614— 11— 0 / 

CITY OF GROVER BEACH 

By:  Date: 
Mayor 

Resolution No. 
Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL EFFECT: 

By: 
City Attorney 

Dated: 

-6-
November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 306 of 373



CITY OF ATASCADERO 

By:  • Date: 
Mayor 

Resolution No. 
Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL EFFECT: 

By: 
City Attorney 

Dated: 

CITY OF GROVER BEACH 

By: 
Ma •r 

(
Cler 

1 Richard W. Weufeld 

April 16, 2001 

Date: 

1,4^-1L, Resolution No. 
Michelle A. Greene 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND T FOAL E.F.PECT: 

By: 
City Attorney. 

Dated: 

-6-
November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 307 of 373



CITY OF MORRO BAY 

By. Date: 
ice Mayor 

Clerk 

• May 14, 2001 

Resolution No. 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL EFFECT: 

By:  •
City Attorney 

Dated:  * *tiiii 

CITY OF PISMO BEACH 

2/r-01

By:  Date: 
Mayor 

Resolution No. 
Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL EFFECT: 

By:  R45-61-t—t-e 
City Attorney 

Dated:  5/z -1 it I 

-7-

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 308 of 373



CITY OF MORRO BAY 

By:  Date: 
Mayor 

Resolution No. 
Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL EPPECT: 

By:  . 
City Attorney 

Dated: 

CITY OF PISMO BEACH 

/a 
By  Date:  L1-3-0 

yor 

Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL EPEE,CT: 

By: 
City Attorney • 

Dated:  1) C214 

Approved by motion on April 3, 2001, 

on motion of Councilmember Reiss, 

seconded by Councilmember Henlin, 

passed 5-0. 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 309 of 373



CITY OF SAN LUIS OBISPO .7

By Date: 
or 

Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO F 

0

AND LEGAL EPPECT: 

By: 

Dated: 

tto ey 

COUNTY OF SAN LUIS OBISPO • 

1'0/0/)-- 6/6 /-> 

By:  Date: 
Chairperson 

Clerk 

APPROVE 

By: 

Resolution No. 

TO ?ORM AND LFGAL EFFECT: 

Deputy os wily Counsel 

Dated:  6 - 

-8-
November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 310 of 373



CITY OF SAN LUIS OBISPO 

By:  Date: 
• Mayor 

Resolution NO: 
Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL E1 F.

By: 
City Attorney 

Dated: 

COUNTY OF SAN LUIS OBISPO 

By:  Date: 
Chairperson 

JULIE L RODEWALD  Resolution No. 
C rk 

By: 0.—e,, -4--
Oeputy Clerk 

APPRO A SiTO ORM LEGAL Ell,ECT: 

By: 
Deputy env), Counsel 

Dated: 6 - 09 • C, 

-8-November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 311 of 373



ATTACIEVIENT #1 

HERITAGE RANCH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

By:  Date: 
Mali' 

Clerk 
Resolution No. 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL EFFECT: 
By:  R,`J-I9. 

Attorney 

Dated:  111/0 

SAN MIGUEL COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

By:  Date: 
Chair 

Clerk 
Resolution No, 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL EFI,ECT: 

By: 
Attorney 

Dated: 

-9-
ATTACHMENT #1 November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 312 of 373



HERITAGE RANCH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

By:  , 
Chair 

Clerk 

Date: 

Resolution NO. 

APPROVED. AS TO FORM. AND LEGAL Elq,.ECT: 

By: 
Attorney 

Dated: 

SAN MIGUEL COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

By: 
Chair 

Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL REtth,CT: 

Date: 

By: 
ey 

Dated:  '51 1 + t 

Resolution No.  '0,0/-11

-9-November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 313 of 373



IN-POMO. TY S D CT 

By: 
hair 

Clerk 

Date:  7/--0/.
Resolution No.  2)0 I — s -q 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL EFFECT: 

By: 
Attorney 

Dated: 

SAN MIGUEL SANITARY DISTRICT 

By:  Date: 
Chair 

B 

PR 

Clerk 
Resolution No. 

zD AS TO FO LEGAL EFFECT: 

d: 

Attorney 

-10-
November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 314 of 373



CALaORNIA,VALLEY COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

By:  Date: 
Chair 

Resolution No. 
Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL EFFECT: 

By: 
Attorney 

Dated: 

CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT.

Byf  Date:  .:2-3 • 
CC:, Chair 

Resolution No.  k•3
  lerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL EFFECT: 

-ha-kict.LAJW' 
By: 

Attorney 

Dated: 

-I I-

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 315 of 373



Date: September 12, 2001 

Resolution No. 2001-21 
Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL EFFECT: 

By: ___________ _ 

Attorney 

Dated: __________ _ 

TEMPLETON COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

By: ___________ _ Date: _________ _ 
Chair 

Resolution No. ______ _ 
Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL EFFECT: 

By: ___________ _ 
Attorney 

Dated: __________ _ 

-11-
November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 316 of 373



CAYUCOS SANITARY DISTRICT 

By:  --(04-6-(A-1-g--.. 
Chair 

Clerk 

Date:  3/20/01

Resolution No.  BY minute action 3/19/01 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL EFFECT: 

By: 
Attorney 

Dated: 

OCE TY SERVICES DISTRICT 

By: 
Chair 

Clerk 
Resolution No. 

APPROVED AS TO FQRM AND LEGAL EFFECT: 
yo 

By: 

Dated: 6 

-12-
November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 317 of 373



JUL-2U-2UUI FRI 03:43 PM myyyymyymyyyyyHyy FAX NO, ++++++++++++++++++++ P. 02/02 

TEMPLE TON cON,IMUNIr SERVICES DISTRICT 

By. 01

Clerk 

Date: 7-k -o  
Resolution No.  7— 1696)1 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL EFFECT: 

By: 
Attorney 

Dated: 

LOS OSOS COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

By:  Date: 
Chair 

Resolution No. 

Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL E.b.FhCT: 

Attorney 

Dated: 

• 

74231cagr.wpd 

-13-

07/20/2001 FRI 15:30 rTX/RX NO 8947) 14002 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 318 of 373



FILE No.471 07/26 '01 PM 12:b1 USUS CSU b1?(: 30b b2 gStY PAGE b 

TEMPLETON cOM:MONITY SERVICES DISTRICT

Chair 

Clerk 

Date: 

Resolution No, 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL Eig.k.CT: 

By: 
Attorney 

Dated: 

LOS OSOS COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

B 
air 

By: 

Da 

erk 

D AS TO FORM 

Date:  -2,66

Resolution No. ''?°(:) 1 — / 0

Attorney , 

74231ciagr,wpd 

07/26/2001 THU 13:38 [TX/RX NO 6082) a005 November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 319 of 373



MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE MEMBER 
JURISDICTIONS OF THE SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY INTEGRATED 

WAS FE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY (COUNTY OF SAN LUIS OBISPO 
AND THE qnIFS OF ARROYO GRANDE, ATASCADERO, GROVER 

BEACH, MORRO BAY, PISMO BEACH, AND SAN LUIS OBISPO) AND 
THE HERITAGE RANCH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT, SAN MIGUEL 

COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT, NIPOMO COMMUNITY SERVICES 
DISTRICT, SAN MIGUEL SANITARY DISTRICT, CALIFORNIA VALLEY 

COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT, CAMBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES 
DISTRICT, CAYUCOS SANITARY. DISTRICT, OCEANO COMMUNITY SERVICES 

DISTRICT, LOS OSOS COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT, AND TEMPLETON 
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT REGARDING MEMBERSHIP ON THE SAN 
LUIS OBISPO COUNTY INTEGRATED WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 

THIS MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT (hereinafter referred to as the "MOA") is 

executed on the date below stated by and between the member jurisdictions of the San Luis 

Obispo County Integrated Waste Management Authority (hereinafter referred to as the1WMA") 

and the Heritage Ranch Community Services District, San 1VEguel Community Services District, 

Nipomo Community Services District, San Miguel Sanitary District, California Valley Community 

Services District, Cambria Community Services District, Cayucos Sanitary District, Oceano 

Community Services District, Los Osos Community Services District, and Templeton Community 

Services District (hereinafter referred to as the "Districts"). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the member jurisdictions of the IWMA. 'entered into a joint•powers agreement 

on May 10, 1994, to achieVe the mandates of the California Integrated Waste Management Act of 

1989, to plan for, suggest, and.implement solutions to common solid waste problems, to assist 

with programs by utilizing the professional talents of the various governmental entities in the 

County and of experts in various other fields and to coordinate-their efforts; and 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 320 of 373



' representative sitting on the IWMA Board on behalf of the various districts shall have all of the 

rights and powers granted to an IWMA member under the TPA. 

2. Membership. Membership of a special district on the IWMA Board of Directors shall 

be proVided for as follows: 

A. Membership on the IWMA Board of  shall be available to any 
Independent Special District within the San Luis Obispo County which 
currently provides solid waste collection and disposal services and has 
executed this MOA (hereinafter referred to as "Authorized Districts"). 

B. Authorized Districts in accordance with procedures to be established by 
said Districts shall appoint one regular member and one alternate member 
to represent Authorized Districts on the IWMA Board of Directors. Said 
selected representatives shall represent the collective interests of all 
Authorized Districts on the IWMA Board of Directors. The selected 
representatives shall serve subject to such terms and conditions as may be 
established at the sole discretion of the Authorized Districts. 

The representative so appointed shall.be an elected Authorized District
officer residing within the County but shall not be a member of a legislative 
body of a city or county. The appointed representatives shall attend the 
meetings of IWMA Board of Directors. The representative and alternate 
shall serve so long as they hold an elected office with their member agency, 
or until they resign or are removed by a majority vote of the Authorized 
Districts. Vacancies shall be filled in the same manner as the initial • 
appointments. 

The alternate shall be entitled to vote on IWMA matters only in the 
absence of the representative. 

E. Designation of the representative and the alternate serving on behalf of 
Authorized Districts, as well as changes thereto, shall be transmitted in 
writing to the manager of the Authority. In addition, to any district 
presently a party to this MOA, any other district that provides' solid waste 
collection or disposal services which may desire to participate in the 
activities of the Authority may do so by executing this MOA and, 
thereafter, shall be governed by all the terms and provisions of this MOA as 
of the date of execution. 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 321 of 373



of California, or otherwise be unenforceable or ineffectual, the validity of its remaining parts, 

teims and provisions shall not be affected: 

7. Effective Date. This MOA shall take effect upon its execution by the Chair or Mayor. 

and Clerks of the governing bodies of all current IWMA, members and at least three community • 

service districts or sanitation districts that provide solid waste handling services or implement 

source reduction and recycling programs, pursuant to resolutions of such governing bodies 

authorizing such execution and shall remain in full force and effect until dissolved-pursuant to the 

provisions herein. This MOA may be executed in counterparts which together shall constitute a 

single agreement. 

8. Amendment of WA. Execution of this MOA by all of the member jurisdiCtions of the 

JPA shall constitute an amendment of the IPA with regard to inclusion of special districts for 

representation on the IWMA. All other terms and conditions of the JPA shall remain in full force 

and effect. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this MOA as of the date and 

year hereinabove written. 

CITY OF ARROYO GRANDE 

By; pekof 
Mayor 

Date: r 7

Resolution No.  N A 
Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL EEPECT: 

By: 
ity Att-

Dated:  17)--• '1 (0 I 

-5- - November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 322 of 373



CITY OF ATASCADERO 

By:  Date: 
Mayor 

Resolution No. 
Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL EFFECT: 

By: 
City Attorney 

• , 
Dated: 

CITY OF GROVER BEACH 

April 16, 2001 

By:   Date: 
Richard W. neufeld Ma r 

r7k;:aatc, 
Cler 

Resolution No. 
Michelle A. Greene 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL EFFECT: 

By: 
City Attorney 

Dated: 

-6-
November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 323 of 373



CITY OF MORRO BAY. 

By:  Date: 
Mayor 

• , Resolution No. 
Clerk • 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL EL-.1i.ECT:. 

By: 
City Attorney 

Dated: 

CITY OF PISMO BEACH:

By: 
yor 

Date: • 
• 

Clerk Approved by motion on April 3, 2001, 
on motion of Councilmember Reiss, 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL E.P.P .ECT: seconded by Councilmember Henlin, 
passed 5-0. 

By: 

• Dated: 

City Attorney 

411 /CVO/ 

-7-
November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 324 of 373



CITY OF SAN LUIS OBISPO 

By: 
• Mayor 

Clerk 

Date: 

Resolution No. 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL EFFECT: 

By: 
City Attorney • 

Dated: 

COUNTY OF SAN LUIS OBISPO 

By: 
. Chairperson 

JULIE L. RODEWALD 

Date: 0 - / 

Resolution No. 
C rk 

ay: 
Deputy Clerk 

APPROVBV S0 ORM AND LEGAL EFFECT: 

By: 
Deputy gunly Counsel 

Dated:  - 09 • G 1 

-8-
November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 325 of 373



HERITAGE RANCH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

By:  • Date: 
Chair 

Resolution No. 
Clerk 

APPROVED. AS TO FORM. AND LEGAL EN NECT: 

By: , 
Attorney 

Dated: 

SAN /vIIGUEL COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

By: Date: U01,//1")  ,942 
Chair 

Resolution No.  POO-I/ -
Clerk 

( 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL EFFECT: 

. By: 

Y 

• ( Dated: 

-9-November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 326 of 373



CALIFORNIA VALLEY COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

By:  Date: 
Chair 

Resolution No. 
Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL EFFECT: 

By: 
Attorney 

Dated: 

CAIVLBRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

By:'  Date:  • 2:3 O 
Chair 

Resolution No.  t\lik
lerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL El'EL,CT: 

By: ri•Guicti-k--/- k -Oci 

Attorney 

Dated: 

-11-

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 327 of 373



JUL-20-2001 FRI 03:43 PM miimmymmHymy FAX NO, .++++++++++++++++++++ P. 02/02 

• 
TEMPLETON cONIMUNIT A SERVICES DISTRICT 

By•-: 
Ch, 

Clerk • 

Date: 

kesobtion No.  • 7" 

• 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL EFFECT: 

By: 
Attorney 

Dated: 

LOS OSOS CO/v.R\rfUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

By:  Date; 
Chair 

•Resolution No. 

Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL Eki,ECT: 

By: 
Attorney 

Dated: 

• 

7423 laagr.wpd. PIWMA 

-13-

07/20/2001 FRI 15:36 tlX/RX NO 69471 ! 1002 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 328 of 373



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 329 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 330 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 331 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 332 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 333 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 334 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 335 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 336 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 337 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 338 of 373



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6. G. Business Items 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 339 of 373



 

  

BUSINESS ACTION ITEM STAFF REPORT  

ITEM 6.G. DIRECTION TO STAFF TO SEND A LETTER OF INTENT NOTIFYING THE 
COUNTY OF SAN LUIS OBISPO THAT THE CSD INTENDS TO ASSUME SOLID WASTE 
AUTHORITY.  
 
 
Discussion: 
 
As part of the process to obtaining solid waste authority, the County of San Luis 
Obispo needs to be notified of the District’s intent to assume the functions in 
having solid waste authority. At the October Board meeting, the Board voted to 
move forward with this process.  
 
Recommendation: 
 
It is recommended that the Board direct legal counsel to coordinate with GES 
staff to draft a letter to the County of San Luis Obispo notifying them of the 
District’s intent to assume solid waste authority.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 340 of 373



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6. H. Business Items 

 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 341 of 373



  

BUSINESS ACTION ITEM STAFF REPORT  

ITEM 6.H. APPROVAL OF LIMITED TERM ENCROACHMENT EASEMENT AND 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN HEARST HOLDINGS, LLC AND THE SAN SIMEON CSD.  
 
Summary: 
 
This matter was discussed at both the April 8, 2021 Regular Board meeting and 
a subsequent April 22, 2021 Special Board meeting. The direction to legal 
counsel and Grace Environmental Services was to work with the Hearst 
Corporation on the agreement and to make a payment of the outstanding 
amount.  
 
Given the opinion of Counsel relative to rights of way document provided prior 
to the RO building’s construction, the map provided in the Wallace survey 
depicting the RO building on Old County Road, the lack of a title report and a 
letter from Ogden & Fricks stating the encroachment allegation is false; during 
the September 9, 2021 Regular Board meeting, the Board approved MBS Land 
Surveys to perform a survey of the RO building. The results of this survey were 
presented to the Board at the October 12, 2021 Regular Board meeting.  
 
Recommendation: 
 
Given that the ownership determination has been finalized, and draft legal lot 
description provided, GES staff recommends approval of the limited term 
license agreement. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Enc: Limited Term Encroachment Easement and Agreement 
 Draft – Exhibit “A” Draft encroachment area legal description 
 Opinion of Counsel relative to right of way.  
 Wallace Survey – August 18, 2020 
 MBS Survey – October 2021 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 342 of 373



3658.008-3561021.1 
 

 

 1  
 

RECORD AT REQUEST OF AND RETURN TO: 
 
Hearst Holdings, Inc. 
5 Third Street, Suite 200 
San Francisco, CA 94103-3202 
Attn: Controller 
 
 

 

 
No Fee Document – Per Govt. Code Sec. 6103 & 27383 
No County Transfer Tax Per R & T Code 11922 
 
 

 

APNs: Portions of APNs 013-041-014 &  
013-011-024 

Space Above This Line for Recorder’s Use 
 

 
GRANT OF LIMITED TERM ENCROACHMENT EASEMENT AND AGREEMENT 

This GRANT OF LIMITED TERM ENCROACHMENT EASEMENT AND 
AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”), dated ___________________ for reference purposes only, is 
made and entered into by and between HEARST HOLDINGS, INC., a Delaware corporation 
(“Hearst” or “Grantor”), and SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT, a 
California special district (“District” or “Grantee”). 

RECITALS 

A. Hearst owns certain real property located in San Luis Obispo County, California 
(the “Conservation Property”) encumbered by a conservation easement (the “Conservation 
Easement”) held by California Rangeland Trust, a California nonprofit public benefit 
corporation (“Rangeland Trust”), pursuant to that certain Deed of Conservation Easement and 
Agreement Concerning Easement Rights recorded on February 18, 2005 in the Official Records 
of San Luis Obispo County, California, as Instrument No. 2005013388, as assigned pursuant to 
that certain Assignment and Assumption of Conservation Easement and Related Grant 
Agreement (East Side Conservation Area) recorded on February 18, 2005 in the Official Records 
of San Luis Obispo County, California, as Instrument No. 2005013391 (as assigned, the 
“Conservation Easement Agreement”).   

B. On or about March 16, 2015, Hearst provided a copy of the Conservation 
Easement Agreement to the District. 

C. In or about October 2015, the District commenced construction of certain Potable 
Water Well Head Treatment Project (the “Project”) improvements including a reverse osmosis 
facility (collectively, the “Water Treatment Facility”), and completed construction of the 
Water Treatment Facility on or about April 2016.  Since completion of the Water Treatment 
Facility, the District has been using the Water Treatment Facility for active water treatment 
operations and services as part of the Project (the “Public Utilities Purposes”). 

D. In July 2020, Hearst and the District discovered that a portion of the Water 
Treatment Facility encroaches (the “Encroachment”) on that portion of the Conservation 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 343 of 373



3658.008-3561021.1 
 

 

 2  
 

Property more particularly description in Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein by 
this reference (the “Encroachment Area”). 

E. As an interim measure, Hearst and the District entered into that certain Revocable 
Encroachment License Agreement effective as of October 26, 2020 (the “License Agreement”), 
by which Hearst granted to District a license to temporarily leave the existing Encroachment on 
the Encroachment Area pending completion and recordation of this Agreement. 

F. District desires to obtain from Hearst, and Hearst has agreed to grant to District, 
an easement to allow the existing Encroachment to remain on the Encroachment Area for so long 
as the District continues to use the Encroachment for the Public Utilities Purposes, on the terms 
and conditions set forth in this Agreement. 

AGREEMENTS 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals which are specifically 
incorporated into the body of this Agreement, the mutual covenants contained herein and other 
good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, 
the parties hereby agree as follows: 

1. Easement Terms.  

(a) Grant of Easement.  Subject to the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement, Hearst hereby grants to the District an easement (the “Easement”) on, over and 
across the Encroachment Area for the sole and exclusive purpose of allowing the Encroachment 
to remain in its current location within the Encroachment Area for so long as the District 
continues to use the Encroachment for the Public Utilities Purposes in a manner substantially 
similar to the District’s manner of use thereof as of the date of this Agreement.   

(b) Term.  The term of the Easement and this Agreement (the “Term”) shall 
commence on the date that this Agreement is recorded in the Official Records of San Luis 
Obispo County, California (the “Effective Date”), and continue until the earlier of: (i) written 
notice by District to Hearst that the District has ceased to use the Easement for the Public 
Utilities Purposes; (ii) the District ceases to use the Easement for Public Utilities Purposes for a 
period of twelve (12) consecutive months; or (iii) any termination pursuant to Section 5 below. 

(c) Acknowledgements and Release by District.  In addition to Section 7 
below, District acknowledges and agrees that, in consideration of the grant of the Easement by 
Hearst to District as provided herein, District releases, relinquishes and waives any and all claims 
or rights that it may have with respect to the Encroachment Area, including without limitation 
any claims or rights of inverse condemnation, adverse possession, or prescriptive easement 
pertaining to the Encroachment.  For purposes of any requirement that Hearst must file a claim 
under the Government Claims Act (California Government Code Section 810-996.6) with 
respect to the Encroachment, District further acknowledges and agrees as follows:  (1) no claim 
by Hearst accrued until August 18, 2020 when the Encroachment was confirmed by that certain 
survey report dated August 18, 2020, prepared by Wallace Group, a copy of which has 
previously been provided by Hearst to the District; and (2) Hearst shall not be required to file a 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 344 of 373



3658.008-3561021.1 
 

 

 3  
 

claim until the later of (A) expiration of the required filing period under the Government Claims 
Act, or (B) thirty (30) days after written notice from District to Hearst. 

(d) Encroachment Fee.   

(i) As additional consideration for the grant of the Easement by Hearst 
to District as provided herein, commencing on the Effective Date, District covenants and agrees 
to pay to Hearst an annual encroachment fee (the “Encroachment Fee”) as provided in this 
Section 1(d).  The Encroachment Fee shall be payable in advance on the Effective Date and 
thereafter on each anniversary of the Effective Date through the Term.  The amount of the first 
Encroachment Fee payment shall be Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000.00).  Commencing on the 
first anniversary of the Effective Date, the amount of each annual Encroachment Fee shall 
automatically increase twothree percent (32%) over the Encroachment Fee for the immediately 
preceding year.  For the avoidance of doubt and as an example of such automatic Encroachment 
Fee increase during the Term, the annual Encroachment Fee for the first three (3) years of the 
Term shall be as follows: 

Annual Encroachment Fee 

Payment No. Due Date Amount 

1 Effective Date $5,000.00 

2 1st Anniversary of Effective Date $5,1500.00 

3 2nd Anniversary of Effective Date $5,202304.50 

 
(ii) Notwithstanding Section 1(d)(i) above, Hearst and the District 

acknowledge and agree that a prorated amount of the annual license fee previously paid to Hearst 
by the District under the License Agreement in the aggregate sum of ________________ Dollars 
($________________) (the “Encroachment Fee Credit”) shall be applied to the first 
Encroachment Fee payment under this Agreement.  District shall have three (3) business days 
after the Effective Date to pay to Hearst the balance of the first Encroachment Fee payment after 
crediting thereto the Encroachment Fee Credit. 

(e) Reimbursement of Damages Resulting from Encroachment.  As a direct 
result of the Encroachment, Hearst incurred damages as more particularly set forth in the License 
Agreement.  Hearst and District acknowledge and agree that, as of the Effective Date, the 
payment obligations of District under the License Agreement (including, without limitation, 
Section 1(e) of the License Agreement) have been satisfied in full.  As additional consideration 
for the grant of the Easement by Hearst to District as provided herein, District shall pay to Hearst 
all additional damages incurred by Hearst during the Term as a result of the Encroachment 
promptly upon written demand by Hearst therefor (which demand shall include reasonable 
supporting documentation therefor).  The payment obligations of the District under this 
Section 1(e) shall survive any termination of the Easement and this Agreement. 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 345 of 373



3658.008-3561021.1 
 

 

 4  
 

(f) Termination of License Agreement.  Subject to and conditioned upon 
recordation of this Agreement as provided in Section 1(b) above, Hearst and the District hereby 
agree that this Agreement shall replace the License Agreement, and the License Agreement shall 
terminate as of the Effective Date. 

2. Additional Covenants and Acknowledgements by the District.   

(a) Compliance with Conservation Easement.  District acknowledges and 
agrees that: (i) the Encroachment Area is encumbered by the Conservation Easement; (ii) this 
Agreement, including but not limited to the District’s rights pursuant to Section 1 above, is 
subordinate and subject to the Conservation Easement Agreement; and (iii) in performing its 
activities and obligations under this Agreement (including, without limitation, removal and 
reclamation pursuant to Section 6(a) below), District shall comply with all applicable provisions 
of the Conservation Easement Agreement.  The parties acknowledge and agree that the District’s 
acceptance of the grant of the Easement as provided herein does not constitute an assumption of 
any of the affirmative obligations of Hearst with respect to the Encroachment Area under the 
Conservation Easement Agreement; provided, however, District shall cooperate with Hearst, at 
District’s sole cost and expense, in connection with Hearst’s performance of its affirmative 
obligations with respect to the Encroachment Area under the Conservation Easement Agreement. 

(b) Compliance with Laws.  District shall perform its activities and 
obligations under this Agreement in a good and workmanlike manner, shall keep the 
Encroachment Area in neat, clean, orderly and safe condition at all times, and shall, at its sole 
cost and expense, comply with all applicable federal, state or local laws, regulations, decisions or 
orders of courts, administrative bodies or governmental agencies, ordinances, codes, permits or 
permit conditions, currently existing and as amended, enacted, issued, adopted or imposed in the 
future. 

(c) Mechanic’s Liens.  District shall keep the Encroachment Area free and 
clear of all mechanic’s liens or other liens resulting from the District’s exercise of its rights 
pursuant to this Agreement and will promptly pay and discharge any such liens; provided, 
however, District will have the right to contest the correctness or the validity of any such lien, if 
immediately on demand of Hearst, District procures and records a lien release bond that meets 
the requirements of California Civil Code Section 8424 and will provide for the payment of such 
sum that the claimant may recover on the claim (together with costs of suit, if it recovers in the 
action). 

3. Indemnity.  District agrees to wholly indemnify, protect, defend and hold 
harmless Hearst, its parent, affiliates, subsidiaries, officers, directors, employees, stockholders, 
managers, property managers, mortgagees, successors, assigns, and insurers, from and against all 
liability, claims and demands arising out of the existence of the Encroachment on the 
Encroachment Area and District’s use of the Encroachment Area and the undertaking of the 
Project.  District agrees to investigate, handle, respond to, and to provide defense for and defend 
against any such liability, claims or demands at its sole expense, or, at the option of Hearst, 
agrees to pay Hearst or reimburse Hearst for the defense costs incurred by Hearst in connection 
with any such liability, claims or demands.  District also agrees to bear all other costs and 
expenses related thereto, including court costs and attorney fees, whether or not any such 
liability, claims or demands alleged are groundless, false or fraudulent. 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 346 of 373



3658.008-3561021.1 
 

 

 5  
 

4. Insurance.  At all times during the Term, District shall, at its sole cost and 
expense, maintain a commercial general liability in the amount of not less than Two Million 
Dollars ($2,000,000) per occurrence, naming Hearst and its parent, affiliates, subsidiaries, 
officers, directors, employees, stockholders, managers, property managers, mortgagees, 
successors, assigns as an additional insured for ongoing and completed operations and 
Rangeland Trust as an additional insured for claims arising out of the Encroachment and 
District’s exercise of its rights granted under this Agreement on a primary and noncontributory 
basis.  District shall also, at its sole cost and expense, maintain workers compensation insurance 
with statutory limits and employer’s liability coverage of One Million ($1,000,000) per accident, 
One Million ($1,000,000) per employee for injury by disease, and One Million ($1,000,000) 
policy aggregate; automobile liability coverage of not less than Two Million Dollars 
($2,000,000); property insurance for the District’s real and personal property; and environmental 
liability insurance for any first party or third party clean-up. A waiver of subrogation shall be 
included on all policies in favor of Hearst and its parent, affiliates, subsidiaries, officers, 
directors, employees, stockholders, managers, property managers, mortgagees, successors, 
assigns. On or before the Effective Date, District shall deliver to Hearst a certificate verifying 
that such insurance has been obtained.  Further, at any time during the Term, Hearst may request 
of District, and District shall deliver to Hearst within five (5) days, evidence satisfactory to 
Hearst that the insurance required hereunder is still in full force and effect.  The foregoing 
insurance requirements do not replace, waive, alter or limit the hold harmless or indemnification 
provisions of this Agreement.  Not less frequently than every five (5) years, Hearst and the 
District shall cooperate in determining an appropriate increase, to adjust for inflation, in the limit 
of the insurance coverage maintained by the District under this Agreement. Thereafter, the 
District shall obtain and maintain in effect such increased coverage until the next such 
adjustment. 

5. Default by District; Hearst Remedies and Right to Terminate. 

(a) In the event District fails to perform any of its obligations as required 
under this Agreement, or breaches any covenant, condition or term of this Agreement, Hearst 
shall, in addition to any other remedies available at law or in equity, have the right to 
immediately terminate the Easement and this Agreement.   

(b) If District fails to make any payment to Hearst when due as provided in 
under this Agreement, then: 

(i) the outstanding amount shall bear interest at the maximum rate 
allowed by law until paid in full (“Default Interest”); and 

(ii) a late charge by way of damages shall be immediately due and 
payable to Hearst.  District recognizes that any default by District in paying such amounts when 
due will result in Hearst incurring additional expenses and in Hearst’s loss of the use of the 
money due.  District agrees that, if for any reason District fails to pay any amount owed under 
this Agreement when due, Hearst shall be entitled to damages for the detriment caused thereby, 
but that it is extremely difficult and impractical to ascertain the extent of such damages.  District 
therefore agrees that an amount equal to Five Cents ($0.05) for each dollar Hearst fails to pay 
when due (the “Late Charge”) is a reasonable estimate of said damages to Hearst, which sum 
District agrees to pay on demand. 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 347 of 373



3658.008-3561021.1 
 

 

 6  
 

Hearst’s right to payment of such Default Interest and Late Charge as provided in this Section 
5(b) shall be in addition to, and not in substitution for, any other remedies available to Hearst by 
reason of any default, including, without limitation, Hearst’s right set forth in this Agreement to 
be paid its costs and expenses as provided in Section 18 below. 

(c) District shall not be in default of any of its obligations under this 
Agreement unless Hearst first provides to District written notice of default and District thereafter 
fails within five (5) days after receipt of such notice of default to either cure such default or 
diligently commence such actions reasonably necessary to cure such default within such five (5) 
day period, and thereafter cures such default not later than thirty (30) days after receipt of such 
notice of default. 

6. District Obligations uUpon Termination.   

(a) Removal and Reclamation.   

(i) Within twelve (12) months (the “Removal Period”) after any 
termination of the Easement and this Agreement as provided in this Agreement (the 
“Termination”), Grantee shall, at its sole cost and expense, remove all improvements and 
facilities from the Encroachment Area (the “Removal”).  The Removal shall include, without 
limitation, removal of all above-ground structures and the upper portion of foundations, and 
removal of all below-ground structures to a depth of thirty-six (36) inches below grade or greater 
if Grantor has a valid reason that would require removal of structures greater than 36 inches; 
provided that any of the foregoing that contain any materials then known to be harmful to the 
environment or health shall be completely removed, regardless of the depth.  Foundations shall 
be ground to thirty-six (36) inches below grade, unless Grantor has a valid reason that would 
require removal greater than 36 inches, and the foundation sites re-graded, as applicable.  Cables 
and conduits more than thirty-six (36) inches below grade may be abandoned in place provided 
they do not contain any materials then known to be harmful to the environment or health, unless 
Grantor has a valid reason that would require removal greater than 36 inches.  All unsalvageable 
materials shall be disposed of by Grantee at authorized sites in accordance with all applicable 
present or future federal, state or local laws, statutes, codes, ordinances, rules regulations, 
decrees, orders and other such requirements.  Site reclamation shall be based on site-specific 
requirements and techniques commonly employed at the time the area shall be reclaimed, 
including grading and removal of gravel.  The failure of Grantee to remove, raze or demolish any 
improvement within the Removal Period as provided herein shall be deemed an abandonment of 
the improvements to Grantor, and Grantor shall have the right to keep such improvements and to 
charge Grantee, and Grantee agrees to reimburse Grantor, for all costs and expenses incurred by 
Grantor to remove, raze or demolish the improvements or any part thereof to the standard set 
forth above.  In such event, Grantor shall be entitled to the entire salvage value of the 
improvements, without accounting to Grantee for such value.  All Removal and reclamation shall 
be conducted and completed in compliance with all applicable present or future federal, state or 
local laws, statutes, codes, ordinances, rules regulations, decrees, orders and other such 
requirements and all applicable provisions of agreements of record as of the Effective Date, 
including, without limitation, the Conservation Easement. 

(ii) In the event of the Termination as provided above, then 
notwithstanding any other term or provision of this Agreement, and notwithstanding such 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 348 of 373



3658.008-3561021.1 
 

 

 7  
 

termination of this Agreement, until Grantee’s completion of the Removal as provided in the 
preceding subsection 6(a)(i) then: (A) Grantee shall remain bound by and obligated under the 
terms, covenants and provisions of this Agreement, and (B) Grantee’s rights under this 
Agreement shall extinguish, except that Grantee shall have the continued license and right to 
access the Encroachment Area solely for the purpose of completing the Removal. 

(b) Recordation of Quitclaim.  Upon the Termination as provided above, 
Grantee shall execute, acknowledge and deliver to Grantor, within ten (10) business days after 
written demand from Grantor to Grantee, any quitclaim deed, termination agreement, 
cancellation and surrender agreement, affidavit, petition, or other document required by any 
reputable title company selected by Grantor, licensed to operate in the California, to remove any 
cloud or encumbrance on the Conservation Property created by this Agreement.  Grantee 
irrevocably appoints Grantor as attorney-in-fact of Grantee, with full powers, at Grantee’s cost 
and expense, to perform the obligations of Grantee under this paragraph upon the expiration of 
the ten (10) business day period described in this paragraph.  Grantee’s obligations under this 
paragraph shall survive the Termination. 

7. District’s Use and Liability; Release of Hearst.  District hereby releases Hearst 
from any liability arising from the District exercising its rights under this Agreement and the 
District’s undertaking of the Project.  Furthermore, District agrees to assume responsibility for 
any damages to the Encroachment Area caused by reason of the District’s use of the Easement 
and Encroachment Area under this Agreement.  With respect to the release provided in this 
Section by the District, the District acknowledges that it has been advised by legal counsel and 
that the District waives the provisions of California Civil Code Section 1542, which provides: 

A GENERAL RELEASE DOES NOT EXTEND TO CLAIMS THAT THE 
CREDITOR OR RELEASING PARTY DOES NOT KNOW OR SUSPECT TO 
EXIST IN HIS OR HER FAVOR AT THE TIME OF EXECUTING THE 
RELEASE AND THAT, IF KNOWN BY HIM OR HER, WOULD HAVE 
MATERIALLY AFFECTED HIS OR HER SETTLEMENT WITH THE 
DEBTOR OR RELEASED PARTY. 

District, on behalf of itself and for its successors and permitted assigns, expressly, 
knowingly, and voluntarily waives and relinquishes all rights and benefits afforded by California 
Civil Code Section 1542 and any analogous state or federal law or regulation, and in so doing, 
understands and acknowledges the significance and consequence of such specific waiver. 

8. Notices.  Any notice, demand, approval, consent, or other communication 
required or desired to be given under this Agreement in writing shall be given in the manner set 
forth below, addressed to the party to be served at the addresses set forth below or at such other 
address for which that party may have given notice under the provisions of this Section.  Any 
notice, demand, approval, consent, or other communication given by: (a) mail shall be deemed to 
have been given on the second (2nd) business day immediately following the date it was 
deposited in the United States mail, first class and postage prepaid; (b) overnight common carrier 
courier service shall be deemed to be given on the business day immediately following the date it 
was deposited with such common carrier; (c) delivery in person or by messenger shall be deemed 
to have been given upon delivery in person or by messenger; or (d) electronic transmission shall 
be deemed to have been given on the date of transmission of the entire communication, provided 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 349 of 373



3658.008-3561021.1 
 

 

 8  
 

that (i) such transmission occurs during 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m., Pacific Time, on normal 
business days, and (ii) the receiving party receives delivery of a hard copy of the original 
transmitted document(s) not later than the first (1st) business day following such transmission. 

To Hearst: 
Hearst Holdings, Inc. 
5 Third Street, Suite 200 
San Francisco, CA 94103-3202 
Attn: Controller 
Email: __________@hearst.com 

To District: 
San Simeon Community Services District 
111 Pico Avenue 
San Simeon, CA 93452 
Attn: Chairperson 
Email: admin@sansimeoncsd.org 

9. Time of the Essence; Dates.  Time is of the essence in the performance of each 
of the parties’ respective obligations contained in this Agreement.  In the event that any date 
specified in this Agreement falls on Saturday, Sunday or other day on which public agencies and 
major banks in San Luis Obispo County, California, are not open for business (each a “Non-
Business Day”), such date shall be deemed to be the succeeding business day.  For purposes of 
this Agreement, a “business day” shall mean a day other than a Non-Business Day. 

10. Further Assurances.  Each of the parties agrees to perform any and all further 
acts and to execute and deliver any documents that may reasonably be necessary to carry out the 
provisions of this Agreement. 

11. Severability.  Each provision of this Agreement is severable from any and all 
other provisions of this Agreement.  Should any provision(s) of this Agreement be for any reason 
unenforceable, the balance shall nonetheless be of full force and effect. 

12. Entire Agreement; Modification; Waiver.  This Agreement constitutes the 
entire agreement between Hearst and the District pertaining to the subject matter contained in it 
and, subject to Section 1(f) above, supersedes all prior and contemporaneous agreements, 
representations, and understandings.  This Agreement may be amended, modified or 
supplemented only by written agreement of Hearst and the District and prior written consent of 
Rangeland Trust.  No waiver of any of the provisions of this Agreement shall be deemed or shall 
constitute a waiver of any other provision, whether or not similar, nor shall any waiver constitute 
a continuing waiver.  No waiver shall be binding unless executed in writing by the party making 
the waiver. 

13. Relationship of Parties.  Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be deemed 
or construed by the parties or by any third person to create the relationship of principal and agent 
or of partnership or of joint venture or of any association between Hearst and the District, and no 
provision contained in this Agreement nor any acts of the parties shall be deemed to create any 
relationship between Hearst and the District. 

14. No Assignment.  District’s rights and obligations under this Agreement are 
personal to District, and District shall not assign this Agreement without the express written 
consent of Hearst, which consent may be withheld for any reason or for no reason. 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 350 of 373



3658.008-3561021.1 
 

 

 9  
 

15. Binding on Successors.  This Agreement shall be binding upon the parties, 
permitted assigns and other successors in interest. 

16. Drafting.  The parties to this Agreement agree that this Agreement is the product 
of joint authorship and negotiation and that should any of the terms be determined by a court, or 
in any type of quasi-judicial or other proceeding, to be vague, ambiguous and/or unintelligible, 
that the same sentences, phrases, clauses or other wordage or language of any kind shall not be 
construed against the drafting party in accordance with California Civil Code Section 1654, and 
that each such party to this Agreement waives the effect of such statute. 

17. Governing Law; Jurisdiction and Venue.  This Agreement shall be governed by 
and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of California.  Any legal suit, action, or 
proceeding arising out of this Agreement shall be instituted in Superior Court in San Luis Obispo 
County, California, and each party irrevocably submits to the exclusive jurisdiction of such court 
in any such suit, action, or proceeding.  Each party irrevocably and unconditionally waives any 
objection to the laying of venue of any suit, action, or proceeding in such court and irrevocably 
waive and agree not to plead or claim in any such court that any such suit, action, or proceeding 
brought in any such court has been brought in an inconvenient forum. 

18. Legal Costs.  If any party to this Agreement shall take any action to enforce this 
Agreement or bring any action or commence any proceeding for any relief against any other 
party, declaratory or otherwise, arising out of this Agreement, the losing party shall pay to the 
prevailing party a reasonable sum for attorneys’ and experts’ fees and costs incurred in taking 
such action, bringing such suit and/or enforcing any judgment granted therein, all of which shall 
be deemed to have accrued upon the commencement of such action and shall be paid whether or 
not such action is prosecuted to judgment.  Any judgment or order entered in such action shall 
contain a specific provision providing for the recovery of attorneys’ and experts’ fees and costs 
due hereunder, and such provision shall be determined by a court of competent jurisdiction and 
not by a jury.  For the purposes of this Section, attorneys’ and experts’ fees and costs shall 
include, without limitation, fees incurred in the following: (a) postjudgment motions; 
(b) contempt proceedings; (c) garnishment, levy, and debtor and third party examinations; 
(d) discovery; (e) bankruptcy litigation; and (f) appeals. 

19. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, 
each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the 
same instrument.  The parties authorize each other to detach and combine, or cause to be 
detached and combined, original signature pages and consolidate them into a single identical 
original for recordation of this Agreement in the Official Records of San Luis Obispo County, 
California. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as set forth 
below. 

HEARST: 
 
HEARST HOLDINGS, INC., a Delaware 
corporation 

DISTRICT: 
 
SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES 
DISTRICT, a California special district 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 351 of 373



3658.008-3561021.1 
 

 

 10  
 

 
 
By:  
Name: 
Title: 

 
 
By:  
Name: 
Title: 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 352 of 373



3658.008-3561021.1 
 

 

 11  
 

CONSENT OF CONSERVATION EASEMENT HOLDER 

Rangeland Trust, as holder of the Conservation Easement under the Conservation 
Easement Agreement, hereby consents to and approves of the grant of the Easement as set forth 
in the foregoing Agreement, in accordance with the Conservation Easement Agreement.  
Capitalized terms used in this Consent shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the foregoing 
Agreement. 

RANGELAND TRUST: 
 
CALIFORNIA RANGELAND TRUST, a 
California nonprofit public benefit 
corporation 
 
 
By:  
Name: 
Title: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dated: ___________________________ 

 

 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 353 of 373



3658.008-3561021.1 
 

 

   
 

***************************************************************************** 
CERTIFICATE OF ACCEPTANCE 

 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA ) Certificate of Acceptance 
COUNTY OF SAN LUIS OBISPO )SS.  
 
This is to certify that the SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT, a California 
special district, hereby accepts the interest in real property conveyed by the foregoing Grant of 
Limited Term Encroachment Easement and Agreement and consents to the recordation thereof. 
 
 
 
Dated:              
       Name: 
       Title: 
 

***************************************************************************** 
 

 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 354 of 373



3658.008-3561021.1 
 

 

   
 

 
A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the 
individual who signed the document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, 
accuracy, or validity of that document. 

 
State of California ) 
 ) 
County of _______________ ) 
 
On _______________________ before me, ______________________________, a notary 
public, personally appeared __________________________________, who proved to me on 
the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the 
within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their 
authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), 
or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument. 
 
I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the 
foregoing paragraph is true and correct. 
 
WITNESS my hand and official seal. 
 
 
 
 
Signature _____________________________________ (Seal) 

 
  

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 355 of 373



3658.008-3561021.1 
 

 

 

 
A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the 
individual who signed the document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, 
accuracy, or validity of that document. 

 
State of California ) 
 ) 
County of _______________ ) 
 
On _______________________ before me, ______________________________, a notary 
public, personally appeared __________________________________, who proved to me on 
the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the 
within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their 
authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), 
or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument. 
 
I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the 
foregoing paragraph is true and correct. 
 
WITNESS my hand and official seal. 
 
 
 
 
Signature _____________________________________ (Seal) 

 
  

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 356 of 373



3658.008-3561021.1 
 

 

 

 
A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the 
individual who signed the document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, 
accuracy, or validity of that document. 

 
State of California ) 
 ) 
County of _______________ ) 
 
On _______________________ before me, ______________________________, a notary 
public, personally appeared __________________________________, who proved to me on 
the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the 
within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their 
authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), 
or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument. 
 
I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the 
foregoing paragraph is true and correct. 
 
WITNESS my hand and official seal. 
 
 
 
 
Signature _____________________________________ (Seal) 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 357 of 373



3658.008-3561021.1 
 

 

   
 

Exhibit A to 
Grant of Limited Term Encroachment 

 Easement and Agreement 

DESCRIPTION OF ENCROACHMENT AREA 

The real property referred to in this Agreement as the “Encroachment Area,” is located in 
San Luis Obispo County, California, and more particularly described as follows: 
 

(See attached) 

[Review Note: Legal description and plat map to be prepared and included as 
Exhibit A.] 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 358 of 373



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 359 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 360 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 361 of 373



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 362 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 363 of 373



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 364 of 373



 

August 18, 2020 
 
Kerry O’Toole  
Hearst Corporation  
5 3rd Street, The Hearst Building, Suite 200 
San Francisco, California 94103 
 
Subject: Surveyor’s Summary of the Location of San Simeon Community 
Services District Facilities in Relation to Hearst Holding, Inc. Property 
 
Dear Ms. O’toole, 
 
The information below summarizes Wallace Group’s findings as related to  the 
boundary lines of APNs 013-041-014 and 013-011-024 [Hearst Holdings Inc. 
(Hearst)] and 013-041-005 [San Simeon Acres Community Services District (CSD)] 
with respect to physical above ground and visible improvements near these property 
boundary lines, including those improvements being a part of the CSD Potable Water 
Well Head Treatment Project (PW Project). 
 
Our findings are based on the below research, including available County of San Luis 
Obispo survey map records, the CSD record drawings for the PW Project, County of 
San Luis Obispo record official documents and Wallace Group performed field 
measurements to establish the position of the boundary lines and improvements in 
question.  Below is a summary of the record documents reviewed as part of this 
effort.  Note: Numbers within parenthesis and italicized represent the circa date of the 
record document (shown as (07/30/1954) for example): 
 

1. Record of Survey, Book 6, Page 49 (05/22/1952) 
2. Record of Survey, Book 7, Page 35 (07/30/1954) 
3. Record of Survey, Book 7, Page 58 (01/04/1955) 
4. Grant Deed, Official Records, Volume 930, page 32 (03/04/1958) 
5. Certificate of Compliance, Official Records, Document #2002-028663 

(04/05/2002) 
6. Certificate of Compliance, Official Records, Document #2002-055088 

(07/08/2002) 
7. Record of Survey, Book 91, Page 96 (06/03/2005)  
8. Accessor’s Parcel Map 013-01 (06/12/2006) 
9. Accessor’s Parcel Map 013-04 (03/20/2006) 
10. San Simeon Community Services District, San Simeon, California, Potable 

Water Well Head Treatment Project Record Drawing (07/29/2016) 
 
The research for this effort did not include chain of title type research and is therefore 
dependent and limited to those items listed above.  The review of these documents 
indicates harmony and agreement in the line common between Hearst and the CSD 
and is also consistent that a portion of County Road #3 is now together and a part of 
Hearst APN 013-011-024 fee title property. 
 
Based on our research the boundary line between CSD APN 013-041-005 and 
Hearst APN 013-041-014 was first surveyed and shown on the map filed for record in 
Book 7, at page 35 of Record of Surveys and the location as shown on this map is 
consistent with the location described in the CSD’s vesting deed, Book 930, page 32 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 365 of 373

Charlie
Text Box
APN 013-041-006 not included

Charlie
Line

Charlie
Text Box
Chain of Title (ownership) not included

Charlie
Line



Hearst Holdings, Inc. 
Ms. O’Toole 
August 18, 2020 
Page 2 of 3 

of Official Records and the document recorded in Book 767, at page 490 of Official 
Records.  Our research also consistently indicates that the portion of former County 
Road No. 3 that is adjacent to and northeasterly of the Pico Avenue right of way, 60 
feet wide, is part of and together with the vesting title of Hearst APN 013-011-024 
property. 
 
Based on our field measurements of local record monuments, we were able to re-
establish the location of the boundary line common to Hearst APN 013-041-014 and 
CSD APN 013-041-005 properties and that portion of Hearst APN 013-011-024 
property that was formerly County Road No. 3.  Our field measurements also included 
the location of various improvements in the area of these property boundary lines. 
 
Figure #1 below and Exhibit #1 show the relationship of these property boundary 
lines and the visible and above grade improvements near them.  Based on our 
research and field measurements, a portion of the CSD infrastructure, including the 
PW Project building (that portion of the building encroaching on Hearst property has 
been hatched in a GREEN PATTERN), has been constructed beyond the CSD 
property (hatched in a BLUE PATTERN) and on Hearst APN 013-041-014 and 
Hearst APN 013-011-024 properties (hatched in a RED PATTERN).  Approximately 
560 square feet of the PW Project building is constructed on Hearst property, 215 
square feet on Hearst APN 013-041-014 and 345 square feet on Hearst APN 013-
011-024. 
 

FIGURE #1 

Our findings are consistent and corroborated by the CSD’s PW Project record 
drawings.  Sheet C-1 shows the CSD PW Project building to be constructed 
encroaching on Hearst’s property.  Figure #2 shows a markup of PW Project record 
drawing, highlighting the proposed building and its relationship to the property lines in 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 366 of 373

Charlie
Text Box
RO Building portion in question

Charlie
Line

Charlie
Text Box
Portion in question is on Abandoned old County Road

Charlie
Line



Hearst Holdings, Inc. 
Ms. O’Toole 
August 18, 2020 
Page 3 of 3 

question (hatching and coloring the same as Figure #1).  Which, based on the 
information shown in the PW Project record drawings, the property boundary lines 
appear to have been re-established as part of the design and engineering phase and 
the building was located over said lines as part of the design. 
 

FIGURE #2 

 
In conclusion, and based on our research and field measurements, it is my opinion 
that the CSD’s PW Project infrastructure encroaches onto the Hearst properties 
discussed herein. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
WALLACE GROUP 
 
 
 
 
Clayton Bradshaw, PLS, PE 
P.L.S. 8298 
Date signed: August 18, 2020 
 
Attachment: Exhibit #1 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 367 of 373



O/H

O/H

O/H

O/H

O/H

O/H

O/H

O/H

O/H
O/H

O/H

O/H

O/H

O/H

O/H

O/H

O/H

O/H

O/H

O
/H

O/H

O/H

O/H

O/H

O/H

O/H

O/H

O/H

O/H

PP

PP

PP

PP
PP

PP

PP

WV

UTILITY PANEL ON
CONCRETE PAD

APN 013-041-005
WELL SITE. PARCEL 1

930/OR/032

BUILDING EVE LINE

BUILDING FOOTPRINT

APN 013-041-014

CERTIFICATE OF

COMPLIANCE,

DOCUMENT

2002-055088

AP
N

 0
13

-0
11

-0
24

C
ER

TI
FI

C
AT

E 
O

F
C

O
M

PL
IA

N
C

E,
D

O
C

U
M

EN
T

20
02

-0
28

66
3

APN 013-011-015

DOCUMENT

2015-048075

PI
CO A

VE
 (6

0' 
W

ID
E)

FORM
ERLY COUNTY

ROAD #3 (50' W
IDE)

T 805 544-4011

SAN LUIS OBISPO, CA 93401

612 CLARION COURT

www.wallacegroup.us

F 805 544-4294

DRAWING :
DRAWN BY:

JOB No. :

DATE :
SCALE :

®

HEARST SAN SIMEON PROPERTY
CSD & HEARST PROPERTY SURVEY

SAN SIMEON, CA
EXHIBIT #1

0731-0009
RECD-PROP
CLB
8/18/2020
1" = 20'

FILE NAME: 0731-0009-RECD-PROP.DWG Plot Date: 8/18/2020

LEGEND

HEARST PROPERTY

CSD PROPERTY

CSD BUILDING
ENCROACHING ON HEARST
PROPERTY (±560 SQ. FEET)

N

00 20 40

(IN FEET)

10

GRAPHIC SCALE

1 IN = 20 FT

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 368 of 373



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 369 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 370 of 373



November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 371 of 373



A
V

O
N

N
E

 A
V

E

PICO AVE

S
T
A

T
E

 H
IG

H
W

A
Y

 1

PEN                 WAY

RECORD OF SURVEY

ED
WARD  M.  READING

LICENSE NO. 8081

PR
OF

ES
SIONAL  LAND  SURVEYOR

STATE  OF  CALIFORNIA

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 372 of 373

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE OF CALIFORNIA RIGHT OF WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
S33%%D00'00"E 2735.50'R2

AutoCAD SHX Text
FND 1" IP "RCE6923" PER R2, R6 &R7

AutoCAD SHX Text
FND 1" IP  "LS5702" PER R7

AutoCAD SHX Text
FND 1"IP WITH   CAP "LS5702" PER R7

AutoCAD SHX Text
FND 5/8" REBAR "LS 5702" PER R7

AutoCAD SHX Text
13 MB 93

AutoCAD SHX Text
6 RS 49

AutoCAD SHX Text
ABANDONED ROAD (FORMERLY CO. ROAD NO. 3)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOC 2004-071848

AutoCAD SHX Text
2318 OR 916

AutoCAD SHX Text
930 OR 32

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
FND 1 IP OPEN  PER R4&R6 SS No 2 

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.N.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FND 1 1/4" IP S No. 6 PER R3&R4 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ro PIEDRA BLANCA

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ro SAN SIMEON

AutoCAD SHX Text
FND (EUCALYPTUS) 72" BLUE GUM 21" PER D1

AutoCAD SHX Text
COUNTY ROAD #3 PER 101 DEEDS 45 ABANDO0NED PER  134 OR 481  & 253 OR 41

AutoCAD SHX Text
18 RS 90

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARROYO 

AutoCAD SHX Text
767 OR 490

AutoCAD SHX Text
COC DOC. No. 2002-055188 HEARST HOLDINGS, INC. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
101 DEEDS 375

AutoCAD SHX Text
COC DOC. No. 2002-028663 HEARST HOLDINGS, INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
COC DOC. No. 2004-033958 JOHN K RUSSELL TR.  

AutoCAD SHX Text
COC DOC. No. 2004-033959 JOHN K RUSSELL TR.  

AutoCAD SHX Text
COC DOC. No. 2004-033957 JOHN K RUSSELL TR.  

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O.B. INTERSECTION OF NE'ly LINE OF STATE HIGHWAY WITH THE NW'ly LINE OF  PICO AVE FORMERLY A 1 1/4" IP PER R5  (1955) IS DESTROYED AND  IS DESTROYED AND  FALLS WITHIN STATE HIGHWAY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 inch = 100 ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
( IN FEET )

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
200

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF BLUFF 

AutoCAD SHX Text
COC DOC. No. 2002-055087 HEARST HOLDINGS, INC. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
COC DOC. No. 2002-055089 HEARST HOLDINGS, INC. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
WELL SITE BOUNDARY  NOT ESTABLISHED ON THIS SURVEY  

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURRENT EVIDENCE OF  COUNTY ROAD #3 (TOP AND TOE OF SLOPES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE DETAIL  SHEET 2  

AutoCAD SHX Text
RE-ESTABLISHED  POSITION 0F 1"IP   FROM 2006 S. TOUCHON SURVEY 2006 (UNRECORDED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEL PINAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
 (PICO CREEK)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORIGINAL CONCRETE  BRIDGE  CIRCA 1916

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE: 2"X2" STAKES SET BY McLENNAN IN 1954 PER 7 RS 35 FALL WITHIN THE PICO CREEK FLOOD PLANE, AND NO TRACE OF THOSE STAKES COULD BE FOUND.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURRENT EVIDENCE OF  COUNTY ROAD #3 (TOP AND TOE OF SLOPES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
COUNTY ROAD #3 CENTERLINE ROTATED 2"01'10" CLOCKWISE  FROM R1 BEARINGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
587.02'M

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' M&R2

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"x2" PER R4 S.N.F.   SEE NOTE

AutoCAD SHX Text
N79°50'00"E 164.55'D3

AutoCAD SHX Text
N85°16'10"W 275.31'D3

AutoCAD SHX Text
S1°18'00"W 297.30'D3

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°10'00"W 69.36'D3

AutoCAD SHX Text
S16°50'00"E 388.32'D3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"x2" PER R4 S.N.F.   SEE NOTE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"x2" PER R4 S.N.F.   SEE NOTE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"x2" PER R4 S.N.F.   SEE NOTE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"x2" PER R4 S.N.F.   SEE NOTE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FND 1/2" IRON BAR  PER R2

AutoCAD SHX Text
FND 5/8"REBAR "LS5702" PER R7

AutoCAD SHX Text
PEN WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
BASIS OF BEARINGS THE BASIS OF BEARINGS FOR THIS SURVEY WAS TAKEN FROM THE CENTERLINE OF AVONNE AVE BETWEEN FOUND MONUMENTS AS SHOWN, BEARING N 42° 18' 50" W PER R7.   DISTANCES ARE ON GRID.  TO OBTAIN GROUND DISTANCES, MULTIPLY DISTANCES SHOWN BY A COMBINED SCALE FACTOR OF 1.00003312 ALL MEASURED BEARINGS SHOWN ON ON GRID TO OBTAIN GEODETIC BEARINGS, ROTATE BEARINGS SHOWN BY -1°47'12".SEE 117 RS 17 FOR TIES TO INITIAL CAL TRANS CONTROL POINTS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
A PORTION OF THE RANCHO SAN SIMEON AS SHOWN ON THE MAP OF THE PARTITION OF THE IRA VAN GORDEN TRACT FILED IN BOOK B OF MAPS AT PAGE 108 IN THE COMMUNITY OF SAN SIMEON COUNTY OF SAN LUIS OBISPO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET 1 OF 2 SHEETS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURVEYOR'S STATEMENT THIS MAP CORRECTLY REPRESENTS A SURVEY  MADE BY ME OR UNDER MY DIRECTION IN CONFORMANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR'S ACT AT THE REQUEST OF SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT IN SEPTEMBER 0F 2021. _______________________     MICHAEL B. STANTON, L.S. 5702

AutoCAD SHX Text
MICHAEL B. STANTON, PLS 5702

AutoCAD SHX Text
3559 SOUTH HIGUERA ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN LUIS OBISPO, CA 93401

AutoCAD SHX Text
805-594-1960

AutoCAD SHX Text
RS 21-___

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIC. NO. 5702

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
COUNTY SURVEYOR'S STATEMENT THIS MAP HAS BEEN EXAMINED IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 8766 OF THE PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR'S ACT THIS  ____ DAY OF _____________, 20__.  ____________________________   EDWARD M. READING, L.S. 8081 COUNTY SURVEYOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
RECORDER'S STATEMENT FILED THIS _____ DAY OF _____________________, 20___,  AT _____ __M. IN BOOK ____ OF RECORDS OF  SURVEYS AT PAGE  _____ AT THE REQUEST OF MICHAEL B. STANTON.  DOCUMENT NUMBER:______ - ______________     FEE:______ __________________     BY:________________     BY:________________ COUNTY RECORDER      DEPUTY DEPUTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND SET 1" IRON PIPE WITH PLASTIC CAP "L.S. 5702" SET NAIL & TAG "L.S. 5702" FOUND MONUMENT AS NOTED M MEASURED MEASURED R_ RECORD RECORD FND. FOUND FOUND S.P. SINGLE PROPORTION SINGLE PROPORTION S.N.F  SEARCHED NOT FOUND INTX.  BEARING BEARING INTERSECTION BEARING BEARING INTERSECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
REFERENCES R1   5 RS 21, PORTER 1949  R2   6 RS 49, McLENNAN, 1952 (THE ARBUCKLE TRACT) R3   7 RS 34, McLENNAN, 1954  R4   7 RS 35, McLENNAN, 1954 R5   7 RS 58, McLENNAN, 1954 R6   TOPOGRAPHIC MAP BY S. TOUCHON 2006 (JOB NO. 06148) R7   117 RS 17 D1   930 OR 32 (CSD PROPERTY) D2   101 DEEDS 45 (CO ROAD  NO. 3) D3   767 OR 490



PICO AVE.

RECORD OF SURVEY

November 9, 2021 Board Meeting Packet Page 373 of 373

AutoCAD SHX Text
S53°59'E 30.00'D1N51°59'12"W 30.00'M

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.81  ENCROACHMENT MAIN STRUCTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCED AREA (ENCROACHMENT AREA)  2816 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF BANK

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF BANK

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FORMERLY CO. ROAD #3 PER 101 DEEDS 45 (1870)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURRENT EVIDENCE OF  CO. ROAD #3 PER 101 DEEDS 45 TOP AND TOE OF SLOPES

AutoCAD SHX Text
930 OR 32 PARCEL 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
M&R2

AutoCAD SHX Text
N51°59'12"W 209.38'M N53°59'W 209.38'D1

AutoCAD SHX Text
N81°49'48"E 127.99'M N79°50'E 127.99'D1

AutoCAD SHX Text
S40°17'W 124.29'D1S38°17'12"E 124.30'M

AutoCAD SHX Text
N31°00'21"W 32.13'M S40°17'E 32.13'D1

AutoCAD SHX Text
N38°00'48"E 51.41'M S36°01'W D1 (NO DIST)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N38°00'48"E 62.91'M N36°01'E 62.91'CFD1

AutoCAD SHX Text
N36°01'E 1041.81'D1N38°00'48"E 1041.81'M

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO P.O.B. D1

AutoCAD SHX Text
ESTABLISHED AT  D1 ANGLE AND  DISTANCE TO SENIOR LINE OF 767 OR 490

AutoCAD SHX Text
ESTABLISHED AT  D1 ANGLE AND  DISTANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HELD POSITION  OF ORIGINAL  1" IRON PIPE  FROM R6 TIES  (SEE SHEET 1)

AutoCAD SHX Text
HELD LINE PER R2 TO CENTERLINE OF PICO  AVENUE PER R1&D1

AutoCAD SHX Text
HELD PERPENDICULAR  AND 30.00 FEET TO T.P.O.B. PER D1

AutoCAD SHX Text
86.00'M

AutoCAD SHX Text
COC DOC NO. 2002-022185

AutoCAD SHX Text
COC DOC NO. 2002-028663

AutoCAD SHX Text
COC DOC NO. 2004-033958 JOHN K. RUSSELL TRUST

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOUNDARY OF WELL SITE NO ESTABLISHED  ON THIS SURVEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.S.D. OFFICE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER TREATMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER TANK

AutoCAD SHX Text
4th CALL OF  930 OR 32 CALL MUST  YEILD TO SENIOR DEED 101 DEEDS 375 (1914)

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESERVED FOR  ROAD PURPOSES  PER D1

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW ACCESS ROAD TO WELL SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
59°00"21"M55°59'00"D3

AutoCAD SHX Text
767 OR 490

AutoCAD SHX Text
930 OR 32 PARCEL 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
767 OR 490

AutoCAD SHX Text
101 DEEDS 450

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORIGINAL WELL  HEAD PER R4

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEC PANEL 4.5'X6'

AutoCAD SHX Text
A PORTION OF THE RANCHO SAN SIMEON AS SHOWN ON THE MAP OF THE PARTITION OF THE IRA VAN GORDEN TRACT FILED IN BOOK B OF MAPS AT PAGE 108 IN THE COMMUNITY OF SAN SIMEON COUNTY OF SAN LUIS OBISPO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET 2 OF 2 SHEETS

AutoCAD SHX Text
MICHAEL B. STANTON, PLS 5702

AutoCAD SHX Text
3559 SOUTH HIGUERA ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN LUIS OBISPO, CA 93401

AutoCAD SHX Text
805-594-1960

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND SET 1" IRON PIPE PLASTIC CAP "L.S. 5702" SET NAIL & TAG "L.S. 5702" FOUND MONUMENT AS NOTED FOUND WELL MONUMENT AS NOTED M MEASURED MEASURED R_ RECORD RECORD FND. FOUND FOUND S.P. SINGLE PROPORTION SINGLE PROPORTION S.N.F  SEARCHED NOT FOUND INTX.  BEARING BEARING INTERSECTION BEARING BEARING INTERSECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 inch = 20 ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
( IN FEET )

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
METHODS AND REASONING: THE POINT OF BEGINNING FOR 930 OR 32 BEGINS AT THE INTERSECTION OF THE NORTHEASTERLY LINE OF THE STATE HIGHWAY WITH THE NORTHWESTERLY LINE OF PICO AVENUE AS IT EXISTED IN 1958.  THIS MONUMENT HAS BEEN DESTROYED WITH THE WIDENING OF STATE HIGHWAY 1 AND CURRENTLY FALLS WITHIN THE TRAVEL LANES OF THE HIGHWAY.   I THEREFORE RE-ESTABLISHED THE MOST NORTHERLY CORNER OF PICO AVENUE AS SHOWN ON 6 RS 49 (R2) BY USING MEASURED TIE LINES FROM A UNRECORDED TOPOGRAPHIC MAP DATED 2006 BY SKIP TOUCHON, LS 4845. THE MONUMENT THAT SKIP TOUCHON LOCATED IN 2006 WAS DESTROYED BY CONSTRUCTION OF THE WATER TREATMENT BUILDING AFTER 2015.  THIS RE-ESTBALISHED POSITION WAS HELD AS BEST EVIDENCE OF THE ORIGINAL DEED PER D1 THE FIRST CALL OF D1 CALLS FOR 767 OR 490 TO BE SENIOR, HOWEVER, AFTER A DILIGENT SEARCH, NONE OF THE 2"X2" WOOD STAKES SET PER R4 COULD BE FOUND IN THE FLOOD PLAIN, THEREFORE THE NORTHWEST LINE OF PICO AVE WAS HELD FOR THE BASIS OF DEED ANGLE AS BEST EVIDENCE OF THE INTENT OF 930 OR 32.  THE DEED COURSES WERE RUN BACKWARDS TO ESTABLISH COURSES 1, 2, AND 3 BY HOLDING RECORD DEED ANGLES AND RECORD DEED DISTANCES OFF OF THE NORTHWESTERLY LINE OF PICO AVE PER D1.  COURSE NUMBER 4 OF D1 MUST YEILD TO THE SENIOR DEED FROM 1914 PER 101 DEEDS 450.   COURSE NUMBER FOUR WAS RUN DIRECTLY TO THE INTERSECTION OF THE CENTERLINE OF PICO AVE. WITH THE NORTHEAST BOUNDARY OF THE ARBUCKLE TRACE PER 6 RS 49.   COURSE NUMBER 5 WAS RUN ALONG THE CENTERLINE OF PICO AVENUE TO A POINT WHICH WAS PERPENDICULAR AND 30.00 FEET FROM THE P.O.B. PER D1 THE LAST COURSE WAS RUN DIRECTLY TO THE P.O.B.  NOTE:   THE 2"X2" STAKES THAT WERE SET BY McLENNAN IN 1954 PER 7 RS 35 ALONG THE BOUNDARY OF SENIOR DEED 767 OR 490 WERE SET WITHIN THE FLOOD PLANE OF PICO CREEK.  A DILIGENT SEARCH WAS MADE FOR THESE MONUMENTS AND NONE WERE FOUND. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
REFERENCES R1   5 RS 21, PORTER 1949  R2   6 RS 49, McLENNAN, 1952 (THE ARBUCKLE TRACT) R3   7 RS 34, McLENNAN, 1954  R4   7 RS 35, McLENNAN, 1954 R5   7 RS 58, McLENNAN, 1954 R6   TOPOGRAPHIC MAP BY S. TOUCHON 2006 (JOB NO. 06148) R7   117 RS 17 D1   930 OR 32 (CSD PROPERTY) D2   101 DEEDS 45 (CO ROAD  NO. 3) D3   767 OR 490

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN SIMEON C.S.D.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HEARST HOLDINGS, INC. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
HEARST HOLDINGS, INC. 


	November 9, 2021 Board Packet (2)
	November Board Packet.pdf
	Binder1.pdf
	front page of packet.pdf
	November Board Meeting Agenda.pdf
	BP SEPARATORS 21.pdf



	November 9, 2021 Board Packet (2)
	November Board Packet.pdf
	Binder1.pdf
	Supt Rpt Data 2021 p 2.pdf
	Supt Rpt Data 2021 p 3.pdf
	Supt Rpt Data 2021 p 4.pdf
	NCAC Oct Report.pdf
	ADHOC COMMITTEE REPORT List of Committee members.pdf

	Financial Summary October 2021.pdf
	Sheet1

	Balance Sheet 2021-10-31.pdf
	San Sim Revenue graphs4.pdf

	October 12, 2021 Board Meeting Minutes DRAFT.pdf
	2021-11 Nov Disb Jrnl.pdf
	Sheet1

	San Simeon Waste Ordinance (4).pdf
	AN ORDINANCE OF THE SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT TO ADOPT MANDATORY SOLID WASTE, ORGANIC WASTE, AND RECYCLING MATERIALS RULES AND REGULATIONS
	Table of Contents
	ORDINANCE No. 123
	AN ORDINANCE OF THE SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT TO ADOPT MANDATORY SOLID WASTE, ORGANIC WASTE, AND RECYCLING MATERIALS RULES AND REGULATIONS AND MAKING A DETERMINATION OF EXEMPTION UNDER CEQA
	Section 1. Title of Ordinance
	Section 2. Purpose of the Ordinance
	Section 3. Definitions
	Section 4. Requirements for Single-Family Premises
	Section 5. Requirements for Multi-Family Residential Dwellings
	Section 6. Requirements for Commercial Businesses
	Section 7. Waivers for Multi-Family Premises and Commercial Premises
	Section 8. Requirements for Commercial Edible Food Generators
	Section 9. Requirements for Food Recovery Organizations and Services
	Section 10. Requirements for Haulers and Facility Operators
	Section 11. Self-Hauler Requirements
	Section 12. Inspections and Investigations
	Section 13. Collection Rates and Collection Of Delinquent Fees And Charges
	Section 14. Franchise for Collection - Authorization
	Section 15. Regulations For Accumulation Of Solid Waste, Cast Offs, Rubble, And Refuse
	Section 16. Clearing Of Accumulated Solid Waste And Rubble
	Section 17. Storage And Placement Of Standard Containers For Pick-Up
	Section 18. Unlawful Collection
	Section 19. Condition of Collection Trucks
	Section 20. Exceptions
	Section 21. Enforcement
	Section 22. CalRecycle Issued Waivers
	Section 23. CEQA
	Section 24. Severability
	Section 25. Effective Date



	Hasan Consultants' IFMP budget with sub (4)
	November 9, 2021 Board Packet (2)
	November 9, 2021 Board Packet (2)
	November 9, 2021 Board Packet (2)
	November 9, 2021 Board Packet (2)
	November 9, 2021 Board Packet (2)
	Limited Term Encroachment Easement-Hearst-SSCSD (MA Rev 10-12 vs 1-27-21).PDF
	A. Hearst owns certain real property located in San Luis Obispo County, California (the “Conservation Property”) encumbered by a conservation easement (the “Conservation Easement”) held by California Rangeland Trust, a California nonprofit public bene...
	B. On or about March 16, 2015, Hearst provided a copy of the Conservation Easement Agreement to the District.
	C. In or about October 2015, the District commenced construction of certain Potable Water Well Head Treatment Project (the “Project”) improvements including a reverse osmosis facility (collectively, the “Water Treatment Facility”), and completed const...
	D. In July 2020, Hearst and the District discovered that a portion of the Water Treatment Facility encroaches (the “Encroachment”) on that portion of the Conservation Property more particularly description in Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporate...
	E. As an interim measure, Hearst and the District entered into that certain Revocable Encroachment License Agreement effective as of October 26, 2020 (the “License Agreement”), by which Hearst granted to District a license to temporarily leave the exi...
	F. District desires to obtain from Hearst, and Hearst has agreed to grant to District, an easement to allow the existing Encroachment to remain on the Encroachment Area for so long as the District continues to use the Encroachment for the Public Utili...
	1. Easement Terms.
	(a) Grant of Easement.  Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, Hearst hereby grants to the District an easement (the “Easement”) on, over and across the Encroachment Area for the sole and exclusive purpose of allowing the Encroachment ...
	(b) Term.  The term of the Easement and this Agreement (the “Term”) shall commence on the date that this Agreement is recorded in the Official Records of San Luis Obispo County, California (the “Effective Date”), and continue until the earlier of: (i)...
	(c) Acknowledgements and Release by District.  In addition to Section 7 below, District acknowledges and agrees that, in consideration of the grant of the Easement by Hearst to District as provided herein, District releases, relinquishes and waives an...
	(d) Encroachment Fee.
	(i) As additional consideration for the grant of the Easement by Hearst to District as provided herein, commencing on the Effective Date, District covenants and agrees to pay to Hearst an annual encroachment fee (the “Encroachment Fee”) as provided in...
	(ii) Notwithstanding Section 1(d)(i) above, Hearst and the District acknowledge and agree that a prorated amount of the annual license fee previously paid to Hearst by the District under the License Agreement in the aggregate sum of ________________ D...

	(e) Reimbursement of Damages Resulting from Encroachment.  As a direct result of the Encroachment, Hearst incurred damages as more particularly set forth in the License Agreement.  Hearst and District acknowledge and agree that, as of the Effective Da...
	(f) Termination of License Agreement.  Subject to and conditioned upon recordation of this Agreement as provided in Section 1(b) above, Hearst and the District hereby agree that this Agreement shall replace the License Agreement, and the License Agree...

	2. Additional Covenants and Acknowledgements by the District.
	(a) Compliance with Conservation Easement.  District acknowledges and agrees that: (i) the Encroachment Area is encumbered by the Conservation Easement; (ii) this Agreement, including but not limited to the District’s rights pursuant to Section 1 abov...
	(b) Compliance with Laws.  District shall perform its activities and obligations under this Agreement in a good and workmanlike manner, shall keep the Encroachment Area in neat, clean, orderly and safe condition at all times, and shall, at its sole co...
	(c) Mechanic’s Liens.  District shall keep the Encroachment Area free and clear of all mechanic’s liens or other liens resulting from the District’s exercise of its rights pursuant to this Agreement and will promptly pay and discharge any such liens; ...

	3. Indemnity.  District agrees to wholly indemnify, protect, defend and hold harmless Hearst, its parent, affiliates, subsidiaries, officers, directors, employees, stockholders, managers, property managers, mortgagees, successors, assigns, and insurer...
	4. Insurance.  At all times during the Term, District shall, at its sole cost and expense, maintain a commercial general liability in the amount of not less than Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) per occurrence, naming Hearst and its parent, affiliates...
	5. Default by District; Hearst Remedies and Right to Terminate.
	(a) In the event District fails to perform any of its obligations as required under this Agreement, or breaches any covenant, condition or term of this Agreement, Hearst shall, in addition to any other remedies available at law or in equity, have the ...
	(b) If District fails to make any payment to Hearst when due as provided in under this Agreement, then:
	(i) the outstanding amount shall bear interest at the maximum rate allowed by law until paid in full (“Default Interest”); and
	(ii) a late charge by way of damages shall be immediately due and payable to Hearst.  District recognizes that any default by District in paying such amounts when due will result in Hearst incurring additional expenses and in Hearst’s loss of the use ...

	(c) District shall not be in default of any of its obligations under this Agreement unless Hearst first provides to District written notice of default and District thereafter fails within five (5) days after receipt of such notice of default to either...

	6. District Obligations uUpon Termination.
	(a) Removal and Reclamation.
	(i) Within twelve (12) months (the “Removal Period”) after any termination of the Easement and this Agreement as provided in this Agreement (the “Termination”), Grantee shall, at its sole cost and expense, remove all improvements and facilities from t...
	(ii) In the event of the Termination as provided above, then notwithstanding any other term or provision of this Agreement, and notwithstanding such termination of this Agreement, until Grantee’s completion of the Removal as provided in the preceding ...

	(b) Recordation of Quitclaim.  Upon the Termination as provided above, Grantee shall execute, acknowledge and deliver to Grantor, within ten (10) business days after written demand from Grantor to Grantee, any quitclaim deed, termination agreement, ca...

	7. District’s Use and Liability; Release of Hearst.  District hereby releases Hearst from any liability arising from the District exercising its rights under this Agreement and the District’s undertaking of the Project.  Furthermore, District agrees t...
	District, on behalf of itself and for its successors and permitted assigns, expressly, knowingly, and voluntarily waives and relinquishes all rights and benefits afforded by California Civil Code Section 1542 and any analogous state or federal law or ...
	8. Notices.  Any notice, demand, approval, consent, or other communication required or desired to be given under this Agreement in writing shall be given in the manner set forth below, addressed to the party to be served at the addresses set forth bel...
	9. Time of the Essence; Dates.  Time is of the essence in the performance of each of the parties’ respective obligations contained in this Agreement.  In the event that any date specified in this Agreement falls on Saturday, Sunday or other day on whi...
	10. Further Assurances.  Each of the parties agrees to perform any and all further acts and to execute and deliver any documents that may reasonably be necessary to carry out the provisions of this Agreement.
	11. Severability.  Each provision of this Agreement is severable from any and all other provisions of this Agreement.  Should any provision(s) of this Agreement be for any reason unenforceable, the balance shall nonetheless be of full force and effect.
	12. Entire Agreement; Modification; Waiver.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between Hearst and the District pertaining to the subject matter contained in it and, subject to Section 1(f) above, supersedes all prior and contemporaneous ...
	13. Relationship of Parties.  Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be deemed or construed by the parties or by any third person to create the relationship of principal and agent or of partnership or of joint venture or of any association between ...
	14. No Assignment.  District’s rights and obligations under this Agreement are personal to District, and District shall not assign this Agreement without the express written consent of Hearst, which consent may be withheld for any reason or for no rea...
	15. Binding on Successors.  This Agreement shall be binding upon the parties, permitted assigns and other successors in interest.
	16. Drafting.  The parties to this Agreement agree that this Agreement is the product of joint authorship and negotiation and that should any of the terms be determined by a court, or in any type of quasi-judicial or other proceeding, to be vague, amb...
	17. Governing Law; Jurisdiction and Venue.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of California.  Any legal suit, action, or proceeding arising out of this Agreement shall be instituted in Superior ...
	18. Legal Costs.  If any party to this Agreement shall take any action to enforce this Agreement or bring any action or commence any proceeding for any relief against any other party, declaratory or otherwise, arising out of this Agreement, the losing...
	19. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.  The parties authorize each other to detach and combine, ...
	CONSENT OF CONSERVATION EASEMENT HOLDER
	Rangeland Trust, as holder of the Conservation Easement under the Conservation Easement Agreement, hereby consents to and approves of the grant of the Easement as set forth in the foregoing Agreement, in accordance with the Conservation Easement Agree...
	CERTIFICATE OF ACCEPTANCE

	Exhibit A to Grant of Limited Term Encroachment  Easement and Agreement
	The real property referred to in this Agreement as the “Encroachment Area,” is located in San Luis Obispo County, California, and more particularly described as follows:
	(See attached)
	[Review Note: Legal description and plat map to be prepared and included as Exhibit A.]

	21-321  Pico Ave San Simeon CSD RS-18X26 SHEET 2 on 9-21-2021 (2).pdf
	Sheets and Views
	18X26 SHEET 2


	21-321  Pico Ave San Simeon CSD RS-18X26 SHEET 1 on 9-20-2021 (2).pdf
	Sheets and Views
	18X26 SHEET 1






